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Company Overview

Javelin is a specialty pharmaceutical compay
acute moderate-to-severe pain in medically su
risk through the creation of novel therapeutl %
or by discovering new indications and dosag
maceutical ingredients. Our specnalty pharr

our products.

Our simple and cost-effective pa@‘ca{_;s
growing demand for non-opicid?and dpioid :paln management products with improved efﬂg;;; ang

reduced side effects. All of our products can be used alone or in “multi-modal” combinéf‘dh 'thea

QOur product and our product candidates offer rapid pain relief, for same-day and Io g-s
with attractive safety profiles in comparison}to many currently available treatments, In
product and our product candidates provide non-opioid or opioid sparing approaohés
pain, an area of interest to physicians, patieqts and potential industry partners. .




—~JAVELIN

April 30, 2008
Dear Stockholder:

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I invite you to attend our 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. We hope you can
join us. The annual meeting will be held:

At The Charles Hotel
One Bennett Street
Cambridge, MA 02138

On: June 24, 2008

Time:  9:30 a.m., local time

The Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the Proxy Statement and our 2007 Annual Report accompany this
letter,

At the Annual Meeting, we will report on important activides and accomplishments of the Company and review the
Company’s financial performance and business operations. You will have an opportunity to ask questions and gain an up-to-
date perspective on the Company. You will also have an opportunity to meet the directors and other key executives of the
Company.

As discussed in the enclosed Proxy Statement, the Annual Meeting will also be devoted to: (i) the electon of three
directors; (ii) the consideraton of the proposal to appoint McGladrey & Pullen, LLP as our independent registered public
accounting firm for the 2008 fiscal year; (iii) the consideraton of an amendment to our 2005 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan to
increase the number of shares available for issuance thereunder from 9,000,000 to 10,000,000 and to remove the restriction on
the number of incentive stock options that may be issued thereunder; and (iv) the consideration of any other business matters
properly brought before the Annual Meeting.

We know that many of our stockholders will be unable to attend the Annual Meeting. We are soliciting proxies so that each
stockholder has an opportunity to vote on all matters that are scheduled to come before the stockholders at the Annual
Meeting. Whether or not you plan to attend, please take the time now to read the proxy statement and vote and submit your
proxy by signing, dating and returning your proxy card promptly in the enclosed postage-paid envelope. You may revoke your
proxy at any time before it is exercised. Regardless of the number of Javelin shares you own, your presence in person or by
proxy is important for quorum purposes and your vote is important for proper corporate action.

Thank you for your continuing interest in Javelin. We look forward to seeing you at our Annual Meeting,

If you have any questions about the Proxy Statement, please contact David Bernstein, Corporate Secretary, at (617} 349-
4500.

Sincerely,

Martin J. Driscoll
Chief Executive Officer




JAVELIN PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
JUNE 24, 2008

To the Stockholders of JAVELIN PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.:

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Meeting”) of Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a
Delaware corporation, will be held on Tuesday, June 24, 2008 at 9:30 a.m., local time, at The Charles Hotel, One Bennert
Street, Cambridge, Massachusetts for the following purposes:

1. electing Martin J. Driscoll, Jackie M. Clegg and Peter D. Kiernan, I1I, Class 111 directors, as directors for a three-year
term;

2. considering and voting upon a proposal to ratify the appointment of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP as our independent
registered public accounting firm for the 2008 fiscal year;

3. considering and voting upon a proposal to amend our 2005 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan to increase the number of
shares available for issuance therecunder from 9,000,000 to 10,000,000 and to remove the restriction on the number of
incentive stock options that may be issued thereunder; and

4. conducting other business if properly raised at the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on April 28, 2008 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Meeting
and any adjournment thereof.

You are cordially invited to attend the Meeting.

A Proxy Statement describing the matters to be considered at the Meeting is attached to this Notice. Our 2007 Annual
Report accompanies this Notice, but it is not deemed to be part of the Proxy Statement.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

David B. Bernstein
Secretary

April 30, 2008

IT IS IMPORTANT THAT YOUR SHARES ARE REPRESENTED AT THE MEETING. STOCKHOLDERS WHO
DO NOT EXPECT TO ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON, BUT WISH THEIR STOCK TO BE VOTED ON
MATTERS TO BE PRESENTED TO THE MEETING, ARE URGED TO REVIEW THE ATTACHED PROXY
STATEMENT AND THEN COMPLETE AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY IN THE ACCOMPANYING
POSTAGE-PAID, ADDRESSED ENVELOPE. IF YOU ATTEND THE MEETING, YOU MAY WITHDRAW YOUR
PROXY AND VOTE YOUR SHARES PERSONALLY.




JAVELIN PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
125 CambridgePark Drive
Cambridge, MA 0214

PROXY STATEMENT
INTRODUCTION

This Proxy Statement and the accompanying proxy are being furnished with respect to the solicitation of proxies by the
Board of Directors of Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company,” “Javelin” or “we”), for the 2008
Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Meeting”). The Meeting is to be held at 9:30 a.m., local time, on Tuesday, June 24,
2008, and at any adjournment or adjournments thereof, at The Charles Hotel, Onc Bennett Street, Cambridge, Massachusetts.

The approximate date on which the Proxy Statement and form of proxy are intended to be sent or given to stockholders is
May 5, 2008.

The purposes of the Meeting are to seek stockholder approval of four proposals: (i) electing three directors 1o the Board of
Directors; (i) ratifying the appointment of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for
the 2008 fiscal year; and (iii) amending our 2005 Omnibus Stock Incentve Plan to increase the number of shares available for
issuance thereunder from 9,000,000 to 10,000,000 and to remove the restriction on the number of incentive stock options that
may be issued thereunder.

We will bear the expense of solicitation of proxies for the Meeting, including the printing and mailing of this Proxy
Statement. We may request persons, and reimburse them for their expenses with respect thereto, who hold shares in their
name or custody or in the names of nominees for others to forward copies of such materials to those persons for whom they
hold Common Stock and to request authority for the execution of the proxies. We intend to use the services of InvestorCom,
a proxy solicitation firm, to assist us in the forwarding of the proxy material and the retrieval of proxies, for which we expect
to incur fees of approximately $7,500, plus expenses. In addition, some of our officers, directors and employees, without
additional compensation, may solicit proxies on behalf of the Board of Directors personally or by maii, telephane or facsimile.

A representative of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP, our independent public accountants, is expected to be present at the
Meeting. He will have an opportunity to make a statement if he so desires, and will be available to respond to appropriate
questdons from our stockholders.

VOTING SECURITIES, VOTING AND PROXIES
Record Date

Only stockholders of record of our common stock, $.001 par value (the “Common Stock™), as of the close of business on
April 28, 2008 (the “Record Date”), are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Meeting and any adjournment or adjournments
thereof.

A list of stockholders entitled to vote at the Meeting will be available at the Meeting and for ten days prior to the Meeting,
during office hours at our executive offices at 125 CambridgePark Drive, Cambridge, MA, by contacting the Secretary of the
Company.

Voting Stock

As of the Record Date, we had issued and outstanding 49,097,366 shares of Common Stock. Each holder of Common
Stock on the Record Date is entitled to one vote for each share then held on all matters to be voted at the Meeting, No other
class of voting securities was then outstanding. Under Delaware law, stockholders will not have appraisal or similar rights in
connection with any proposal set forth in this Proxy Statement.




Quorum

The presence at the Meeting of a majority of the outstanding shares of Comman Stock as of the Record Date, in person or
by proxy, is required for a quorum, Should you submit a proxy, cven though you abstain as to one or more proposals, or you
are present in person at the Meeting, your shares shall be counted for the purpose of determining if a quorum is present.

Broker “non-votes” are included for the purposes of determining whether a quorum of shares is present at the Meeting. A
broker “non-vote” occurs when a nominee holder, such as a brokerage firm, bank or trust company, holding shares of record
for a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular proposal because the nominee holder does not have discretionary voting
power with respect to that item and has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner.

Voting

For the election of directors, the three nominees receiving the highest number of affirmative “FOR” votes cast at the
Meeting will be elected as directors. Neither abstentions nor broker “non-votes” will affect the outcome of the election of
directors. You do not have the right to cumulate your votes for the clection of directors. Unless otherwise instructed, the
proxy holders of the management proxy will vote the proxies received by them “FOR” each of the three nominees described
in this Proxy Statement.

The Proposals for the ratfication of our independent registered public accounting firm and the amendment to our 2005
Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan require the vote of a majority of the shares of Common Stock present and entitled to vote at
the Meeting. For purposes of these Proposals, abstentions will have the same effect on the outcome as votes cast
“AGAINST” these Proposals, but broker “non-votes” will be considered as votes not entitled to be cast and will have no
effect on the outcome.

If you are the beneficial owner, but not the registered holder of our shares, you cannot directly vote those shares at the
Meeting. You must provide voting instructions to your nominee holder, such as your brokerage firm or bank. While your
nominee holder may vote your shares without instructions on the election of directors and the ratification of our independent
registered public accountdng firm, as these are routine matters, it cannot vote without instructions from you on Proposal No.
3.

If you wish to vote in person at the Meeting but you are not the record holder, you must obtain from your record holder 2
“legal proxy” issued in your name and bring it to the Meeting.

At the Meeting, ballots will be distributed with respect to each Proposal to each stockholder (or the stockholder’s proxy if
not the management proxy holders) who is present and did not deliver a proxy to the management proxy holders or another
person. The ballots shall then be tallied, one vote for each share owned of record, the votes being in three categories: “FOR,”
“AGAINST” or “ABSTAIN” (or “FOR,” “WITHHELD” or “FOR EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING NOMINEES” in the
case of “Proposal No. 17).

Proxies

The form of proxy solicited by the Board of Directors affords you the ability to specify a choice among approval of,
disapproval of, or abstention with respect to, each matter to be acted upon at the Meeting. Shares represented by the proxy
will be voted and, where the solicited shareholder indicates a choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon, the shares
will be voted as specified. If no choice is given, a properly executed proxy will be voted in favor of the election of the directors
designated by the Board of Directors, the proposal to ratify the appointment of our independent registered public accounting
firm, the proposal to amend the 2005 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan, and any other marters that may properly come before
the Meeting, at the discretion of the persons designated as proxies.




Revocability of Proxies

Even if you execute a proxy, you retain the right to revoke it and to change your vote by notifying us at any time before your proxy is
voted. Mere attendance at the Meeting will not revoke a proxy. Such revocatdon may be effected by (i) executon of a subsequently dated
proxy, (i) a written notice of revocation, sent to the attention of the Secretary at the address of our principal office set forth above in the
Notice to this Proxy Statement or (iii} your attendance and votng in person at the Meeting. Unless so revoked, the shares represented by
proxies, if received in time, will be voted in accordance with the directions given therein.

If the Meeting is postponed or adjourned for any reason, at any subsequent reconvening of the Meeting, all proxies will be
voted in the same manner as the proxies would have been voted at the ofiginal convening of the Meeting (except for any
proxies that have at that time effectively been revoked or withdrawn), even if the proxies had been effectively voted on the
same or any other matter at a previous Meeting.

You are requested, regardless of the number of shares you own or your intention to attend the Meeting, to sign the proxy
and return it promptly in the enclosed envelope.

Delivery of Proxy Materials to Households

Only one copy of Javelin’s 2007 Annual Report and Proxy Statement for the Meeting will be delivered to an address where
two or more stockholders reside unless we have received contrary instructions from a stockholder at the address. A separate
Proxy Card will be delivered to each stockholder at the shared address.

If you are a stockholder who lives at a shared address and you would like additional copies of the 2007 Annual Report, this
Proxy Statement, or any future annual reports or proxy statements, contact David B. Bernstein, Secretary, Javelin
Pharmaceudcals, Inc.,, 125 CambridgePark Drive, Cambridge, MA 02140, telephone number (617) 349-4500, and we will
promptly mail you copies.

Interest of Officers and Directors in Matters to Be Acted Upon
None of our officers or directors has any interest in any of the matters to be acted upon, except to the extent that they

have been granted options under the 2005 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan or may be granted awards thereunder at some future
date. See “Proposal 3.7




SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN
BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth information known to us with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common stock as

of the close of business on the Record Date for: (i) each person known by us to beneficially own mote than 5% of our voting
securities; (i) each executive officer named in the Summary Compensation Table below; (iii) each of our directors and director
nominees; and (iv) all of our current executive officers and directors as a group.

Name and address of beneficial owner (2) Shares bepeficially owned(1)
Number Percent
Wexford Capital LLC(3} 5012642 10.16%

411 West Putnam Avenue, Suite 125

Greenwich, CT 06930

NGN Capital, LLC(4) 3,266,666 6.65%
369 Lexington Avenue, 17th Floor

New York, NY 10017

Martin J. Driseoll(5) 66,604 *
Daniel B. Carr(6) 1,052,070 2.10%
Fred H. Mermelstein(7) . 1,413,702 2.83%
David B. Bernstein(8) 115,334 *
Stephen J. Tulipano(9) 115,000 *
Dr. Curds Wright{10) 133,334 *
Douglas G. Watson(11) 251,565 *
Jackie M. Clegg(12) 165,921 *
Neil W. Flanzraich(13) 266,604 *
Peter D. Kiernan, [11 (14) 2,411,848 491%
Georg Nebgen(15) 3,318,310 0.75%
All officers and directors as a group(16) 9,176,958 17.71%

M
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Beneficial ownership of less than 1% is omited.

The number of shares beneficially owned is determined under SEC rules, and the information is not necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for
any other purpose. Under those rules, beneficial ownership includes any shares as to which the individual has sole or shared voting power ot
investment power, and also any shares which the individual has the right to acquire within 60 days of the Record Date, through the exercise or
conversion of any stock option, convertible security, warrant or other right {8 “Presently Exercisable” security). Including those shares in the tables
does not, however, constitute an admission that the named stockholder is a direct or indirect beneficial owner of those shares.

Unless otherwise indicated, each person or endty named in the table has sole voting power and investment power (or shares that power with that
person’s spouse) with respect to all shares of common stock listed as owned by that person or entity. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each
of the fullowing persons is 125 CambridgePark Drive, Cambridge, MA 02140.

Includes {i) 2,568,198 shares owned of record by Wexford Spectrum Investors LLC and 111,111 shares obtainable upon exercise of Presently
Exercisable Warrants and (i) 2,222,222 shares owned of record by Theta Investors LLC and 111,111 shares obtainable upon exercise of Presendy
Exercisable Warrants, as reported on Schedule 13G/A filed on February 7, 2006,

Includes {i) 1,895,973 shares owned of tecotd by NGN Biomed Opportunity I,- L.P. and 1,370,693 shares owned of record by NGN Biomed
Opportunity | GmbH & Co. Beteiligungs KG. In their Schedule 13D/A filed on February 14, 2008, each of these persons expressly disclaimed
membership in & “group” or beneficial ownership of any shares of common stock except for shares held of record.

Includes 66,604 shares obtainable upon exercise of Presently Exercisable options. Excludes 880,000 shares obtainable upon exercise of options not
Presently Exercisable.

Includes 1,044,070 shares obtainable upon exercise of Presendy Exercisable options. Excludes 245,000 shares obtainable upon exercise of optons
not Presently Exercisable.

Includes 861,386 shares obtainable upon exercise of Presently Exercisable options. Excludes 141,666 shares obtainable upon exercise of options not
Presently Exercisable.

Includes 114,334 shares obtainable upon exercise of Presently Exercisable options. Excludes 138,666 shares obrainable upon exercise of options not
Presently Exercisable.
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Includes 115,000 shares obtainable upon exercise of Presently Exercisable options. Excludes 140,000 shares obtainable upon exercise of options not
Presenty Exercisable.

Includes 133,334 shares obrainable upon exercise of Presently Exercisable options, all of which expire on June 14, 2008,

Includes 246,565 shares obtainable upon exercise of Presently Exercisable options. Exclades 60,000 shares obtainable upon exercise of options not
Presently Exercisable.

Includes 165,921 shares obtainable upon exercise of Presently Exercisable options. Excludes 40,000 shares obtainable upon exercise of options not
Presently Exercisable.

Includes 66,604 shares obtainable upon exercise of Presenty Exercisable optons. Excludes 30,000 shares obtainable upon exercise of options not
Presently Exercisable.

Includes 2,411,848 shares owned by Kiernan Ventwres LI.C (“Ventures'), a limited lizbilicy company managed solely by Mr, Kiernan and owned by
Mr. Kiernan and his wife. Excludes 50,000 shares obtainable upon exercise of opdons that are not Presently Exercisable. Also excludes
approximately 1,154,128 shares (the “Sonostar Shares”) beneficially owned by Sonostar Capital Partners LLC (“Sonostar™), a private equity fund
managed solely by Me. Kiernan’s brother, Mr. Gregory F. Kiernan, who has sole voting and dispositive power with respect to the Sonostar Shares.
Ventures owns approximately 14.9% of the membership interests in Sonostar. 171,965 of the Sonostar Shares, representing the number of shares
attributable to Ventures' percentage interest in Sonostar, were placed in a segregated account in the name of Ventures after Peter Kiernan was
appointed to the Board of Directors of Javelin, For the duraton of Peter Kiernan’s serving as a director of Javelin: (i} no Sonostar Shares held in the
segregated account shall be sold, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of by Sonostar; and (i) no futute purchase or sales of our securities
shall be allocated to Ventures or taken from the segregated account. Neither Peter Kiernan nor Ventures has voting or dispositive power with
respect to the Sonostar Shares, including, without limitation, the Sonostar Shares held in the segregated account.

Includes: (i) 1,895,973 shares owned of record by NGN Biomed Opportunity I, L.P. and (i} 1,370,693 shates owned of record by NGN Biomed
Opporwnity 1 GmbH & Co. Beteiligungs KG. The aggregate number also includes 51,644 shares obuainable upon exercise of Presently Exercisable
options, and excludes 25,000 shares obtainable upon exercise of options not Presently Exercisable, as reported on a Schedule 13D/A filed on
February 14, 2008, Dr. Nebgen is a managing member of NGN Capiral LLC (“NGN Capital”), which is the sole general partner of NGN Biomed 1,
LP. (“NGN GP"} and the managing limited pariner of NGN Biomed Opportunity | GmbH & Co. Beteiliguns KG (“NGN Biomed 1 GMBH™).
NGN GP is the sole general partner of NGN Biomed Opportunity 1, L.P. Under the operating zgreement for NGN Capiral, Dr. Nebgen is deemed
to hold the reported securites for the benefit of NGN Capital. NGN Capital may, therefore, be deemed the indirect beneficial owner of the
securities, and Dr. Nebgen may be deemed the indirect beneficial owner through his indirect interest in NGN Capital. Dr. Nebgen disclaims
beneficial ownership of the securities except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein, if any.

Includes all shares of the persons denoted in footnotes (6) through (9) and (11) through (15). Dr. Wright, who resigned from his positions with us
on February 28, 2008, is no longer an executive officer of our company.




PROPOSAL 1
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

General

Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that the Board of Directors of the Company is comprised of not less than three
nor more than fifteen directors, divided or “classified” into three classes {Classes I, 11 and 11II), cach Class consisting as nearly
as practicable of one third of the entire Board of Directors, and with the term of one Class expiring each year. The Board of
Directors is currently comprised of eight directors and will be comprised of eight directors effective immediately following the
election if all the nominees are elected.

The cight directors are classified as follows: three each being Class I Directors and Class I1I Directors, and two being Class
11 Directors. The current term of the Class 111 Directors will expire at the 2008 Annual Meeting. The current term for the
Class 1 Directors and the Class 11 Directors will expire at the 2009 and 2010 Annual Meetings, respectively.

The Board of Directors has nominated for election three persons as Class ILI Directors. Assuming the election of each
nominee, the term of.the Class 111 Directors will expire at the 2011 Annual Meeting. Each nominee currently serves as a
Company director. All of the nominees have consented to serve as directors. If a nominee should not be available for clection
as contemplated, the proxy holders will vote for a substitute designated by the current Board of Directors. We are not aware
of any nominee who will be unable or who will decline to serve as a director.

Nominees

The names, the positions with the Company and the ages as of the Record Date of the individuals who are our nominces
for election as Class TIT Directors are:

Name Age  Position Director Since

Martin J. Driscoll 49  Chief Executive Officer and June 2006
Director

TJackie M. Clegg 46 Director December 2004

Peter D. Kiernan, 111 54  Director February 2008

For information as to the shares of the Commeon Stock beneficially owned by each nominee, see the section “Secutities
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and as to other Board matters, see the section “Board
Information.”

The following are biographical summaries for our nominees for election as Class 111 Directors:
Class 111 Directors

Martin J. Driscoll has served as our Chief Executive Officer since March 3, 2008 and as a director since June 2006. He
has been a principal of MJD Consulting LLC, a pharmaceutical marketing company, since 2005, and was a principal of that
firm from its founding in 2002 to 2003. From 2003 to 2005, Mr. Driscoll served as Senior Vice President of Sales and
Marketing at Reliant Pharmaceuticals, a privately-held company that markets a portfolio of branded pharmaceutical products.
From 2000 to 2002, Mr. Driscoll served as Vice President, Commercial Operations and Business Development at ViroPharma,
Inc., where he played a large role in the negotiation and successful management of a multi-million dollar co-promoton/co-
development collaboration between ViroPharma and Avents. From 1983 to 2000, he held various paesitions at Schering
Plough Corporation, including Vice President of Sales and Marketing for its Primary Care Division, and Vice President, Sales
and Marketing for the Schering Diabetes Unit. He also served as the Chief Executive Officer of Pear Tree Pharmaceuticals,
Inc., a private pharmaceutical company focused on developing prescription products for women, from July, 2007 untl March
3, 2008, and he currently serves as a Director of Genta Incorporated [Nasdag: GNTA], a biotechnology company developing
novel cancer therapies. Mr. Driscoll received a B.S. from the University of Texas.




Jackie M. Clegg has served as a director since December 2004, and as a director of 1DDS since February 2004. In
September 2001, she formed the international strategic consulting firm Clegg International Consultants, LLC (“CIC”)
specializing in emerging markets. From May 1997 to July 2001, Ms. Clegg served as Vice Chair of the Board of Directors and
First Vice President of the Export-lmport Bank of the United States (“Ex-Im Bank”), having previously served in various
positions from 1993 to 1997 at Ex-Im Bank, including Chief of Staff. Prior to joining Ex-Im Bank, Ms. Clegg worked for ten
years in the United States Senate on the staff of both the Banking and the Appropriations Committees. Ms. Clegg is also
currently serving as a director of Blockbuster Inc. [NYSE: BBI], Brookdale Senior Living, Inc. [INYSE: BKD|, The CME
Group (merged endry of Chicago Mercantile Exchange and the Chicago Board of Trade) [NYSE: CME] and Cardiome
Pharma Corp. [Nasdag: CRME].

Perer D. Kiernan, HT has served as a director since February 2006. He is CEEO of Kiernan Ventures, a venture capital
firm committed to growing companies of consequence. He spent nearly 18 years at Goldman Sachs, most of them as a
Partner, and was instrumental in advising companies and wealthy families around the globe in ways to expand their business.
His specialty was forging unique relationships and finding creative and unconventional ways to help growing companies both
large and small achieve their promise. After leaving Goldman, Mr. Kiernan founded and led numerous companies, including
Tech Health, a high growth medical services company where he serves as Chairman of the Board, Mr. Kiernan was also
President and Partner at Cyrus Capital Partners, a hedge fund based in New York and London, where he continues to serve as
Senior Advisor. Mr. Kiernan also serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Christopher and Dana Reeve
Foundation, where he has led a dramatic mrnaround in the organization’s fight to cure paralysis. He also served as past
Chairman of the prestigious Robin Hood Foundation for neatly five years. He currently serves on the Board of the Darden
School at the University of Virginia and served on the Williams College Board and Finance Committee for many vears.

Continuing Directors

Name Age Position : Director Since
(Term expires 2009)

Douglas G. Watson 63  Chairman of the Board and Director  December 2004
Neil W. Flanzraich 64  Director June 2006
Georg Nebgen, Ph.D. 46 Director December 2006
(Term expires 2010) Chief Medical Officer, Vice Chairman

Daniel B. Carr, M.D. 60  of the Board and a Director December 2004
Fred H. Mermelstein 49 President and Director December 2004

The following are biographical summaties of our continuing directors:
Class I Directors

Douglas G. Watson has served as our Chairman of the Board and a director since December 2004, and as a director of
IDDS since April 2002, He is the Chief Executve Officer of Pittencrieff Glen Associates, a consulting company, which he
founded in June 1999. From January 1997 to June 1999, Mr. Watson served as President, Chief Executive Officer and a
director of Novartis Corporaton, the U.S. subsidiary of Novarts A.G. Mr. Watson serves as Chairman of OraSure
Technologies, Inc. [Nasdaq: OSUR], and as a director of BioMimetic Therapeutics, Inc. [AMEX:BMTI], Genta Inc.
[Nasdaq:GNTA], and Dendreon Corporation [Nasdaq:DNDN]. Mr, Watson is the chairman of Freedom House Foundation
and a director of the American Liver Foundation. Mr. Warson holds an M.A. in Mathematics from Churchill College,
Cambridge University. He is also a member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants.

Neil W. Flanzraich has served as a director since June 2006. He has been a private investor since February 2006. From
1998 through its sale in January 2006 to TEVA Pharmaceuticals Industries, Ltd., he served as Vice Chairman and President of
IVAX Corporation, an international pharmaceutical company. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Flanzraich served as Chairman of the
Life Sciences Legal Pracdce Group of Heller Ehrman LLP, a law firm, and from 1981 to 1994, was Senior Vice President and
member of the Corporate Operating Committee at Syntex Corporation, a pharmaceutical company. He is also a Director of
Equity One Inc. [NYSE:EQY], Continucare Corporation [ASE:CNU], RAE Systems, Inc., [ASE:RAE], Neurochem Inc,
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[Nasdaq:NRMX], and Chipote Mexican Grill, Inc. [NYSE: CMG]. He also serves as Chairman of the Israel America
Foundation. Mr. Flanzraich received an A.B. from Harvard College (phi beta kappa and magna cum laude) and a J.D. from
Harvard Law School (magna cum laude).

Georg Nebgen, Ph.D. has served as a director since December 8, 2006, From 2003 until the present, Dr. Nebgen served
as 2 managing member and co-founder of NGN Capital, LLC, which is the indirect general parter of NGN Biomed
Opportunity 1, L.P. and the managing limited partner of NGN Biomed Opportunity I GmbH & Co. Beteiligungs KG
(collectively, “NGN Capital”), each of which is a shareholder of our company. Prior to his appointment as a director, Dr.
Nebgen had acted as the designee of NGN Capital in attending Board meetings as an observer since November 2005. Before
joining NGN Capital, Dr. Nebgen had been a principal at MPM Capital in Boston and Managing Director of MPM GmbH.
Prior to thar, Dr. Nebgen served with Schering-Plough Corporation as Managed Care Area Manager in New England. His
responsibilities included contracting the reimbursement of Schering-Plough’s ethical pharmaceutical products and services
with managed carc organizations, as well as leading sales pull-through activities of the field forces. Dr. Nebgen obtained his
doctorate in Pharmaceutical Technology Sciences from the University of Bonn, Germany and his executive MBA from the
University of St. Gallen, Switzerland.

Class 11 Directors

Daniel B. Carr, M.D. has served as a director since December 2004, as the Vice Chairman of our Board of Directors
since March 3, 2008 and as our Chief Medical Officer since September 2004 when he joined IDDS from his positon as
Saltonstall Professor of Pain Research at Tufts-New England Medical Center, and Professor of Anesthesiology and Medicine.
He had held both positions since 1994. Dr. Carr ended his clinical responsibilities effective September 2004. Dr. Carr served
as our Chief Executive Officer from July 2005 until March 3, 2008, From 1995 to 2003, he was the Medical Director of the
Pain Management Program at the New England Medical Center, which merged into the Pain Management program at Caritas
St. Elizabetl’s Medical Center, another Tufts-affiliated program. Dr. Cart was a founder of the Pain Center at the
Massachusetts General Hospital and served as Special Consultant to the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services and
Co-Chair of the Agency for Health Care Policy and Research’s Clinical Practice Guidelines on Acute and Cancer Pain
Management. He is Editor-in-Chief of Pain: Clinical Updates published by the International Association for the Study of Pain
(“IASP™, and has served as a Director of the American Pain Society and the IASP. Dr. Carr holds a bachelors degree from
Columbia College and an M.D. degree from Columbia University College of Physicians and Surgeons.

Fred H. Mermelstein, Ph.D. has served as our President and a director since December 2004, having been our Chief
Executive Officer from December 2004 through June 2005 and Secretary from December 2004 to April 2006, and had served
as a director of IDDS and as its President from inception in February 1998 through July 2003 when he also became Chief
Executive Officer. From April 1996 to July 2003, he was employed by Paramount Capital Investments, LLC where he became
a Director of Venture Capital and a member of Orion Biomedical GP, LLC. He is the founder, President and Chairman of the
board of Directors of Pear Tree Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and he currently serves as a director of Adherex Technologies, Inc.
[ASE:ADH]. From February 1997 until January 2000, Dr. Mermelstein was founder and served as a director and the Chief
Scientific Officer of PolaRx BioPharmaceuticals, an oncology-based biopharmaceutical company. Dr. Mermelstein also serves
on the scientific advisory board of Cardiome Pharma Corp. Dr. Mermelstein holds a dual Ph.D. in Pharmacology and
Toxicology from Rutgers University and University of Medicine and Dentistry of New Jersey (“UMDN]J”) Robert Wood
Johnson Medical School. He completed his post-doctoral training supported by two grant awards, a National Institutes of
Health fellowship and a Howard Hughes Medical Institute fellowship in the Department of Biochemistry at UMDN] Robert
Wood Johnson Medical School.

All Directors will hold office for the terms indicated, or until their earlier death, resignation, removal or disqualification,
and until their respective successors are duly elected and qualified. There are no arrangements or understandings between any
of the nominees, directors or executive officers and any other person pursuant to which any of our nominees, directors or
executive officers have been selected for their respective positions. No nominee, member of the Board of Directors or
executive officer is related to any other nominee, member of the Board of Directors or executive officer.

Mr. Watson and Mr. Driscoll both serve on the Board of Directors of Genta Incorporated.




Independence of the Board of Directors

Our Board of Directors is currently composed of eight members. Messrs. Driscoll, Watson, Flanzraich, Nebgen and
Kiernan, and Ms. Clegg, qualify as independent directors in accordance with the published listing requirements of the
American Stock Exchange. The American Stock Exchange independence definition includes a series of objective tests, such as
that the director is not, and has not been for at least three years, one of our employees and that neither the director nor any of
his or her family members has engaged in various types of business dealings with us. In additon, as further required by the
American Stock Exchange rules, our Board of Directors has made an affirmative determination as to each independent
director that no relationships exist which, in the opinion of our Board of Directors, would interfere with the exercise of
independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. In making these determinations, our directors reviewed
and discussed information provided by the directors and us with regard to each director’s business and personal activites as
they may relate to us and our management. Our directors hold office until their successors have been elected and qualified or
their earlier death, resignation or remowval.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

We have entered into, or intend to enter into, indemnification agreements with each of our current directors. These
agreements will require us to indemnify these individuals to the fullest extent permitted under Delaware law against liabilities
that may arise by reason of their service to us, and to advance expenses incurred as a result of any proceeding against them as
to which they could be indemnified. We also intend to enter into indemnification agreements with our future directors.

Approval for Related Party Transactions

Although we have not adopted a formal policy relating to the approval of proposed transactions that we may enter into
with any of our executive officers, directors and principal stockholders, including their immediate family members and
affiliates, our Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, all of the members of which are independent, reviews the
terms of any and all such proposed material related party transactions. The results of this review are then communicated to the
entire Board of Directors, which has the ultimate authority as to whether or not we enter into such transactions. We will not
enter into any material related party transaction without the prior consent of our Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee and our Board of Directors. In approving or rejecting the proposed related party transaction, our Corporaie
Governance and Nominating Committee and our Board of Directors shall consider the facts and circumstances available and
deemed relevant to them, including, but not limited to the risks, costs and benefits to us, the terms of the transaction, the
availability of other sources for comparable services or products, and, if applicable, the impact on a director’s independence.
We shall approve only those agreements that, in light of known circumstances, are in, or are not inconsistent with, our best
interests, as our Corporate Governance and Nominatng Committee and our Board of Directors determine in the good faith
exercise of their discretion.

Vote Required and Board of Directors’ Recommendation

Assuming a quorum is present, the affirmative vote of a plurality of the votes cast at the Meeting, cither in person or by
proxy, is required for the election of a director. For purposes of the election of directors, abstentions and broker non-votes
will have no effect on the result of the vote.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE
FOR THESE NOMINEES.




EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The Board of Directors, the Compensation Committec and senior management share responsibility for establishing,
implementing and continually monitoring our executive compensation program, with the Board of Directors making the final
determination with respect to executive compensation. The goal of our exccutive compensation program is to provide a
competitive total compensation package to our executive management team through a combination of base salary, annual cash
incentive bonuses, long-term equity incentive compensation and broad-based benefits programs. This Compensation
Discussion and Analysis explains our compensation objectives, policies and practices with respect to our Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and our three other most highly-compensated exccutive officers as determined in accordance
with applicable Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) rules, which are collecively referred to herein as the Named
Executive Officers.

Objectives of Our Executive Compensation Program

Our executive compensation program is designed to achieve the following objectives:

» artract and retain talented and experienced executives in the highly competitive and dynamic pharmaceutical industry;
* motivate and reward ¢xecutives whose knowledge, skills and performance are critical to our success;

* align the interests of our executives and stockholders by motivating executives to increase stockholder value;

» provide a competitive compensation package in which a significant portion of total compensation is determined by
company and individual results and the creation of stockholder value; and

* foster a shared commitment among executives by coordinating their company and individual goals.
Our Executive Compensation Program

Our typical executive compensation package has historically consisted of base salary, annual cash incentive bonuses, long-
term equity incentive compensation and broad-based benefits programs. Consistent with the emphasis we place on
performance-based incentive compensation, we have structured our executive compensation package so that cash incentive
bonuses and long-term equity incentive compensation in the form of stock options constitute a significant portion of our total
executive compensation. However, due in part to the small size of our executive team and the need to tailor each execudve
officer’s award to attract and retain that executive officer, we have not adopted any formal or informal policies or guidelines
for allocating compensation between long-term and currently paid out compensation, between cash and non-cash
compensation, ot among different forms of compensation.

We have structured our annual cash incentive bonuses and long-term equity incentive compensation for our executive
officers to be primarily tied to the achievement of predetermined company and, in some cases, individual performance goals,
which are established at the beginning of each year {or in the case of Named Executive Officers who have commenced
employment during the applicable year, at the time of their engagement by our company).

Within the context of the overall objectives of our compensation program, we determined the specific amounts of
compensation to be paid to each of our executives in 2007 based on a number of factors including:

* our understanding of the amount of compensation generally paid by companies in our peer group to their executives with
similar roles and responsibilities;
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* our exccutives’ performance during 2007 in general and as measured against predetermined company and individual
performance goals;

* the roles and responsibilities of our executives;

* the individual experience and skills of, and expected contributions from, our executives;
* the amounts of compensation being paid to our other executives;

* our executives” historical compensation and performance at our company; and

* any contractual commitments we have made to our executives regarding compensation.

Each of the primary elements of our executive compensation package is discussed in detail below, including a description
of how each particular element fits into our overall executive compensation. In the descriptions below, we highlight particular
compensation objectives that we have designed our executive compensation program to address. However, it should be noted
that we have designed the various elements of our compensation program to complement each other and thereby collectively
serve all of our executive compensaton objectives. Accordingly, whether or not specifically mentioned below, we believe that
each clement of our executive compensation program, to a greater or lesser extent, serves each of our compensation
objectves.

Role of Compensation Consultant

To ensure that the compensation levels of our Named Executive Officers are reasonably competitive with market rates,
and that our compensation program is properly designed to achieve its stated goals, during 2007 we retained AON Radford
Consulting (“Radford”), an independent human resource and compensation consulting firm, to review and analyze the
compensation arrangements for our executive officers and our current equity programs relative to market. In completing its
assessment, Radford reviewed our executive compensation data against that of 20 similarly situated commercial biotechnology
/ pharmaceutical companies. This peer group, which was approved by our Board of Directots and our Compensation
Comimittee, is comprised of the following companies:

Adolor Keryx Biopharmaceuticals, Inc. Pozen Inc,

Anika Therapeutics, Inc. Nastech Pharmaceutical Company Pain Therapeutics
Anesiva Inc. Novavax Inc. Replidyne Inc.

Biocryst Pharmaceuticals Inc. Optimer Pharma Inc. Sucampo Pharmaceuticals
Cadence Pharmaceuticals Inc. Osiris Therapeutics, Inc. Tercica, Inc.

Collagenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Penwest Pharmaceuticals Vanda Pharmaceuticals
Introgen Therapeutics, Inc. Poniard Pharmaceuticals

Base Salary

Our approach is to pay our executives a base salary that is competitive with those of other executive officers in similar
positions and with similar responsibilities in our peer group of compedtve companies. We believe that a competitive base
salary is a necessary element of any compensation program that is designed to attract and retain talented and experienced
executives. We also believe that attractive base salaries can motivate and reward executives for their overall performance. The
base salary of each Named Executive Officer is reviewed annually, and may be increased or decreased in accordance with the
terms of such executive officer’s employment agreement, where applicable, and certain performance criteria, including,
without limitation: (i) individual performance; (ii) corporate performance; (iii) the functions performed by the executive
officer; and (iv) changes in the compensadon peer group in which we compete for executive talent. We use discretion to
determine the weight given to each of the factors listed above and such weight may vary from individual to individual.
Evaluations of base salary are made regardless of whether a Named Executive Officer has entered into an employment
agreement with us, and while the base salary set forth in such employment agreement is taken into consideration, it is not
dispositive of the base salary of such executive officer for a given year. Although evaluatons of and recommendations as to
base salary are made by the Compensadon Committee and senior management, the ultmate determination is made by the
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Board of Directors. Determinations as to the base salary of each Named Executive Officer for the 2007 fiscal year were made
prior to our engagement of Radford, and thus Radford did not have any input on such base salaries.

During 2007, Dr. Carr received an aggregate base salary of $403,728, based upon his Employment Agreement dated as of
July 7, 2004, which was superseded by his Employment Agreement dated as of July 7, 2007. Messrs. Tulipano and Bernstein
received a base salary of $204,000 and $214,725, respectively, for the 2007 fiscal year, in accordance with the term sheets that
they entered into with us. Dr. Mermelstein and Dr. Wright received a base salary of $234,840 and $251,875, respectively, for
the 2007 fiscal year. To the extent that we have entered into employment agreements or term sheets with any of our Named
Executive Officers, the base salaries of such individuals reflect the initial base salaries that we negotiated with themn at the time
of their initial employment or promotion and our subsequent adjustments to these amounts to reflect market increases, the
growth and stage of development of our company, the performance and increased experience of our executives, any changes
in our executives’ roles and responsibilities and other factors. The initial base salaries that we negotiated with our executives
were based on our understanding of base salaries for comparable positions at our peer group of companies at the time, the
individual experience and skills of, and expected contribution from, each executive, the roles and responsibilities of the
executive, the base salaries of our existing executives and other factors.

Annual Cash Incentive Bonuses

Consistent with our emphasis on performance incentive compensation programs, our executives are eligible to receive
annual cash incentive bonuses primarily based upon their performance and the performance of our company as measured
against predetermined goals covering clinical and regulatory operations, product development / commercialization, and
corporate and financial achievements, These goals are recommended by senior management to the Compensation Committee,
and then by the Compensation Committee to the Board of Directors, at the beginning of each year. The goals are ultimately
set by the Board of Directors. If a Named Executive Officer joined our company during a particular year, these performance
goals are established at the dme of employment. The Compensation Committee has determined that we achieved 90% of the
performance incentive goals that were established for our Named Executive Officers for the 2007 fiscal year.

As part of our cash incentive bonus program, we reserve a portion of each executive’s annual cash incentive bonus to be
paid at our discretion based on the executive’s overall performance. We maintain this discretionary portion of the annual cash
incentive bonuses in order to motivate our executives’ overall performance and their performance relating to matters that are
not addressed in the predetermined performance goals that we set. We believe that every important aspect of executive
performance is not capable of being specifically quantified in a predetermined objective goal. For example, events outside of
our control may occur after we have established the executives’ performance goals for the year that require our executives to
focus their attenton on different or other strategic objectives.

We establish the target amount of our annual cash incentive bonuses at a level that represents a meaningful portion of our
executives’ currentdy paid out cash compensation, and set additional threshold and maximum performance levels above and
below these target levels. During 2007, the target cash incentive bonus levels for our Named Executive Officers ranged from
29% for Mr. Bernstein to 50% for Dr. Carr. In establishing these levels, in additon to considering the incentives that we want
to provide to our executives, we also consider the bonus levels for comparable positions at our peer group of companies, our
historical practices and any contractual commitments that we have relating to executive bonuses.

Based in part upon the employment agreements that they have entered into with us, for the 2007 fiscal year, Dr. Carr was
entitled to an annual bonus of up to 100% of his base salary (with 50% of his base salary as the target bonus), Mr. Tulipano
was entitled to an annual bonus of up to 49% of his base salary (with 30% of his base salary as the target bonus), and Mr.
Bernstein was entitled to an annual bonus of up to 43% of his base salary (with 29% of his base salary as the target bonus).
For the 2007 fiscal year, Messrs. Carr, Tulipano and Bernstein received a bonus of $275,000, $76,588 and 375,157, respectively.
For Drs. Wright and Mermelstein, with whom we have not entered into employment agreements, we established a bonus
range of up to 45% and 86% of base salary, respectively. For the 2007 fiscal year, Dr. Wright and Dr. Mermelstein received a
bonus of $101,784 and $120,883, respectively. Due to the fact that our company hit 90% of the milestone objectives
established for 2007 and the strong performance of the Named Executive Officers, the total cash incentive bonus awarded to
our Named Executive Officers ranged between 5% and 11% of base salary higher than the target bonus percentage.
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As noted above, the aggregate amount of the bonus paid to cach Named Executive Officer, regardless of whether or not
they have entered into an employment agreement with us, reflects the extent to which such executive achieved the milestones
established at the beginning of the year, plus the amount of the discretionary bonus that is based on our assessment of their
overall performance during the year.

Overall, the targets for the performance measures were set at levels that we believed to be achievable with strong
performance by our executives. Although we cannot always predict the different events that will impact our business during an
upcoming year, we set our performance goals for the target amount of annual incentive cash bonuses at levels that we believe
will be achieved by our cxecutives a majority of the time. Our maximum and threshold levels for these performance goals are
determined in relation to our target levels, are intended to provide for greater or lesser incentives in the event that
performance is within a specified range above or below the target level, and are correspondingly easier or more difficult to
achieve. We set the performance goals for the maximum amount at a level that we believe will be achieved in some yvears, but
will not be achieved a majority of the time. At the end of each year, the Compensation Committee evaluates the performance
of each executve officer and provides its recommendation to the Board for the amount of the cash incentive bonus to be paid
to each such executive for that year, with the Board making the final determination as to the amount of the cash incentive
bonus.

Long-term Equity Incentive Compensation

We believe that long-term company performance is best achieved through an ownership culture that encourages long-term
performance by our executive officers through the use of stock-based awards. We grant stock options in order to provide
certain executive officers with a competitive total compensation package and to reward them for their contribution to our
long-term growth in value and the long-term price performance of our common stock. Grants of stock options are designed
to align the executive officer’s interest with that of our stockholders.

Based on the early stage of our company’s development and the incentives we are trving to provide to our executives, we
have chosen to use stock options, which derive value exclusively from increases in stockholder value, as opposed to restricted
stock or other forms of equity awards. Our decisions regarding the amount and type of long-term equity incentve
compensation and relative weighting of these awards among total executive compensation have also been based on the market
practices of our peer group of companies and our negotiations with our executives in connection with their inidal employment
or promoton by us.

Stock option awards provide our executive officers with the right to purchase shares of our common stock at a fixed
exercise price typically for a period of up to ten years, subject to continued employment with our company. Stock options are
earned on the basis of continued service to us and generally vest over three years, beginning with one-third vesting one year
after the date of grant, then pro-rata vesting annually thereafter. Such vesting is intended as an incentive to such executive
officers to remain with us and to provide a long-term incentve. Such optons are generally exercisable, however, after
termination of employment (other than termination for cause) if vested. We do not require that any pordon of the shares
acquired be held undl retrement, we do not have a policy prohibiting a director or executive officer from hedging the
economic risks of his or her stock ownership and we do not have any minimum stock ownership requirements for executive
officers and directors. However, each of our executive officers has a significant number of exercisable options. Stock option
awards are made pursuant to the Javelin 2005 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plan”). See “Payments Upon
Terminaton or Change-in-Control” for a discussion of the change-in-control provisions related to stock options. The exercise
price of each stock option granted under the 2005 Plan is based on the fair market value of our common stock on the grant
date.

We grant annual awards under the 2005 Plan to our Named Executive Officers based on a number of factors, including: (i)
the grantee’s position with us; (i) his ot her performance and responsibilities; (iii) the extent to which he or she already holds
an equity stake with us; (iv) equity participation levels of comparable executives at our peer group of companies; and (v) the
extent to which the corporate and individual performance targets for any particular year have been achieved. Awards to
executive officers are first reviewed and approved by the Compensation Committee, which then makes a recommendation for
final approval by our Board of Directors. Other than grants to newly-hired employees, option grants are generally awarded in
January of each year at the regularly scheduled meetings of the Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors.
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Other Compensation

We maintain broad-based benefits that are provided to all employees, including health insurance, life and disability
insurance, dental insurance and a 401(k) plan. In certain circumstances, on a case-by-case basis, we have used cash signing
bonuses, which may have tme-based forfeiture terms, when certain executives and senior non-executives have joined us. We
do not provide any special reimbursement for perquisites, such as country clubs, automobiles, corporate aircraft, living or
security expenses, for our employees or for any executive officers.

Pension Benefits. We do not offer qualified or non-qualified defined benefit plans to our executive officers or employees. In
the future, we may adopt qualified or non-qualified defined benefit plans if we determine that doing so is in our best interests.

Nongualfied Deferred Compensation. None of our Named Executive Officers participates in or has account balances in non-
qualified defined contribution plans or other deferred compensation plans maintained by us. To date, we have not had a
significant reason to offer such non-qualified defined contribution plans or other deferred compensation plans. In the future,
we may elect to provide our executive officers or other employees with non-qualified defined contribution or deferred
compensation benefits if we determine that doing so is in our best interests.

Severance and Change of Control Arvangements. As discussed more fully in the section below entitled “Employment
Agreements,” certain of our Named Executive Officers are entitled to certain benefits upon the termination of their respective
employment agreements. The severance agreements are intended to mitigate some of the risk that our executive officers may
bear in working for a developing company such as ours.

Policies Regarding Tax Deductibility of Compensation. Within our performance-based compensaton program, we aim to
compensate our Named Executive Officers in a manner that is tax-cffective for us. Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Internal Revenue Code”), restricts the ability of publicly-held companies to take a federal
income tax deduction for compensation paid to certain of their executive officers to the extent that compensation exceeds
$1.0 million per covered officer in any fiscal year. However, this limitation does not apply to compensation that is
performance-based. The non-performance-based compensation paid in cash to our executive officers in the 2007 fiscal year
did not exceed the $1.0 million limit per officer, and we do not anticipate that the non-performance-based compensation to be
paid in cash to our executive officers in 2008 will exceed that limit.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis with management
and based on the review and discussions, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement and incorporated by reference into the Company’s
annual report on Form 10-K.

THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Douglas G. Watson, Chairman
Jackie M. Clegg
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Summary of Executive Compensation

The following table sets forth certain information concerning all cash and non-cash compensation awarded to, earned by

or paid to our Chief Executive Officer, our Chief Financial Officer, and our three other most highly compensated executive
officers (the “Named Executive Officers”), during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006:

Change in
Pension
Value and
Nonqualified
Non-Equity Deferred
Stock Option Incentive Plan Compensation  All Other

Name and Principal Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Eamings  Compensation Total
Position Year Salary ($) ($) [£1) (3) (5) (3)(8) [£3) [£3] %)

Daniel B. Carr, 2007 3403728 — —  $725186  $275,000 (1) — — $1,403,914
M.D., Chief Medical Officer(6) 2006 350,000 — — 688,602 180,000 — — 1,218,602
Stephen J. Tulipano, 2007 3204000 — —  $150,615 $76,588 (2) — — $437,203
Chief Financial Officer 2006 133,333 — — 74,751 64,125 — — 272,209
Fred H. Mermelstein, PhD, 2007 3234840 — —  $198,398  $120,883 (3) — — $554,121

President 2006 228000 — — 206,041 90,706 — — 524,747
Dr. Curtis Wright, 2007 $251,875 — — 3155417  $101,784 (9) — — $509,076
EVP -- Regulatory(7) 2006 228401 — — 102,085 63,031 — — 393,517

David B. Bernstein, Secretary,
General Counsel and Chief

Intellectual 2007 $214725 — —  %148,334 875,157 (4) — — $438,210
Property Counsel 2006 153,125 — — 76,343 45,300 — — 274,763
{1} Dr. Carr is entitled to receive certain cash incentive compensation at the discretion of the Board of Directors, up to $450,000 per year, if certain

@

3
@

)

)

®

©

performance targets are met, pursuant to his employment agreement.

Mr. Tulipano is entitled to receive a cash bonus in the range of up to 49% of his base salary, with a targer bonus of 30%, if certain performance targets
are met, pursuant to his employment agreement.

Duting 2007, Dr. Mermelstein was entted to receive a cash bonus of up to 86% of his base salary if certain performance targets are met.

During 2007, Mr. Bernstein was entided to receive a cash bonus of up to 43% of his base salary, with a target bonus of 29%, if certain performance
targets are met.

Reflects the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and December 31,
2006 computed in accordance with SFAS 123R, and thus may include amounts from awards granted in current and prior fiscal years, A discussion of
the methods used to caleulate these values may be found in footnote 11, which is in Part II, item 8 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2007,

Dr. Carr served as our Chief Executive Officer from July 2005 until March 3, 2008, at which dme Martin ]. Driscoll was elected to serve as our Chief
Executive Officer. Dr. Carr remains our Chief Medical Officer.

Dr. Wright resigned from his positons with us on March 14, 2008. He will continue as a consultant through June 2008,
The amounts listed in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column for 2007 include cash incentive bonuses accried during 2007 and paid in
January 2008 following approval of our Board of Directors, and the amounts listed for 2006 include cash incentve bonuses accrued during 2006 and

paid in January 2007 following approval of our Board of Directors.

During 2007, Dr. Wright was entitled to receive a cash bonus of up to 45% of his base salary if certain performance targets are met.
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Grants of Plan-based Awards

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to grants of plan-based awards during the year ended
December 31, 2007 to the Named Execudve Officers.

All Other All
Stock Other Grant Date
Estimated Future Payouts Awards: Option Exercise Fair Value
Under Estimated Future Payouts  Number of  Awards: or Base of Stock
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Under Shares of Numberof  Price of and
Awards Equity Incentive Plan Awards  Stockor  Underlying  Option Option
Grant Threshold Target Maximum Threshold Target Maximum Units Options Awards Awards
__ MName Dae (&) & (8 @ @O0 ® ) @GSN S
Daniel B, Carr,
M.D. 1/3/07 — — — 95,000 — — — $498  $317,300
Stephen J.
Tulipano 1/3/07 — — — 45,000 — — — §4.98  $150,300
Fred H.
Mermelstein 1/3/07 — — — 70,000 — — — $4.98 $233,800
Dr. Curtis
Wright 1/3/07 — — — 50,000 — — — 8498  $167,000 -
David B.
Bernstein 1/3/07 — _ —_ 43,000 —_ —_ — %4.98 $143,620

{1) 'The options vest in three equal annual installments, beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date.
(2) 'The exercise price for all options is equal to the closing market price of our Common Stock on the date of grant,

(3) Amounts listed in this column represent the aggregate grant date fair value computed in accordance with SFAS No. 123R. Assumptions made for
purposes of computing the aggregate grant date fair value are discussed in footnote 11, which is in Part II, item 8 of our Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. We caution that the amount ultimately realized from the option awards will likely vary based on a
number of factors, including our actual operating performance, stock price fluctuations, and the timing of exercises and sales.

Discussion of Summary Compensation and Grants of Plan-based Awards Tables

Our executive compensation policies and practices, pursuant to which the compensaton set forth in the Summary
Compensation Table and the Grants of Plan Based Awards Table was paid or awarded, are described above under
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis.” A summary of certain material terms of our compensation plans and arrangements
is set forth below.

Employment Agreements

We entered into an Employment Agreement with Dr. Daniel B. Carr dated as of July 7, 2007 pursuant to which he
currently serves as our Chief Medical Officer. Dr. Carr also served as our Chief Executive Officer under his employment
agteement untl March 3, 2008. The employment agreement is for a term of three years, unless earlier terminated. Dr. Carr is
receiving an initial annual base salary of $450,000, plus a target cash bonus equal to 50% of base salary, with the potential to be
awarded up to 100% of base salary, if certain performance targets are met. Dr. Carr will also be entitled to receive an annual
option to purchase shares of Common Stock, based on the attainment of certain performance targets that are established
annually by mutual agreement of the Board of Ditectors and Dr. Carr. In addition, upon the commencement of his
employment with our company, Dr. Carr was granted options to purchase 916,570 shates of Common Stock at an exercise
price of $1.96 per share, as adjusted for the merger, vesting in three equal installments commencing upon the first anniversary
of the agreement. See “Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control” below for a discussion of payments due to Dr.
Carr upon the termination of his employment or a change-in-control of our company.
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Effectve as of May 1, 2006, Stephen ]J. Tulipano became our Chief Financial Officer pursuant to an Employment
Agreement, dated as of April 8, 2006. The employment term is two years and he is receiving an annual base salary of $200,000
and is entitled to a discretionary performance-based bonus for the 2007 calendar year in the range of up to 49% of his base
salary with a target bonus of 30% as determined in our sole discretion. As 2 hiring bonus, Mr, Tulipano was granted options to
purchase 150,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $3.70 per share, vesting in three equal annual installments
commencing upon the first anniversary of the grant.

Effective as of April 10, 2006, David Bernstein became our Secretary, General Counsel and Chief IP Counsel pursuant to a
Term Sheet. The Term Sheet provides for a three year renewal term of employment, at an annual base salary of $210,000, with
an annual performance bonus of up to 30% of base salary in cash. Upon hiring, Mr. Bernstein was granted options for the
purchase of 150,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $3.50 per share, vesting in three equal installments
commencing on the first anniversary of the grant.

Additional discussion of the amounts listed in the Summary Compensation Table and an explanation of the amount of
salary and incentive bonus paid to our Named Executive Officers in 2007 in proportion to total compensation can be found in
the Compensation Discussion and Analysis in this proxy statement.

Outstanding Equity Awards

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to outstanding equity awards held by our Named Executive
Officers at December 31, 2007.

Qption Awards (1) Stock Awards
Equity
Equity  Incentive
Incentive Plan

Plan Awards:
Awards:  Market or

Equity Number Payout
Incentive Number  Market of Value of
Plan of Value of Unearned Unearned
Awards: Shares Shares Shares, Shares,
Number of Numberof  Number of or Units ot Units Unitsor  Units or
Securities Securities Securities of Stock  of Stock Other Other
Underlying Underlying  Underlying That That Rights Rights
Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised Option Have Have That That
Options Options Unearned Exercise  Option Not Not Have Not Have Not
(€3] # Options Price  Expiration Vested Vested Vested Vested
Name Exercisable Unexercisable (#) (%) Date (#) (%) (#) (3}
Daniel B. Carr, M.D. 916,570 - e $1.90 9/7/14 — — — —
8,333 T 4,167 —_ $2.70 4/12/15 — — — —
41,667 83,333 — $4.05 3/8/16 — — — —
— 95,000 — $4.98 1/3/17 — — _— —
Stephen J. Tulipano 50,000 100,000 — $3.70 5/1/16 — — — —
— 45,000 — $4.98 1/3/17 — — — —
Fred H, Mermelstein, Ph,D. 103,485 — — $3.87 11/14/10 — — _ —
51,742 — — $5.36 2/24/12 — — — —
50,921 — — $3.87 9/18/12 — —_— —_ —
254,603 —_ — 31,50 8/22/13 — — — —
127,301 — — $1.96 12/15/13 — — — —
83,333 41,667 — 32.70 4/12/15 — — — —
75,000 — — $2.70 4/12/15 — — — —
25,000 50,000 — $4.05 3/8/16 — —_— — —
— 70,000 — $4.98 1/3/17 — — —_ —
Dr. Curds Wright 100,000 50,060 — $2.85 6/14/08 . — — — —
8,334 16,666 — $4.05 6/14/08 — — — —
— 50,000 — $4.98 6/14/08 — — — —
David B. Bernstein 50,000 100,000 — $3.50 4/10/16 — — —_ —
— 43,000 — $4.98 1/3/17 — — — —

(1} Ali outstanding option awards that were not fully vested as of December 31, 2007 vest in three equal annual installments, beginning on the first
anniversary of the date of grant.
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Options Exercised and Stock Vested
None of our Named Executive Officers exercised any stock options during the 2007 fiscal year.
Option Repricings

We have not engaged in any option repricings or other modifications to any of our outstanding equity awards to our
Named Executive Officers during fiscal vear 2007.

Pension Benefits

None of our Named Executive Officers or former executive officers are covered by a pension plan or other similar benefit
plan that provides for payments or other benefits at, following, or in connection with retirement.

Nongqualified Deferred Compensation

None of our Named Executive Officers or former executive officets are covered by a defined contribution or other plan
that provides for the deferral of compensation on a basis that is not tax-qualified.

Payments upon Termination or Change-in-control
Daniel B, Carr, M.D.

Death or Disabilify. Pursuant to his employment agteement, if Dr. Carr’s employment is terminated as a tesult of his death or
disability, Dr. Carr or Dr. Carr’s estate, as applicable, would receive his base salary and any accrued but unpaid bonus and
expense reimbursement amounts through the date of his death or the date on which the disability occurs. All stock options
that are scheduled to vest by the end of the calendar year in which such termination occurs would be accelerated and become
vested as of the date of his disability or death, and all stock options that have not vested {or been deemed pursuant to the
immediately preceding sentence to have vested) as of the date of his disability or death shall be deemed to have expired as of
such date.

Cause. If Dr. Cart’s employment is terminated for cause, he would be entitled to his base salary and expense reimbursement
through the date of termination, and he shall have no further entitlement to any other compensation or benefits. All stock
options that have not vested as of the date of termination shall be deemed to have expired as of such date and any stock
options that have vested as of the date of Dr. Carr’s termination for cause would remain exercisable for a period of 90 days
following the date of such termination.

Change of Control. 1f Dr. Carr’s employment is terminated upon the occurrence of a change of control or within six months
thereafter, we would be obligated to: (i) continue to pay his salary for a period of six months following such termination; (ii)
pay any accrued and unpaid bonus; and (iii) pay expense reimbursement amounts through the date of termination. Also, all
stock options that have not vested as of the date of such termination would be accelerated and deemed to have vested as of
such termination date. Assuming that the change of control occurred on December 31, 2007, we would have paid to Dr. Carr
$225.000 of base salary and $275,000 of accrued and unpaid bonus. The value of his accelerated options pursuant to SFAS
123R would have been $434,429.

Without Canse or for Good Reason. Tf Dr. Cart’s employment is terminated without cause, or by Dr. Carr for good reason, then
we would be obligated to: (i) continue to pay his base salary for a period of 12 months from the date of such termination; (if)
pay the bonus he would have earned had he been emploved for six months from the date on which such termination oecurs:
and (ii) pay any expense rcimbursement amounts owed through the date of termination. All stock options that are scheduled
to vest in the contract vear of the date of such termination shall be accelerated and deemed to have vested as of the
termination date. All stock options that have not vested (or deemed to have vested pursuant to the preceding sentence) shall
be decmed expired, null and void. Any stock options that have vested as of the date of Dr. Carr’s termination shall remain
exercisable for a petiod as outlined in our omnibus stock option program. Assuming that the change of control occurred on
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December 31, 2007, we would have paid to Dr, Carr $450,000 of base salary and $275,000 of accrued and unpaid bonus. The
value of his accelerated options pursuant to SFAS 123R would have been $24,562,

Employee Covenants. In his employment agreement, Dr. Carr agreed 1o keep confidential and not disclose any confidential or
proprietary information owned by, or received by or on behalf of, us or any of our affiliates, during the term of the agreement
or at any time thereafter. He also agreed to return such confidential and proprietary information to us immediately in the event
of any termination of employment.

Dr. Carr also agreed, during the term of the agreement and for a period of nine (9) months thereafter, to not in any manner
enter into or engage in any business that is direcdy competidve with our business anywhere in the world, with limited
exceptons. This non-competition covenant is not applicable if Dr. Carr is terminated by us without cause, or if he terminates
the agreement for good reason.

Moreover, Dr. Carr agreed, during the term of the agreement and for a period of 12 months thereafter, to not, directly or
indirectly, without our prior written consent: (i) solicit or induce any employee of us or any of our affiliates to leave such
employ; or hite for any purpose any employee of us or any affiliate or any employee who has left such employment within one
vear of the termination of such employee’s employment with us or any such affiliate or at any time in violadon of such
employec’s non-competition agreement with us or any such affiliate; or (i) solicit or accept employment or be retained by any
person who, at any dme during the term of the agreement, was an agent, client or customer of us or any of our affiliates where
his position will be related to our business or the business of any such affiliate; or (iii) solicit or accept the business of any
agent, client or customer of us or any of our affiliates with respect to products or services that compete directly with the
products or services provided or supplied by us or any of our affiliates. This non-competition covenant is not applicable if Dr.
Carr is terminated by us without cause, or if he terminates the agreement for good rcason.

David B. Bernstein

Pursuant to his Term Sheet for Employment, if Mr. Bernstein is terminated without cause, he shall be entitled to receive
three (3) months’ salary, which amount equaled $53,681 as of December 31, 2007.

2005 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan

Corporate Transactions. Pursuant to the 2005 Plan, in the event that we approve a plan of complete liquidation or dissolution
of our company, all options will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such liquidation or dissolution. In the
event that we approve an agreement for the sale of all or substantially all of our assets or a merger, consolidation or similar
transaction in which we will not be the surviving entity or will survive as a wholly-owned subsidiary of another entity (each, a
“Corporate Transaction™), the opuon shall be assumed or an equivalent option shall be substituted by such successor entity or
a parent or subsidiary of such successor entity, unless the Board of Directors determines, in its sole discretion and in lieu of
such assumption or substitution, to take one of the following two options: (i) fifteen (15) days prior to the scheduled
consummation of such Corporate Transaction, all options shall become immediately vested and exercisable and shall remain
exercisable for a period of fifteen days, or (i) cancel any outstanding options and pay or deliver, or cause to be paid or
delivered, to the holder thereof an amount in cash or securities having a value (as determined by the Board in its sole, good
faith discretion) equal to the product of the number of shares subject to the option multiplied by the amount, if any, by which
{A) the formula or fixed price per share paid to holders of shares pursuant to such Corporate Transaction exceeds (B) the
option price applicable to such shares. With respect to establishment of an exercise window, (i) any exercise of an option
during such fifteen-day period shall be conditioned upon the consummation of the contemplated Corporate Transaction and
shall be effective only immediately before the consummation of such Corporate Transaction and (i} upon consummation of
such Corporate Transaction, the 2005 Plan and all outstanding but unexercised options shall terminate.

Termination of Employment. 1f a grantee’s employment or service is terminated for cause, any unexercised option shall
terminate effective immediately upon such termination of employment or service. Except as otherwise provided by the
Committee in the award agreement, if a grantee’s employment or service terminates on account of death, then any unexercised
option, to the extent exercisable on the date of such termination of employment or service, may be exercised, in whole or in
part, within the first twelve (12) months after such terminadon of employment or service (but only during the option term) by
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(A) his ot her personal representative or by the person to whom the option is transferred by will or the applicable laws of
descent and distribution, (B) the grantee’s designated beneficiary, or (C) a permitted transferee; and, to the extent that any such
option was not exercisable on the date of such termination of employment or service, it will immediately terminate.

Except as otherwise provided by the Committee in the award agreement, if a grantee’s employment or service terminates
on account of disability, then any unexercised option, to the extent exercisable on the date of such termination of
employment, may be exercised in whole or in part, within the first twelve (12) months after such termination of employment
or service (but only during the option term) by the grantee, or by (A) his or her personal representative or by the person to
whom the option is transferred by will or the applicable laws of descent and distribution, (B) the grantee’s designated
beneficiary or {C) a permitted transferee; and, to the extent that any such option was not exercisable on the date of such
termination of employment, it will immediately terminate.

The degree, if any, to which any awards shall vest upon a change of control or a termination of employment or service in
connection with a change of control shall be specified by the Committee in the applicable award agreement.

Except as otherwise provided by the Committee in the award agreement, if a grantee’s employment or service terminates
for any reason other than for cause, death, disability or pursuant to a change of control, then any unexercised option, to the
extent exercisable immediately before the grantee’s termination of employment or service, may be exercised in whole or in
part, not later than three (3) months after such termination of employment or service (but only during the option term); and,
to the extent that any such option was not exercisable on the date of such termination of employment or service, it will
immediately terminate.

Director Compensation

The following table provides summary compensation information for each non-employee director for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2007:

Change
in pension
value and
Fees nonqualified
earned or Non-equity deferred
paid in Stock incentive plan compensation All other
cash Awards Option Awards compensation earnings Compensation  Total
Name ($) () (3) (2)(3) (%) (%) (3) (%)
Douglas G. Watson(1) 328,000 — $189,665 — — — $217,665
Jackie M. Clegg $20,250 — §118,005 — — — $138,255
Martin ]. Driscoll(4) $21,250 — $145,119 — — — $166,369
Neil Y. Flanzraich $12,500 — $145,119 — — — $157,619
Georg Nebgen $18,500 — $174,554 — — -_— $193,054

(1) As of December 31, 2007, each director had the following number of options outstanding: Mr. Watson--271,565; Ms. Clegg--190,921; Mr. Driscoll--
91,604; Mr. Flanzraich--91,604; and Mr. Nebgen--76,644,

(2) Reflects the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 computed in
accordance with SFAS 123R, and thus may include amounts from awards granted in and prior to 2007, A discussion of the methods used to calculate
these values may be found in footnote 11, Part I, itern 8 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007,

(3} The grant date fair value of the option awards computed in accordance with SFAS 123R for each outside director is $3.34.

{4} The compensation reflected in this table and paid to Mr. Driscoll for his services to the Company in 2007 relate solely to his services as a director. Mr.

Driscoll was elected to serve as our Chief Executive Officer on March 3, 2008, and thus did not receive any payments for his service in that capacity
until the 2008 fiscal year.
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Dr. Daniel B. Carr, our Chicf Executive Qfficer until March 3, 2008, and Fred H. Mermelstein, Ph.D., our President, have
not been included in the Director Compensation Table because each is a Named Executive Officer and does not receive any
additional compensation for services provided as a director.

We compensate the non-employee members of our Board of Directors for serving as a Board member up o $2,500 per
meeting for each meeting attended in person ($1,000 for each meeting attended telephonically) and through the grant of stock
options on an annual basis. We also compensate non-employee directors for serving as committee members up to $1,250 for
each committee meering attended in person and $500 for each committee meeting attended telephonically.

Effective as of March 2006, our option policy is an Inidal Option Award of options to purchase up to 50,000 shares of
Common Stock to each non-employee director upon becoming a director vesting after one year. We also granted to our non-
employee directors in the first quarter of the 2006 fiscal year a Basic Option Award of options to purchase up to 75,000 shares
of Common Stock, which options vest one-third a year beginning one year after the grant date, and which cover setvice during
the 2005-2007 fiscal years. In the first quarter of the 2009 fiscal year, we contemplate again granting a Basic Opdon Award of
options to purchase up to 75,000 shares of Common Stock to our non-employee directors, which options will vest one-third a
vear beginning one year after the grant date, and which will cover service during the 2008-2010 fiscal years. Any non-employee
director who is appointed following the grant of the Basic Opton Award will be eligible for a pro-rated option award in the
first quarter of the fiscal year following such non-employee director’s appointment.

We also grant to our Chairman of the Board of Directors on an annual basis options to purchase up to 20,000 shares of
Common Stock, to each committee member on an annual basis options to purchase up to 5,000 shares of Common Stock, to
the chair of the Audit Committee on an annual basis optons to purchase up to an additional 10,000 shares of Common Stock,
and to the chair of the Compensation Committee and the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee on an annual
basis options to purchase up to an additional 5,000 shares of Common Stock. These options would vest one year following the
grant date, and will have a term of ten years. The exercise price for all options granted to our directors would be the fair
market value on the grant date.

1f a non-employee director shall depart from the Board of directors as a result of death or disability, all unvested options
shall be accelerated to vest fully on the departure date, and be exercisable for a period of eighteen (18) months from the date
of departure from the Board of Directors.

If a non-employee director shall depart from the Board of Directors voluntarily, options granted in the Initial Option
Award shall be accelerated to be fully vested (if they are not already fully vested), all unvested options granted in the Basic
Option Award shall be accelerated to be fully vested on a prorated basis for years actually served, all options granted for
committee service shall be accelerated to be fully vested on a prorated basis for years actually served, and the vested options
shall be exercisable for a period of eighteen (18) months from the date of resignatdon from the Board.

If 2 non-employee Director shall depart from the Board of Directors for cause, there shall be no acceleration of unvested
options, and all unvested options shall terminate immediately upon the departure date. Vested options shall be exercisable for
twelve (12) months.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
The members of the Compensation Committee during fiscal 2007 were Mr. Watson and Ms. Clegp. During fiscal 2007

* none of the members of the Compensation Committee was an officer (or former officer) or employee of our company
or any of its subsidiaries;

* none of the members of the Compensation Committee had a direct or indirect material interest in any transaction in
which we were a participant and the amount involved exceeded $120,000;

* none of our executive officers served on the compensation committee {or another board committee with similar
functions or, if none, the entire board of directors) of another entity where one of that entity’s executive officers served
on our Compensation Committee;
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none of our execudve officers was a director of another entity where one of that entity’s executive officers served on
our Compensation Committee; and

none of our executive officers served on the compensation committee (or another board committee with similar

functons or, if none, the entire board of directors) of another entity where one of that entity’s executive officers served
as a director on our Board of Directors.
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PROPOSAL 2
RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP (“McGladrey”) served as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ended
December 31, 2007, and has been appointed by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors to continue as our
independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008, In the cvent that ratification of
this appointment of independent registered public accounting firm is not approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of
votes cast on the matter, then the appointment of our independent registered public accounting firm will be reconsidered by
the Audit Committee. Representatives of McGladrey are expected to be present at the Meeting to respond to appropriate
questions and will be given the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so.

Your ratification of the appointment of McGladrey as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2008 does not preclude the Audit Committee from terminating its engagement of McGladrey and
retaining a new independent registered public accounting firm, if it determines that such an action would be in our best
interest.

On October 6, 2006, the Board of Dircctors, at the recommendation of the Audit Committee, unanimously dismissed
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”) as our independent registered public accounting firm, and retained McGladrey. PwC
had been our independent registered public accounting firm since December 13, 2004 and PwC had been the independent
accountant for Innovative Drug Delivery Systems, Inc. (“IDDS™), our subsidiary, for more than five vears. PwC’s reports on
our financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 did nor contain an adverse opinion or a disclaimer
of opinion nor were such reports qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principle, except for an
emphasis of a matter paragraph relating to our recurring losses and limited capital resources, as described in Note 2 to our
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. During the period from the inception of the
engagement of PwC on December 13, 2004 through the October 6, 2006 termination of the engagement, (i) we had no
disagreements with PwC on any mater of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope
or procedure, which, if not resolved to Pw(C’s satsfaction, would have caused them to make reference to the subject matter of
the disagreement in connection with their reports on our financial statements for such years and (i) there were no reportable
events pursuant to ltem 304(a)(1)(v} of Regulation S-K.

As part of its dudes under the Audit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee reviews the continued retention of our
independent registered public accounting firm and recommends either continued retention or change to the Board of
Directors. During its review of PwC, the Audit Committee considered, among other things, that PwC had been the
independent accountants for IDDS more than five years and the move of our accounting and financial reporting personnel to
Cambridge, Massachusetts from New York, New York, and decided to recommend a change in our independent registered
public accounting firm.

During the period that PwC had acted as our independent registered public accounting firm, we did not consult with
McGladrey on cither application of accounting principles or type of audit opinion or any of the other matters specified in ltem
304(a)(2)(1) and (1) of Reguladon S-K.

We requested and received from PwC a letter, dated October 11, 2006, addressed to the SEC stating whether or not PwC
agrees with the above statements. A copy of the PwC letter is attached as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on October 13, 2006.

For each of the two fiscal vears ended December 31, 2007, the total fees billed to us by McGladrev and PwC for services
they rendered to us were as ser forth below. A portion of the audit fees for 2007 and 2006 were paid in 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

Audit Fees. The aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered in connection with: (i} the audit of our annual
financial statements; (i} the review of the financial statements included in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q) for the
quarters ended March 31, June 30 and September 30; (iii) consents and comfort letters issued in connection with equity
offerings; and (iv) services provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements were 3354487 for the
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fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 {of which $82,500 was billed by PwC and $271,987 was billed by McGladrey), and
§377,169 for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2006 (of which $207,169 was billed by PwC and $170,000 was billed by
McGladrey).

Auwndit-Related Fees, We did not incur any audit-related fees for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and December 31,
2006.

Tax Fees. Tax fees of $10,000 were billed to us by McGladrey for services rendered to us related to technical analysis of
research and development tax credits during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. We did not incur any tax fees for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

Al Other Fees. We did not incur any other fees for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006.
Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

Rules adopted by the SEC in order to implement the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 require public
company audit committees to pre-approve audit and non-audit services. The Audit Committee has pre-approved the provision
of audit and non-audit setvices by each independent registered public accounting firm for 2007 in accordance with its pre-
approval policy. The pre-approval policy requires management to submit annually for approval to the Audit Committee a plan
describing the scope of work and anticipated cost associated with each category of service. At each regular Audit Committee
meeting, management reports on services performed by our independent registered public accounting firm and the fees paid
or accrued through the end of the quarter preceding the meeting are discussed with management and representatives of our
independent registered public accounting firm.

We have considered and determined that the provision of the non-audit services provided by our independent registered
public accounting firms is compatible with maintaining each such firm’s independence.

Vote Required and Board of Directors’ Recommendation
Assuming a quorum is present, the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present at the Meeting and entitled to vote,
either in person or by proxy, is required for approval of Proposal No. 2. For purposes of the ratification of our independent

registered public accounting firm, abstentions will have the same effect as a vote against this proposal and broker non-votes
will have no effect on the result of the vote,

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE
FOR PROPOSAL NO. 2.
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PROPOSAL 3
AMENDMENT OF 2005 OMNIBUS STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

Overview

The Boatd of Directors has unanimously adopted, subject to stockholder approval at the Meeting, an amendment to the
2005 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (the “2005 Incentive Plan™) to: (i) increase the number of shares of Common Stock
authorized for issuance thereunder from 9,000,000 to 10,000,000 shares, and (ii) remove the restriction on the number of
incentive stock options that may be issued thereunder. Following approval of the amendments, the maximum number of
incentive stock options that may be issued under the 2005 Incentive Plan shall be equal to the maximum number of shares of
Common Stock that shall be available for grant under the 2005 Incentive Plan. The amendment is considered necessary and in
the best interests of our company and its long-term strategic growth to permit us to continue to attract, retain and motivate
officers, employees, non-employee directors and consultants.

Purposes of the Plan

The 2005 Incentive Plan is intended to provide qualifying employees, directors and consultants with equity ownership in
our company and our subsidiaries, thereby strengthening their commitment to our success, promoting the identity of interests
between our stockholders and such employees, directors and consultants and stimulating their efforts on behalf of our
company, and to assist us in attracting and retaining talented personnel. We believe that, assuming approval of this
amendment, the ratio of the number of shares available for optons under the 2005 Incentive Plan in reladon to the number of
outstanding shares of Common Stock would be within the range of such ratios for comparable companies.

As of April 28, 2008, there were approximately five executve officers, 42 employees and five non-employee directors of
our company who are participants in the 2005 Incentive Plan. Because participation in, and the types of awards that may be
made under, the 2005 Incentive Plan are subject to the discretion of the Compensation Committee, the future benefits or
amounts that will be received by any participant or groups of participants, including our directors, exccutive officers and other
employees, are not currently determinable. For information regarding option grants to current management, See “Executive
Compensation” above,

Grants

The 2005 Incentve Plan provides for the grant of stock options, stock appreciation rights (SARs) and direct stock grants
(*Awards”). These Awards may be granted for up to 9,000,000 shares of Common Stock, which upon stockholder approval of
this Proposal would be increased to 10,000,000 shares. Stock options are the right to purchase shares of our Common Stock at
a specified price, which may not be less than fair market value at time of grant, over a fixed period, subject to earlier
termination. SARs may be granted alone or in connection with another Award, such as a stock option or grant of restricted
stock, and provide for an appreciation distribution from us equal to the increase in the fair market value per share of Common
Stock from the price specified on the grant date. If granted in connection with another Award, exercise of the SAR will
generally require the surrender of the related reward. This appreciation difference may be made in cash or in shares of
Common Stock. Direct stock grants include the grant of performance shares which may be distributable to the holder based
on the achievement of specified performance targets, and the grant of bonus stock would not require purchase by the award
recipient. Any of the direct stock grants may be restricted stock, which is subject to forfeiture by the holder (or repurchase by
us) upon the occurrence of specified events, such as the holder’s cessation of service prior to a specified date.

To the extent any of the options or other stock awards granted under the 2005 Incentive Plan expire or are terminated
without being exercised, the shares unexercised thereunder may be subject to future grant under the 2005 Incentive Plan.

To date, all Awards under the 2005 Incentive Plan have been stock options. Our present intention is to grant only stock
options thereunder; however, other types of awards may be granted dependent on future tax and accounting considerations of
the grants.

As of the Record Date, we had granted options under the 2005 Incentive Plan to purchase an aggregate of 7,274,347 shares
of Common Stock at exercise prices ranging from $1.50 to $6.65 per share, expiring between June 14, 2008 and April 21, 2018.
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This includes options that had been granted by IDDS prior to its December 2004 merger with Intrac, Inc., our company’s
predecessor, that were assumed by Intrac upon the closing of that merger, adjusted as to the number of undetlying shares and
the exercise price for the merger ratio. The closing price of our common stock on the American Stock Exchange on April 25,
2008 was 32.85.

The Board of Directors believes that the 2005 Incentive Plan has been very advantageous in attracting and retaining
capable persons to serve as employees and directors of our company. Due to our dependency upon equity financings for our
capital needs, we seek to conserve our cash resources for use in connection with our research and development activities. This
cash conservation policy places limitations on cash compensation arrangements we can have with employees, including
executive officers and directors. To compete with other companies for qualified persons, many of which companies are better
financed than us, we have relied upon our option program to help us attract and incentivize our employees and directors.
Without having additional shares of Common Stock under our 2005 Incentive Plan to use for option grants to these persons,
our ability to ateract such new employees and directors could be adversely impacted, thereby adversely affecting our future.

Administration

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors administers the 2005 Incentive Plan. This Committee consists of
two members of the Board of Directors, each of whom qualifies as an “outside director” as defined for purposes of the
regulations under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code and as a “non-employee director” under Section (b)(3)({i) of
Rule 16b-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Each member of the
Compensation Committee also qualifies as an independent director under the rules of the American Stock Exchange. The
number of members of the Compensation Committee shall from time to time be increased or decreased, and shall be subject
to such conditions, in each case as the Board of Directors deems appropriate to permit transactions in shares pursuant to the
2005 Incentive Plan to satisfy such conditions of Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act and Section 162(m) of the Internal
Revenue Code as then in effect. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the 2005 Incentive Plan, the Committee may be
comprised of the entire Board of Directors.

Eligibility

The Compensation Committee may, in its discretion, grant Awards to any eligible person, whether or not he or she has
previously received an option, except in the case of (a) an incentive stock option (“1SO”), which can only be granted to an
employee of our company or any subsidiary and (b) the non-employee directors Automatic Option Grant Program, which is
self-cxecuting. Participation in the Automatic Option Grant Program is limited to persons who become and continue as non-
employee directors, whether through appointment by the Board of Directors or election by our stockholders.

Option Price and Terms

Options granted under the 2005 Incentive Plan may be either ISOs or non-qualified stock options (“NQSO”). The option
price of each share of Common Stock subject to an option will be fixed by the Committee but shall not be less than the fair
market value of the Common Stock on the date of grant of the option, defined as the average bid and ask price on the date of
grant. An option designated as an ISO is intended to qualify as such under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code. Thus,
the aggregate fair market value, determined at the dme of grant, of the shares with respect to which ISOs are exercisable for
the first time by an individual during any calendar year may not exceed $100,000. NQSOs are not subject to this requirement.
Certain adjustments in the option price may be made for extraordinary dividend distributions. The Committee determines the
option period, provided it is not longer than five years, in the case of ISOs granted to employees who hold 10% of the
outstanding stock, 10 years in the case of ISOs generally, or 10 years in the case of NQSOs, subject to eatlier termination, the
vesting period and the payment terms. In the event of termination of employment, the optionee may exercise his or her
options at any time within three months of the termination (which may be extended for up to 18 months), which period was
changed from one year from termination, but in no event later than the expiraton date of the opdon; however, if the
employee is terminated “for cause,” the option expires immediately, and options to non-employee directors may continue after
termination of their service. All options vest immediately upon a “Change of Control” of the Company. The Automatic
Option Grant is currently for 50,000 shares upon becoming a non-employee director and for 75,000 shares granted on 2
triennial basis thereafter, vesting one-third a year after one year, plus an annual grant of 20,000 shares to the Chairman of the
Board, 5,000 shares for serving on one or more committees, plus 5,000 shares for a committee chair and an addittonal 5,000
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shares for chair of the Audit Committee.

Upon exercise of an option, payment for shares may be made in cash or, if the option agreement so provides or the
Compensation Committee then permits, in shares of Common Stock calculated based upon their fair market value as of the
date of their delivery or a combination of stock and cash.

Modification and Termination of the Plan

The Compensation Committee may from time to time, in its discretion, amend the 2005 Incentive Plan without the
approval of shareholders, except (a) as such stockholder approval may be required under the listing requirements of any
securities exchange or national market system on which our equity securities are listed and (b) that the Committee may not
without the approval of our stockholders amend the 2005 Incentive Plan to increase the total number of shares reserved for
the purposes of the 2005 Incentve Plan.

The 2005 Incentive Plan shall continue in effect undl the earlier of July 2015, its termination by the Committee or the date
on which all of the shares of Common Stock available for issuance thereunder have been issued and all restictions on such
shares under the terms of the Plan and the agreements evidencing options granted thereunder have lapsed.

Adjustments

In the event any change is made to the Common Stock issuable under the 2005 Incentive Plan by reason of any stock splir,
stock dividend, combination of shares or recapitalization, appropriate adjustment will be made to the share reserve thereunder
and to the number of shares and the exercise price of the Common Stock subject to outstanding options. In the event of a
Change of Control (as defined in the 2005 Incentive Plan), the option agreements may provide that all unvested options may
vest upon the Change of Control. In addition, in the event of a Corporate Transaction or Hostile Takeover (as defined in the
2005 Incentive Plan), all unvested options may vest and, if applicable, such outstanding options may be assumed by any
SUCCESSOr entity.

Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following discussion outlines generally the current federal income tax consequences of the 2005 Incentive Plan.
Applicable tax laws and their interpretations are subject to change at any time and applicadon of such laws may vary in
individual circumstances.

Incentive Stock Options

A recipient who is granted an incentive stock option does not recognize taxable income upon the grant or exercise of the
option. However, the difference between the fair market value of our Common Stock on the date of exercise and the option
exercise price is a tax preference item that may subject the recipient to alternative minimum tax. A recipient generally will
receive long-term capital gain or loss treatment on the disposition of shares acquired upon exercise of the option, provided
that the disposition occurs more than two years from the date the option is granted, and the recipient holds the stock acquired
for more than one year. A recipient who disposes of shares acquired by exercise prior to the expiration of the forgoing holding
periods realizes ordinary income upon the dispositon equal to the difference between the option price and the lesser of the
fair market value of the shares on the date of exercise and the disposition price. Any appreciation between the fair market
value of the shares on the date of exercise and the disposition price is taxed to the recipient as long or short-term capital gain,
depending on the length of the holding period. To the extent the recipient recognizes ordinary income, our company receives
a corresponding tax compensation deduction.

Nongqualified Stock Options

A recipient will not recognize income upon the grant of a nonqualified option. Upon exercise, the recipient will recognize
ordinary income equal to the excess of the fair market value of the stock on the date of exercise over the price paid for the
stock. Qur company is entitled to a tax compensation deduction equal to the ordinary income recognized by the recipient. Any
taxable income recognized by a recipient in connection with an option exercise is subject to income and employment tax
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withholding, When the recipient disposes of shares acquired by the exercise of a nonqualified option, any amount received in
excess of the fair market value of the shares on the date of exercise will be treated as capital gain. Dispositions made after one
year from the exercise date will be treated as long-term capital gain. Dispositions made less than one year from the exercise
date will be treated as short-term capital gain.

Code Section 162(m)

Code Section 162(m) denies a federal income tax deduction for certain compensation in excess of $1 million per year paid
to the chief executive officer and the four other most highly paid executive officers of a publicly traded corporation. Certain
types of compensation, including compensation based on performance criteria that are approved in advance by stockholders,
are excluded from the computation of the deduction limit. Options and SARs granted under the 2005 Incentive Plan are
excluded from the computation of the deduction limit and the Compensation Committee can cause other awards under the
2005 Incentive Plan to be similarly excluded from the computation of the deduction limit by conditioning the grant or vesting
upon specified performance goals.

Other Options

In addition to options granted under the 2005 Incentive Plan, as of the Record Date, we had outstanding non-Plan options
for the purchase of an aggregate of 1,184,058 shares at an exercise price of $3.87 per share, terminating through January 2011.
These options had been granted by IDDS prior to its merger into Intrac in December 2004. Intrac assumed these options
upon the closing of that merger, and we assumed them upon the closing of the merger of Intrac into Javelin in September
2005.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides aggregate information as of December 31, 2007 about Common Stock that may be issued
upon the exercise of options under our equity compensation plans, including the 2005 Incentive Plan.

Number of securities to be  Weighted average

issued upon exercise of exercise price of Number of securities
outstanding options,  outstanding options, remaining available
Plan Category warrants and right warrants and rights  for future issnance
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 5,845,797 $3.38 2,614,065 (1)
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders 1,106,444 $3.87 0
Total: 6,952,241 $3.46 2,614,065 (1)

(1) Includes 100,000 shares of Common Stock available for future issuance under the 2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
Vote Required and Board of Directors’ Recommendation

Assuming a quorum is present, the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present at the Meetng and entitled to vote,
either in person or by proxy, is required for approval of Proposal No. 3. For purposes of the amendment to our 2005
Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan, abstentions will have the same effect as a vote against this proposal and broker non-votes will
have no effect on the result of the vote.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE
FOR PROPOSAL NO. 3
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BOARD INFORMATION
Board Meetings

The Board of Directors held 12 meetings, either in person or by telephone, in 2007. In addition, the Board of Directors
unanimously approved seven written consents on matters between meetings. During 2007, each incumbent director attended
at least 75% of the aggregate number of mectings of the Board of Directors and applicable commitice meetings (held during
the period for which he or she was a director) on which he or she served, except for Neil W, Flanzraich. We do not have a
formal policy regarding attendance by members of the Board of Directors at the annual meeting of stockholders, but we
strongly encourage all members of the Board of Directors to attend the Meeting and expect such attendance except in the
event of extraordinary circumstances. All members of the Board of Directors at the time of our annual meeting of
stockholders held on June 26, 2007 attended such annual meeting.

Board Committees

Our Board of Directors currently has three standing committees which, pursuant to delegated authority, perform various
duties on behalf of and report to the Board of Directors: (i} Audit Committee, (i) Compensation Committee and (iii)
Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee. From tme to time, the Board of Directors may establish other
committees.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for: (i) overseeing the corporate accounting and financial reporting practices; (i)
recommending the selection of our registered public accounting firm; (ii) reviewing the extent of non-audit services to be
performed by the auditors; and (iv) reviewing the disclosures made in our periodic financial reports. The members of the
Audit Committee are Jackie M. Clegg, Douglas G. Watson and Neil W. Flanzraich, each of whom is an independent director
within the meaning of the rules of the American Stock Exchange and Rule 10A-3 promulgated by the SEC under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). In addition, the Board of Directors has determined that
each member of the Audit Committee qualifies as an Audit Committee Financial Expert under applicable SEC Rules. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee is Ms. Clegg. The Audit Committee held seven meetings during 2007. The Audit
Committee carries out its responsibilities in accordance with the terms of its Audit Committee Charter, a copy of which is
attached as Appendix A to this Proxy Statement.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee determines matters pertaining to the compensation of executive officers and other
significant employees, and administers our stock and incentive plans. The members of the Compensation Committee are
Douglas G. Watson and Jackie M. Clegg. The Chairman of the Compensation Committee is Mr. Watson. The Compensation
Committee held one meeting during 2007. Each of the members of the Compensation Committee is a “non-employee
director” within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act, and an “outside director” within the meaning of Section
162(m) under the Internal Revenue Code. The Compensation Cominittee carries out its responsibilities pursuant to a written
charter, a copy of which was attached as Appendix B to the Proxy Statement, dated June 1, 2007, for the 2007 Annual
Meeting.

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee

The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee establishes internal corporate policies and nominates persons to
serve on our Board of Directors. The members of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee as of December 31,
2007 were Douglas G. Watson and Jackie M. Clegg. On March 19, 2008, Peter D. Kiernan, III accepted an invitation to join
the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, on which he currently serves along with Mr. Watson and Ms. Clegg.
‘The Chairman of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee is Mr. Watson. A copy of this Committee’s Charter
was attached as Appendix A to the Proxy Statement, dated June 20, 2006, for the 2006 Annual Meeting, This Committee held
two meetings during 2007. See “Director Nominations” below for the procedures for the nomination of directors.
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Director Nominations

The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee secommends director candidates and will consider for such
recommendation director candidates proposed by management, other directors and stockholders. All director candidates will
be evaluated based on the criteria identified below, regardless of the idendty of the individual or the entity or person who
proposed the director candidate.

In accordance with our By-Laws, to nominate a director for election to the Board of Directors at an annual meeting of
stockholders, a stockholder must deliver timely written notice of such nomination to the Sccretary of the Company. To be
timely, the notice must be delivered not fewer than 90 days nor more than 120 days prior to the first anniversary of the
preceding year’s annual meeting; provided that if the date of the annual meeting is more than 30 days before or more than 70
days after the anniversary date, the notice must be delivered not carlier than 120 days nor later than 90 days prior to such
annual meeting or the 10th day following the date on which we make public announcement of the meeting date. The notice
must set forth:

. the name, age and address of the stockholder;

. the principal occupation or employment of such person;

. the class and number of shares of our securities beneficially owned by such person;

. all other information related to such person as is required to be disclosed under SEC proxy disclosure rule 14A;
and

. a consent by such person to be named in the proxy statement.

The selection of director nominees includes consideration of factors deemed appropriate by the Corporate Governance
and Nominating Committee and the Board of Directors. We may engage a firm to assist in identfying, evaluating, and
conducting due diligence on potential board nominees. Factors will include integrity, achievements, judgment, intelligence,
personal character, any prior contact or relatdonship between a candidate and a current or former director or officer of the
Company, the interplay of the candidate’s relevant experience with the experience of other Board members, the willingness of
the candidate to devote adequate time to Board duties and the likelihood that he or she will be willing and able to serve on the
Board of Directors for a sustained period. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee will consider the
candidate’s independence, as defined by the rules of the SEC and the American Stock Exchange. In connection with the
selection, due consideration will be given to the Board’s overall balance of diversity of perspectives, backgrounds, and
experiences. Experience, knowledge, and skills to be represented on the Board of Directors include, among other
considerations, financial experdse (including an “audit committee financial expert” within the meaning of the SEC’s rules),
pharmaceutical expertise and/or medical knowledge and contacts, financing experience, strategic planning, business
development, and community leadership. '

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of our employees and officers, and the members of our
Board of Directors. The Code of Conduct and Ethics is available on our website at www.javelinpharmaceuticals.com. Printed
copies are available upon request without charge. Any amendment to or waiver of the Code of Conduct and Ethics will be
disclosed on our website promptly following the date of such amendment or waiver.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our executive officers and directors, and petsons who own more than 10% of 2
registered class of our equity securities (“Reporting Persons”), to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the
SEC and with the American Stock Exchange. The Reporting Persons are also required to furnish us with copies of all such
reports. Based solely on our review of the reports received by us, and written representations from certain Reporting Persons
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that no other reports were required for those persons, we believe that, during the year ended December 31, 2007, the
Reporting Persons met all applicable Section 16(a) filing requirements.

Stockholder Communications with the Board

Stockholders wishing to communicate with the Board of Directors may send correspondence directed to the Board, care of
Douglas G. Watson, Chairman, 125 CambridgePark Drive, Cambndge, MA 02140. Mr. Watson will review all correspondence
addressed to the Board of Directors, or any individual Board member, for any inappropriate correspondence and
correspondence more suitably directed to management. He will summarize all correspondence not forwarded to the Board and
make the correspondence available to the Board of Directors for its review at the Board’s request. Mr. Watson will forward
stockholder communications to the Board of Directors prior to the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board following
the receipt of the communication as appropriate. Correspondence intended for our independent directors as a group should
be addressed to us at the address above, Attenrion: Independent Directors.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board is comprised of three non-employee Directors, each of whom has been determined by
the Board to be “independent” under the meaning of Rule 10A-3(b)(1} under the Exchange Act. Each member of this
Committee is an audit committee financial expert within the meaning of Irem 401(h) of SEC Regulaton $-K. The Audit
Committee assists the Board’s oversight of the integrity of our financial reports, compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the qualifications and independence of our independent registered public accountng firm, the audit process, and
internal controls. The Audit Committee operates pursuant to a written charter adopted by the Board. The current Audit
Committee charter is attached as Appendix A to this Proxy Statement. The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing our
corporate accounting and financial reporting practices, recommending the selection of our registered public accounting firm,
reviewing the extent of non-audit services to be performed by the auditors, and reviewing the disclosures made in our periodic
financial reports. The Audit Committee also reviews and recommends to the Board that the audited financial statements be
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The Audit Committee: (1) reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007
with management; (2) discussed with the independent auditors the matters required to be discussed by SAS 61 (Codification of
Statements on Auditing Standards), as may be modified or supplemented; and (3) received the written disclosures and the
letter from the independent accountants required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Standards
Board Standard No. 1, Independence Discussions with Audit Committees), as may be modified ot supplemented, and has
discussed with the independent accountant its independence.

Based on the review and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee had recommended to the Board of Directors
that the audited financial statements be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2007 for filing with the SEC.

The foregoing report has been furnished in April 2008 by the members of the Audit Committee, being:
Jackie M. Clegg, Chair
Douglas G. Watson
Neil W. Flanzraich
The foregoing Audit Committee Report does not constitute soliciting material and shall not be deemed filed or

incorporated by reference into any other Company filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent
that we specifically incorporate this Audit Committee Report by reference therein.
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STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

If you wish to have a proposal included in our proxy statement and form of proxy for next year’s annual meeting in
accordance with Rule 142-8 under the Exchange Act, your proposal must be received by us at our principal executive offices
on or before December 31, 2008. A proposal which is received after that date or which otherwise fails to meet the
requirements for stockholder proposals established by the SEC will not be included. The submission of a stockholder proposal
does not guarantee that it will be included in the proxy statement.

OTHER MATTERS

As of the date of this Proxy Statement, the Board of Directors has no knowledge of any business which will be presented
for consideration at the Meeting other than the election of directors, the ratification of the appointment of the independent
registered public accounting firm and the amendment of the 2005 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan. Should any other matters be
propetly presented, it is intended that the enclosed proxy will be voted in accordance with the best judgment of the persons
voting the proxies.

It is important that the proxies be returned promptly and that your shares be represented at the Meeting. Stockholders are
urged to mark, date, execute and promptly return the accompanying proxy card in the enclosed envelope.

April 30, 2008 By Order of the Board of Directors

David B. Bernstein
Secretary
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Appendix A
JAVELIN PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

CHARTER FOR THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Purpose:

The purpose of the Audit Committee (the “Committee™) established pursuant to this Charter is to make such examinations
as are necessary to monitor the cotporate financial reporting and the internal and external audits of Javelin Pharmaceuticals,
Inc. and its subsidiades (the “Company™), to approve policies relating to internal controls, to provide to the Board of
Directors (the “Board™) the results of its examinations and recommendations derived therefrom, to outine to the Board
improvements made or to be made in internal accounting controls, to nominate independent auditors and to provide to the
Board such additional information and materials as it may deem necessary to make the Board aware of significant financial
matters that may require Board attention.

In addidon, the Committec shall have the authority to undertake the specific duties and responsibilities listed below and the
authority to undertake such other specific duties as the Board from time to time may prescribe.

The Committee shall assist the Board in fulfilling the Board’s responsibility to the Company and its stockholders relating to
its oversight of management and its auditors in respect of corporate accoundng, financial reporting practices, and the quality
and integrity of the financial reports of the Company, including the Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, its registered public accounting firm’s (the “independent auditor”) qualifications and independence, the
performance of the Company’s internal audit function and independent auditors, and the preparation of the report required by
the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) to be included in the Company’s annual proxy
staternent.

It is not the role of the Committee to plan or conduct audits, to guarantee the accuracy or quality of the Company’s
financial statements or to determine that the financial statements are in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable laws and regulations. These are the responsibilitics of management, the independent auditors and the
internal auditors. It is the responsibility of the Committee to maintain regular and open communication among the directors,
the independent auditors, the internal auditors, and the financial management of the Company.

Membership:

The Committee shall consist of at least three (3) members of the Board, each of whom is independent of management and
the Company. The Comimittee may select among themselves a chairperson to preside ar the meetings, provided that the
chairperson shall be rotated among its members every three (3) years. The Committce members shall be financially literate and,
o the extent reasonably practicable, at least one member shall be a financial expert, as defined by the Commission. The
members of the Committee shall be appointed by, and shall, serve at the discretion of, the Board.

Responsibilities:
The primary responsibility of the Committee is to oversee the Company’s financial reporting process on behalf of the

Board and report to the results of its activities to the Board. The Committee shall have the authority to undertake the
following duties and responsibilities:

Generally:

1. Discussing with the Company’s independent auditors their independence from management and the Company and the
matters to be included in the written disclosures required by applicable oversight agencies and boards.
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2. Reviewing and consulting with the Company’s independent auditors concerning the adequacy of the Company’s system
of internal controls, policies and procedures, and approving policies relating to internal controls and protection of
asscts.

3. Reviewing and consulting with the Company’s independent auditors concerning organizational structure and
qualifications of the Company’s internal audit function to the extent that the size and operations of the Company
warrant this function.

4,  Approving fee arrangements with the independent auditors.

5. Priot to the annual independent audit, reviewing with the independent auditors and management the auditors’
proposed audit scope and approach, the areas of audit emphasis and the staffing of the audit.

‘ 6. At least annually, reviewing the Committee’s Charter for any necessary revisions and referring all such revisions to the
' Board.

Financial Statement and Disclosure Matters:

‘ 7. Conducting a post-audit review of the financial statements and audit findings, including any significant suggestions for

improvements provided to management by the independent auditors, the form and content of the Company’s financial
statements and disclosures and the required communications from the independent auditors under generally accepted
auditng standards and any applicable Commission regulations.

8. Reviewing the interim financial statements with management and the independent auditors prior to the filing of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB, including discussing the results of the quarterly review and any other
matters required to be communicated to the Committee by the independent auditors.

9. Reviewing with management and the independent auditors the financial statements to be included in the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-KSB, including their judgment about the quality not just acceptability of accounting
principles, the reasonableness of significant judgments, and the clarity of the disclosures in the financial statements.
Also, the Committee shall discuss the results of the annual audit and any other matters required to be communicated to
the Committee by the independent audirors under generally accepted auditing standards.

10. At least annually, affirming in the proxy statement the existence of the Audit Committee and compliance with the
Charter.

11. At least triennially, causing the Committee’s Charter to be attached to the annual proxy statement.

12, Reviewing with senior management and the independent auditors the Company’s accounting and financial personnel
TeSOUrces.

Oversight of the Company’s Relationship with the Independent Auditor:

13. Reviewing the performance of the independent auditors and ensuring the rotation of the lead {or coordinating) audit
partner having primary responsibility for reviewing the audit as required by law.

14. Reviewing and recommending to the Board the selection and retention of independent auditors and considering
whether, in order to assure continuing auditor independence, it is appropriate to adopt a policy of rotating the
independent anditing firm on a regular basis.

15. Review the disclosures made to the Committee by the Company’s CEO and CFO during their certification process for
the Form 10-K and Form 10-Q about any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls or
material weaknesses therein and any fraud involving management or other employees who have a significant role in the
Company’s internal controls.
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

22,

Obtaining and reviewing a report from the independent auditor at least annuaily regarding (a) the independent auditor’s
internal quality control procedures, (b) any material issues raised by the most recenc internal quality contro] review, or
peer review, of the firm, or by any inquiry or investigation by governmental or professional authorities within the
preceding five years respecting one or more independent audits carried out by the firm, (c) any steps taken to deal with
any such issues, and (d) all relationships between the independent auditor and the Company:.

Evaluating the qualifications, performance and independence of the independent auditor, including considering
whether the auditor’s quality controls are adequate and the provision of permitted non-audit services is compatible
with maintaining the auditor’s independence, and taking into account the opinions of management and internal
auditors. The Committee shall review and approve such non-audit services to be performed by the independent
auditors. The Committee may delegate such approval to one or more of its members. The Committee shall present its
opinions of management and internal auditor to the Board.

Reviewing and consulting with the Company’s independent auditors concerning compliance with Commission
requirements for disclosure of auditors’ services and Committee members and activities.

Providing a forum for the independent auditors to meet in closed session with the Committee.

Receiving and reviewing the response of the management of the Company to any management letter or report from
the independent auditors.

Reviewing the extent of non-audit services to be performed by the independent auditors for the Company.

Reviewing any dispute between management and the independent auditors and recommending action to the Board.

Compliance Qversight Responsibilities:

23,

24.

25,

26.

27.

28.

29.

Discussing with management and the independent auditor any cotrespondence with regulators or governmental
agencies and any published reports which raise material issues regarding the Company’s financial statements or
accounting policies.

Discussing with the Company’s general counsel legal matters that may have a material impact on the Company’s
financial statements or compliance policies.

Providing oversight and review of the Company’s asset management policies, including an annual review of the
Company’s investment policies and performance for cash and short-tesm investments, and approving such policies.

Insttuting, if necessary, special investigations and, if appropriate, hiring special counsel or experts to assist such
investigations.

Reviewing related party transactions for potential conflicts of interest and making recommendations to the Board with
respect thereto.

Establishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding
accounting, internal controls and auditing, and the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of concerns

regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

Performing other oversight functions as requested by the full Board.

In addition to the above responsibilities, the Committee shall undertake such other duties as the Board delegates to it, and
shall report, at least annually, to the Board regarding the Committee’s examinations and recommendations,
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Meetings:

The Committee shall meet as often as it determines, but not less frequently than quarterly. Each meeting may include an
executive session that will allow the Committee to maintain free and open communications with the Company’s independent
auditors.

"The Committee shall meet separately with the Chief Executive Officer and separately with the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company at least annually to review the financial affairs of the Company. The Committee shall meet with the independent
auditors of the Company, at such times as it deems appropriate, to review the independent auditor’s examination and
management report. The Committee may request any officer or employee of the Company or the Company’s outside counsel
ot independent auditor to attend a meeting of the Committee or to meet with any member of, or consultant to, the
Committee.

The Committee is authorized, by majority vote at an in-person meeting ot by unanimous written consent of its members,
to adopt its own rules of procedure, including the formalities of calling, noticing and holding meetings, (meeting physically or
by telephonic or other electronic means) and for the taking of action of the Committee by vote at any such meeting or by
unanimous written consent of the members thereof, and that unless and until any such procedures are formally adopted by the
Committee, the procedures with respect to calling, noticing and holding meetings of the Committee and conducting business
of the Committee shall be the same as those provided in the By-laws of the Company with respect to calling, noticing and
holding meetings of and taking action by the Board.

Reports:

The Committee may present its summaries of recommendations to the Board in written or oral form. The Committee
recommendations shall be incorporated as a part of the minutes of the Board meeting at which those recommendations are
presented.

Minutes:

The Committee will maintain written minutes of its meetings, which minutes will be filed with the minutes of the meetings
of the Board.

Other:

The Committee shall have the right, as and when it shall determine to be necessary or appropriate to the functions of the
Committee:

1. at the Company’s expense and not at the expense of the members thereof, to retain counsel (which may be, but need
not be, the regular corporate counsel to the Company) and other advisors to assist it in connection with its functions;
and :

2. to request, and to rely upon, advice, orally or in writing, from the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company and from any representative of the independént auditors to the Company participating in such
independent auditors’ engagement by the Company, concerning aspects of the operation or financial condition of the
Company relevant to the functions of the Committee.

The officers of the Company are requested to cooperate with the Committee and to render assistance to it as it shall
request in carrying out its functions.
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Javelin Pharmacenticals, Ine. 2007 Annual Report

Byloject®—Javelin's first commercial product—that was officially launched in January 2008—is being marketed in England and
Scotland, where it is well positioned to take market share from the existing more cumbersome diclofenac competitor in the
marketplace. Diclofenac belongs io the class of drugs known as nonstercidal anti-inflalmmatory drugs (NSAIDs) and is widely
prescribed fo treat post-operative pain due to its combination of effectiveness and tolerabiiity. Diclofenac is the #1 injectable NSAID

in the United Kingdom.

NSAIDs offer several advantages over opioids for the management of acute and post operative pain—they have limited effect
on the central nervous system, do not depress respiration and are non-sedating. In addition, NSAIDs are also useful for patients
who cannol take opioids. Given the worldwide increase in day surgeries, NSAIDs--such as Dyloject~—can provide pain relief
without delaying patient discharge from the hospital, Dyloject can also be combined with cpicids to reduce the amount of opioid
required to relieve pain. This makes Dyloject particularly well suited for same-day and short-stay surgery—a growing area of the |
surgical markaet.

Dyloject represents a significant improvemeni over conventional injectable diclofenac because its unique formulation greatly
increases the solubility of the drug, which makes it possible to be administered intravenously for the first time as a single bolus
injection and at lower doses.
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In the United States, Javelin has three late-stage drug candidates in developmeni—Dyloject™ (injectable diclofenac), PMI-150 (intranasal
ketamine} and Rylomine™ (intranasal morphine). In Europe, Dyloject was approved and marketed in late December 2007,
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Dear Shareholders,

Since becoming CEQ of Javelin in March of this year, | have taken aclions to position Javelin to
deliver on the mission for our Company—become a leader in the development of innovative prod-
ucts to treat pain and human suffering.

in my first few weeks on the job as your CEO, | have refined Javelin's commercializetion strategy
to focus on the estabiishment of global partnerships for our product portfolio. Moreover, | requested
that the Javelin Board establish a Strategic Commercialization and Partnering Commitiee consisting
of Directors with considerable experience and success in establishing pharmaceutical partnerships,
polstered our Drug Development group and raised approximately $256.7 milion doliars net in an
equity financing to strengthen the Company’s balance sheet.

The market approval of Dyloject in the United Kingdom in late 2007 was a landmark event for Javelin Pharmaceuticals.
This major marker approval for a Javelin product demonstrates the capability of our Company to effectively execute the
Company mission and gain regulatory acceprance for our pain products portfolio. Early market experience in the UK,
indicates that Dyloject is an innovarive and effective addition to the physician’s armamentarium to treat pain. We will
work diligently in an effort to develop Javelin's pain portfolio in a timely and effective manner for additional market

approvals throughout the world.

I plan to continue to evaluare our allocation of capital to ensure that we devote our organization’s attention and resources
primarily toward the late-stage development efforts for the Javelin portfolio. We anticipate that the commercialization of
our portfolio will be driven, in large part, by global partnerships that we will seek to establish with leading pharmaceutical
companies. | believe this strategy will benefit our shareholders by reducing our commercialization risks, strengthening our
financial resources, and enhancing the market acceptance of our products. I have been focused personally on this effort
and have expanded the resources devoted to our broad business development discussions. We hired a new Vice
President of Business Development in the early months of 2008, who will work closely with me as we seek ro rake advantage

of the intensifying interest in global partnerships for our products,
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Further, | am working closely with our Manufacturing and Quality Assurance groups to reduce our cost of goods, maintain

the highest standards of quality and achieve maximum value for each of our products as they reach the marker.

The global pain market represents over 30 billion dellars annually. We have a significant opportunity before us with three
late-stage products well positioned for treatment of pain. Javelin’s products address specialty markets that are attractive
to many medium size and large pharmaceutical marketing partners looking to capture an attractive share of this growing
market. There is a strong demand for new and improved non-opioid analgesics and Javelin is well positioned to benefit

from this rrend.

I look forward to speaking with or meeting many of your throughout 2008 and to reporting our progress as we execute
our clinical and business objectives for the remainder of the year. | want to personally thank you for your patience, support

and confidence in Javelin’s future on behalf of myself and my colleagues.

Sincerely,

Martin J. Driscoll
Chief Exeeutive Officer

Javelin Pharmaceuricals, Inc.
May 2008




Looking Forward/Strategic Focus

2007 was a milestone year for Javelin concluding with the launch of our first commercial product, Dyloject®, in the United

Kingdom, where we established a dedicated hospital sales force of approximately 12 seasoned professionals.

In the United States, Javelin continues to effectively advance all three of our acute pain products through the stages of

clinical development.

Recent Key Achievements

* Dyloject®
* U.K. approval, launch, inittal formulary inclusion
& first orders
+ Favarable U.K. Reference Pricing; Scottish
Medicines Consortium approval Q1/08
¢ Commercial Supply Agreements (Precision, Baxter)
» EU Patent Issuance extends exclusivity to 2024

* Dyloject™
¢ Successful Pivotal Phase 3 trial

# Initiated second of two Pivotal Phase 3 trials

* Successful results from Phase 1 plateler study

* PMI-150 (intranasal ketamine)

¢ Initiated Pivotal Phase 3 breakthrough cancer pain
study for second indication

¢ U.5. Patent Issuance extends exclusivity to 2023

* Rylomine™

e Successfuliy completed first of two Pivotal Phase

3 studics

¢ Added to Russell 2000, 3000, Microcap &
Global Indexes

All three of Javelin’s product candidates are indicated for treatment of acute moderate-to-severe pain and are complemen-
tary to one another. Qur goal is to develop differentiated pain control products that can be used separately or in combination
to provide the flexibility and versatility required to address the limitations of existing prescription pain medications in

medically supervised healthcare settings.

Qur products are ideally positioned for large addressable markets, with global partnering a top priority for Javelin in 2008,
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PARTL

ITEM 1. BUSINESS. : ‘
Background

Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. is engaged in the research, development and commercialization of products for the pain management
Pt

market. Unless the context otherwise requires, all references in this report to “Javelin”, “Company”, “we”, “us” or “our” include Javelin
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and any subsidiaties ot other entities controlled by us.

Javelin was incorporated in July 2005 in the State of Delaware by Intrac, Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Intrac™), for the purpose of
migrating the Inwac corporate entity to Delaware. The migratory merger became effective in September 2005. In December 2004,
Innovative Drug Delivery Systems, Inc. (“IDDS”), then a private operating corporation, merged with Intrac, then a public reporting “shell”
company, for the purpose of conducting the IDDS operations in a public entity. Intrac had been formed in September 2600 and had no
active business operations between 2001 and December 2004. Following the Intrac-IDDS merger, the IDDS operations became the
business of Intrac, and certain of the executive officers and directors of TDDS became cur executive officers and directors. As a result of
the migratory merger, IDDS became a wholly-owned subsidiaty of Javelin. In July 2006, our commoen stock was listed on the American
Stock Exchange . The shares of common stock described in this report give effect to the Intrac-IDDS merger and the migratory merger.

Overview

We are a specialty pharmaceutical company that applies proprietary technologies to develop new products and improved formulations
of existing drugs that target current unmet and underserved medical needs primarily in the pain management market. We are developing
and have begun to market simple and uset-friendly products, involving new modes and routes of delivery for drugs optimized for relieving
moderate-to-severe pain. In doing so, we intend to offer novel propretary products that in some cases can be administered in a less
invasive, more convenient tnanner and generally should offer either improved safety or efficacy, or both, as compared to currendy
marketed formulations. In addition, the product choices currently available for the treatment of moderate-to-severe pain are limited in the
doses that may be given due to side effects, including cardiovascular depression, tolerance and addiction, respiratory depression,
constipation, sedation and general diminution of quality of life. Our product candidares are focused on treating a variety of pain disorders
ranging from acute and episodic moderate-to-severe pain associated with breakthrough cancer pain, post-operative pain, post-trauma pain
such as orthopedic injury pain, procedural pain and burn pain. We believe that our products, assuming regulatory approvals, will offer
patients and the medical community significant benefits and altetnatives to the prescription pain medications available to pain sufferers
today. oo

Our plan of clinical operations for the next 12 months involves conducting the necessary research and development to further advance
of our product, Dyloject™ (injectable diclofenac) and our two product candidates, PMI-150 (intranasal ketamine) and Rylomine™
(intranasal morphine),-along the drug development and regulatory approval process, The existing formulations of these parent drugs,
including eral diclofenac, injectable ketamine, and oral and injectable morphine, are well-known prescription medications with well-
documented profiles of safety, efficacy and cost-effectiveness.

Our development program is designed to support global product registration, although special emphasis is placed upon U.S. and
European filings for drug approval and product registration, In QOctober 2007, Dyloject was approved for marketing in the U.K,, and we
received pricing for this approved product in November 2007, The product is beginning to enter formularies in the UK, and we have
initiated filings for marketing approval in certain other European countries via the Mutual Recognition Process. Currently, Rylomine,
Dyloject and PMI-150 have completed the Phase 2 product development stage based upon the ULS, regulatory classification. Rylomine and
Dyloject have successfully completed Phase 3 trials in 2007, and in each case await results from 2 single Phase 3 efficacy trial necessary
before filing a New Drug Application (“NDA”}. Similarly, we presently anticipate that only one multi-dose Phase 3 efficacy trial will be
needed prior to submission of the NDA for PMI-150. Over the coming year, development activity will focus on fulfilling the
manufacturing requirements and generating the necessary preclinical and clinical data to support the submission packages outlined at our
End-of-Phase 2 meetings at the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) for Rylomine and Dyloject in the first half of 2006, our pre-
Phase 3 FDA meeting for PMI-150 in January 2007, and our pre-NDA FDA meeting for PMI-150 in November 2007.




All three of our product candidates are in late stage development as shown below:

Productcandidace _ Indication _ Development stage
Dyloject Post-operative pain Phase 3 (U.S.)

(injectable diclofenac) Post-operative pain, anti-inflammatory MHRA Pricing Approval Received (U.K))
Mutual Recognition Process {other
European Union countries)

PMI-150 Acute pain Phase 3 (U.5)
(intranasal ketamine)

Rylomine Acute moderate-to-severe pain Phase 3 (U.S.)
(intranasal morphine)

Dyloject (diclofenac sodivm injectable)

Dyloject is an injectable formulation of diclofenac. Diclofenac is a prescription nonsteroidal anti-inflammatory drug (“NSAID”) that is
widely prescribed to treat post-operative pain due to its combination of effectiveness and tolerability. There still exists an underserved
medical need for a safe and effective injectable NSAID in the hospital sewing, For example, ketorolac tromethamine is an injectable
NSAID that had significant sales prior to the FDA’s imposing a black box warning limiting the combined duration of intravenous plus oral
use to five days because of the risk of serious adverse events. Similar adverse events, including mortalicy, led to it being taken off the
market in France and Germany. Oral diclofenac (marketed as Voltaren®) can be used safely in excess of five days and has a safety profile
that is considered superior to oral ketorolac. Diclofenac is currently approved for use in the U.S. in a variety of oral formulations as well as
a topical and ophthalmic formulation. An injectable formulation of diclofenac (Voltarol®) is commercially available in Europe, but has
significant drawbacks, including the need to buffer and dilute it at the pharmacy and a lengthy infusion period (over thirty minutes). The
development of injectable formulations of diclofenac has been limited by its poor solubility. We believe that the proprietary formulation of
injectable diclofenac that we are developing has the potential to overcome these issues and to provide an effective and safe treatment of
modetate-to-severe acute pain.

In July 2005, we announced that we had met our primary endpoint in the pivotal European Phase 2/3 study for Dyloject. In September
2005, at the European Society of Regional Anaesthesia and Pain Therapy annual meeting, we presented comptehensive results of this
randomized, double-blind, placebo- and comparator-conttolled Phase 2/3 pivotal clinical trial comparing the safety, efficacy and
therapeutic equivalency of Dyloject to Voltarol®. The Marketing Authorization Application (“MAA”) submission for approval to sell
Dyloject in Europe was filed in September 2005, and was accepted for review in October 2005. In October 2007, we announced that we
received marketing authorizaton approval in the United Kingdom for Dyloject. In November 2007, we received pricing approval for
Dyloject from the UK. Department of Health Pharmaceutical Price Regulation Scheme, as well as notification of our first U.K. hospital
formulary approval. As of February 1, 2008, Dyloject has generated orders from 26 different U.K. hospitals, with 10 reordering product.
Now that we have entered the commercial phase of Dyloject in the UK., we antcipate announcing attendant revenues with respect to the
first quarter of 2008. We continue to take the necessary steps to facilitate mutual recognition of Dyloject in, and a subsequent product
launch, including distribution, marketing and sales activities, in Germany and cermain other European countries. We intend to file additional
marketing applications through the mumal recognition process in a number of European Union {*EU”) member countries during the
second half of 2008, There can be no assurance as to whether or when such applications in the remaining European countries will be
approved. The U.S. development program for Dyloject has required additional studies beyond those sufficient for European MAA because
no injectable diclofenac product has yet been marketed in the U.S.

In January 2006, we announced that we had met our primary endpoint of a linear dose response for pain relief over six hours in a Phase
Zb U.S. stmudy of Dyloject. The preliminary results of this randomized, double-blind, placebo- and comparator-controlled clinical trial
comparing the safety and efficacy of Dyloject to intravenous ketorclac demonstrated that patients with moderate-to-severe pain after oral
surgery who received Dyloject or intravenous ketorolac experienced statistically significant pain relief over six hours compared to patients
who received a placebo. In addition, approximately five minutes after intravenous injection, Dyloject demonstrated superior onset of pain
relief compared to ketorolac as measured by statistcally significant reductdons in pain intensity and pain relief using both the VAS and
categortical scales. In September 2006, we announced at “Europe Against Pain,” the annual meeting of EFIC (the European Federation of
Chapters of the Internadonal Association for the Study of Pain) that the minimally effective dose of Dyloject in this srudy was 3.75mg,
which is an unexpectedly low dose and novel finding. ‘To achieve analgesia with lower doses of injectable diclofenac than was previously
understood to be necessary offers the potential to reduce dose-related adverse affects with substantially equivalent analgesia. Moreover,
although this study was designed to measute analgesic cutcomes rather than differentdation of side effects between treatment groups, we
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did observe half the incidence of surgical site bleeding in patients given Dyloject compared to those given ketorolac. In May 2006, we
commenced enrolling patients in a larger post-operative pain study in fulfillment of completing two Phase 3 studies for Dyloject necessary
for filing the U.S. New Drug Application (“NDA”). In December 2007, we announced successful top-line results from the first of these
two Phase 3 studies, and also announced that patient enrollment in the second of these two studies had commenced. We anticipate
completion of patient enrollment in this second Phase 3 study by mid-2008 and submission of the NDA for Dyloject in the first half of
2009. Most recently, we announced in January 2008 that our Phase 1 study of the effects upon platelet function of administeting Dyloject
at therapeutically relevant doses showed minimal, albeit detectable, effects. The effects of Dyloject as well as oral immediate release
diclofenac, at their maximum, only reached the upper range of normal in contrast to the effects of ketorolac or aspirin. Both of the latter
drugs produced dramatic, highly significant interference with platelet aggregation. These results addressed the potential that NSAIDs have
upon surgical site bleeding and confirmed earlier literature showing the superiority of diclofenac over ketorolac with respect to this
important safety consideration.

PMI-150 (intranasal ketamine) -

PMI-150, a proptietary nasal formulation of ketamnine, is currently under development by us for treatment of acute moderate-to-severe
pain, including breakthrough pain. Breakthrough pain is acute pain that overcomes or breaks through a patient’s generally prescribed
regimen of pain medicine. As reported in recent medical literature, the use of ketamine as an analgesic, while not yet approved by the FDA,
is gaining clinician acceptance as a result of its effectiveness and minimal impact on cardiovascular and respiratory functions. Ketamine, a
non-opiate, is an N-methyl-D-aspartate (“NMDA”) receptor antagonist that has been in clinical use for over 30 years as a general
anesthetic. Since its approval by the FDA, ketamine has been safely used as an anesthetic in tens of thousands of padents. NMDA
receptors are located in the-central nervous system and play a role in the perception of acute and chronic pain as well as in the development
of analgesic tolerance to opioids. Ketamine blocks NMDA receptors and therefore is a logical drug candidate for use as an analgesic for
syndromes associated with acute pain, as well as breakthrough pain. Ketamine, at lower doses than those approved for use as an anesthetic,
has been reported in the medical literature to be an effective analgesic in settings such as post-operatively, duting medical procedures, and
for neuropathic pain. :

. PMI-150 is in development in the U.S. for the treatment of acute moderate-to-severe pain and breakthrough pain. We believe that
PMI-150 is optimized for use as a pain medication and potentially offers a safe, non-opioid alternative for the treatment of moderate-to-
severe pain. ‘

In 2005, we completed the PMI-150 formulation and device bioequivalency programs and initiated additional Phase 2 studies. We met
with the FDA in January 2007 to finalize the development plan for this product candidate. At this meeting, the FDA indicated that no
additional clinical efficacy trials and only pharmacokinetic trials would be needed prior to filing an initial NDA. However, at our pre-NDA
meeting in November 2007, the review division of the FDA requested that we conduct one additional efficacy study prior to filing. We are
currently planning a post-operative, multi-dose, acute pain study in same-day orthopedic surgery that we expect to commence by mid-2008.
With respect to the potential application for this product for breakthrough cancer pain, in 2007 we began patient enrollment in a multi-site
trial. Also in 2007, we published in the international, peer-reviewed journal .Aeute Pain results of our Phase 2 randomized, double-blind ,
placebo-controlled trial showing statistically significant superiority of intranasal ketamine over placebo in a standard acute pain model
{molar extraction). We are also continuing to perform internal deliberations regarding the development of our PMI-150 product candidate
in Europe.

Rylomine (intranasal morphine)

Rylomine is in development in the U.S. and Europe for the treatment of acute moderate-to-severe pain and breakthrough pain.
Morphine, the active pharmaceutical ingredient in Rylomine, is the analgesic standard to which all other opioids are usually compared, and
has potent effects upon the mu-opioid receptor that is found in many nerve cells with pain pathways. When morphine binds to this
receptor, it interferes with the transmission of pain signals from nerve endings and across nerve pathways to the spinal cord and brain. The
power of morphine to reduce the level of physical distress places it among the most important naturally occurring compounds. Morphine is
a strong analgesic used for the relief of moderate-to-severe acute and chronic pain, pre-operative sedation, and as a supplement to
anesthesia. Tt is the drug of choice for treating moderate-to-severe pain associated with, in part, surgical operations, myocardial infarction
and cancer. In addition, we have licensed a proprietary drug delivery technology, the ChiSys™ Delivery Platform, that allows us to nasally
deliver and to achieve therapeutic blood levels of morphine in a predictable fashion that was previously unattainable when administered
through the nasal route.




In October 2005, we announced that we had met our primary endpoint of a linear dose response for pain relief over four hours in a
Phase 2b study of Rylomine. In February 2006, at the American Academy of Pain Medicine annual meeting, we presented comprehensive
results of this randomized, double-blind, placebo- and comparatot-controlled clinical trial comparing the safety and efficacy of Rylomine to
intravenous morphine. This study demonstrated that patients with moderate-to-severe pain after orthopedic surgery who received
Rylomine or intravenous morphine experienced statistically significant pain relief over four hours compared to patients who reccived a
placebo. In April 2006, we announced that we held our End-of-Phase 2 meeting with the FDA and in May 2006, we inidated the U.S.
Rylomine Phase 3 clinical program. In June 2007, we announced successful top-line clinical results of the first of two Rylomine Phase 3
clinical trials in which two dose regimens of Rylomine, intravenous morphine, or placebo were given to patents with acute pain after
orthopedic surgery. Pain scores, ime to request rescue analgesic medication and the doses required and other outcome measures were
assessed and showed that Rylomine offered the same analgesic benefits as IV morphine and that both TV and intranasal morphine
provided significantly superior analgesia than placebo. Because bone pain is often considered more resistant to morphine than is soft-tissue
pain (e.g., post-abdominal surgery), we believe that these successful results in the more potentially challenging of our two Phase 3 pivotal
wrials are significant. We are also focused on secking regulatory and scientific advice from French regulatory experts and the European
Medicines Agency (“EMEA™). The results of the clinical trials along with feedback from the regulatory agencies will determine the timing,
extent and cost of the European Rylomine development program and product filings.

The proprietary technology used to develop all three of our product candidates is protected by patent applications filed and/or issued
patents both in the United States and in other countries. During 2007, we received broad patent coverage for Dyloject in Europe,
extending patent protection there by approximately ten years, into 2024. Additionally, we have received a U.S. Patent covering our PMI-
150 formulation and a Canadian Patent covering devices for treating pain using PMI-150. The U.S. Patent extends our patent protection
into 2023 and the Canadian Patent extends our patent protection inte 2015. We have licensed the exclusive rights to develop and
commercialize the proprietary formulations of these product candidates, Since inception, we have been awarded over $5.8 million in
competitive and peer-reviewed government funding, including contracts from the U.S. Department of Defense and grants from the
National Institutes of Health/National Cancer Insdrute. In 2007, we received a Tibbetts Award from the SBIR program of the NIH/NCI
that had provided initial funding for our development of intranasal ketamine. We plan 1o present ongoing results from all three of our
clinical programs at the 12th World Congress on Pain in August 2008 in Glasgow, Scotland. This Congress is a triennial event held under
the auspices of the International Association for the Study of Pain, the leading international organization in the field.

Pain pharmaceuticals market overview

The value of the global pharmaceutical market for pain relief was approximately $31 billion in 2007. Two-thirds of the dollar volume of
the 1.5, prescription pain medication market is for drugs used to treat chronic pain, and one-third is for drugs used for indications
associated with acute pain. Qur products are designed to fulfill unmet and underserved medical needs for a number of moderate-to-severe
pain indications, including breakthrough cancer pain, post-operative pain, breakthrough lower back pain, orthopedic injury pain, and burn
pain. Despite advances in medicine and the development of new prescription pain medications, we believe that treatment for these
indications remains a cridcal area of unmet and underserved medical need.

Market opportunity

Despite advances in medicine and the development of new drugs, pain relief remains a critical area of unmet and underserved medical
need. Increasingly, patients, advocacy groups, and the media are highlighting the shortcomings of pain management, The Joint Commission
for the Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations has recently introduced new standards for pain assessment and control, but the methods
to fulfill these standards are sdll suboptmal, in large part due to their slow onset and side effects. Commercially available oral pain
medications generally take 15-20 minutes and sometimes as long as 40 minutes to provide clinically meaningful pain relief. Undertreatment
or overtreatment often tesults from limitations upon optimal dosing of currently available drugs to meet the patent’s analgesic
tequirernents, due to side effects of these drugs and their current delivery methods. Further, presently avaitable drugs can be partially
effective or simply ineffective. Other shortcomings of existing pain drugs include poor side effect profiles and requirements for invasive,
resource-intensive routes of administration such as an intravenous infusion.

We are developing differentiated pain control products that provide the flexibility and versatility required to adequately address the
limitations of existing presctiption pain pharmaceuticals. First, all three of our product candidates appear to work faster than the oral
formulations of the currently available prescription pain products. These product formulations provide rapid relief of moderate-to-severe
pain within minutes according to our clinical results (within five minutes for PMI-150 and within 10 minutes for Rylomine). For Dyloject,
in particular, we have found a speed of onset of pain relief (within five minutes) that has not been achieved by currently marketed
injectable anti-inflammatory drugs.




Second, our PMI-150 and Rylomine product candidates address patient and provider preferences for self-medication and serve as a less
invasive route of administration. Both product candidates have IV-like pharmacokinetics without the invasive nature of intravenous
administration or the need for costly and cumbersome patient controlled analgesia (“PCA”) devices. These product candidates present a
significant opportunity for drug therapy both inside the hospital setting and in other medically supervised settings. Their economic benefit
is compelling as the nasal route of administration eliminates the need for personnel and equipment necessary to establish an intravenous
line. In addition, a nen-invasive route of delivery reduces the incidence of needle-stick injuries and the potential for transmission of blood-
born viruses. Finally, the ability to self-regulate provides an important benefit of control to the patient and avoids doses that are higher
than necessary to achieve safe and effective management of pain without the side effects associated with such higher doses.

Third, our Dyloject and PMI-150 product candidates provide alternatives to the use of opioids such as morphine for treating moderate-
to-severe pain. Opioid administration to trauma patients must be undertaken with great caution, vigilance and repeated titration of very
small doses due to their recognized risks of lowering blood pressure and causing respiratory depression. Intravenous ketamine at low,
subanesthetic doses has been used off-label to treat trauma pain, as it does not have the same potentially lethal, dose-limiting side effects as
an opioid. The typical treatment of breakthrough pain requires a combination of various opioids. When used in combination with opioids,
ketamine has been reported to reduce the dependence on opioids, thereby reducing the requirement for narcotics, and enhancing the
patient’s overall quality of life.

Dyloject™ has the potential to provide an attractive alternative to opioids for the treatment of post-operative pain. Our most
significant U.S. competitor in the injectable NSAID categoty is ketorolac tromethamine. In January 2006, we announced the results of a
Phase 2b U.S. study in which Dyloject demonstrated superior onset of action compared to ketorolac, five minutes after intravenous
injection. When first launched, this drug had significant sales prior to the FDA imposing a black box warning limiting the combined
duration of intravenous plus oral use of Toradol® to five days because of the risk of serious adverse events. Oral diclofenac can be used
safely in excess of five days and has a considerably superior safety profile. Our Dyloject product candidate would be the first injectable
version of diclofenac to be marketed in the U.S. We believe that Europe presents a meaningful opportunity for Dyloject as well because
injectable Voltarol® (diclofenac sodium) has significant drawbacks, including the need to freshly prepare, buffer and dilute at the pharmacy
and infuse to the patient slowly over 30 minutes.

Oral diclofenac is a leading prescribed product in the post-operative pain category. Dyloject would provide the medical healthcare
provider, for the first time, with an injectable version of this drug for use in the immediate post-operative, in-hospital period. We anticipate
that the consistency of parent drug and the drug’s dosage and administration regimen will allow for easy transition from injectable to oral
diclofenac when post-operative patients ate able to resume oral intake, thereby lowering the barrier to entry and driving product adoption.

Pain indications
The following desctibes the five key pain indications targeted by us.
Breakthrough cancer pain

The prevalence of cancer pain is growing due to the progressive aging of the general population and further increases in cancer survival
rates as a result of new thetapies and treatments. Cancer pain represents the sum of continuous or baseline pain, for which round-the-clock
regimens of long-acting analgesics are generally tecommended, plus intermittent ot breakthrough pain, for which the current standard of
care is to administer as-needed, immediate-telease oral opiods. Breakthrough cancer pain is characterized by episodes of acute, moderate-
to-sevete pain that suddenly flare up and overcome a standing, by-the-clock pain management regimen. This type of pain is particularly
difficult to treat due to its severity, rapid onset, and the often unpredictable nature of its occurrence. On average, padents suffering from
breakthrough cancer pain experience one to five breakthrough episodes per day. Based upon careful estimates of the prevalence of cancer
breakthtough pain conducted both within the U.S. and internationally, we estimate that about two-thirds of the approximately 1,250,600
patients in the U.S. suffering from moderate-to-severe cancer pain require treatment for breakthrough pain. We believe, based upon the
properties that our product candidates have displayed in our clinical trals to date, that one or more of them mighr provide a faster-acting
and more effective alternative treatment for breakthrough cancer pain.




Post-gperative pain

Post-operative pain is typically attributable to acute, moderate-to-severe pain and is the direct result of a surgical procedure and the
resulting inflammation associated with the trauma of surgery. Each year in the U.5,, over 20 million surgeries involving moderate-to-severe
pain require opioid therapy. Post-operative pain following minor surgical procedures is usually treated with oral or parenteral NSAIDs or a
weak oral opioid. More invasive surgical procedures require hospitalization for monitoring and management of post-operative pain.
Intravenous patdent-controlled analgesia (“PCA”) with opioids is the therapy of cheice for treating this latter padent population priot to
discharge from the hospital. PCA allows a patient to receive drugs on demand by using an infusion pump that is programmed by the
physician to intermittently administer a single dose of a drug, typically morphine or a similar opioid, when the patent pushes a button. The
addiion of parenteral or oral NSAIDs to this regimen is gaining broader use as NSAIDs have been demonsirated w decrease the
reqmrcmem for opioids. We believe that one or more of our product candidates might be effective for the management of pain fo]lowmg
minor surgical procedures and offer a readily acceptable alternative to intravenous PCA for the management of moderate-to-severe pain
and breakthrough pain following major surgical procedures.

Breakthrough back pain

Lower back pain is the most common medical complaint in developed countries. Thus, the potential patient population is extremely
large, and while a host of physiotherapy, nerve block and surgical approaches are available, analpesics are the mainstay of most therapeutic
treatment programs. According to the National Institutes of Health, lower back pain is the most common cause of job-related disabiliry
and a leading contributor to missed work. The most severe episodes require the use of opioids, We believe that one or more of our product
candidates might effectively treat the subset of patients suffering from breakthrough episodes of lower back pain whose cases are severe
enough to be activity-limiting,

Orthopedic infury

Treatment of fractures can involve the realignment of bones, a procedure referred to as reduction. Although fractures and dislocations
are generally due to minor injuries, the time leading up to and during reduction of a fracture or the correction of a dislocation is often
associated with acute, moderate-to-severe pain. According to the National Center for Health Stadstcs’ Natdonal Hospital Ambulatory
Medical Care Survey: 2004 Emergency Deparunent Survey published in 2006, there were approximately 7.5 million emergency department
visits due 1o fractures or strains and sprains in the.U.S. in 2004. We believe that emergency departments have an economic incentive to use
any therapy that can speed patient discharge from the hospital and avoid expenses assoctated with administration of intravenous drugs. We
also believe that one or more of our product candidates might satisfy the underserved medical need for agents that are fast-actng, safe, and
easily titrated to treat moderate-to-severe pain associated with orthopedic injury in the emergency deparument setting,

Burn pain

According to the American Burn Association (2007), there are over one million burn injuries each year in the U.S., of which 500,000
ptesent to emergency rooms and 40,000 require hospitalization. Burn pain in the latter group is typically immediate and of moderate-to-
severe intensity as a result of injuries sustained after thermal, chemical or electrical trauma to skin and deeper tissue, as well as the removal
ot teapplication of dressings applied to the inital burn. Burn pain is often mote challenging to control than post-operative pain and is
cutrently treated with potent intravenous opioids, otal opioids, and other oral analgesics. Pain associated with burn trauma continues to
impair the lives of burn victims long after the initial injury and hospitalization, The published research on pain in this population is much
less extensive than for post-operative or cancer pain, and we believe the burn pain patient population to be largely underserved. We believe
that one or more of our product candidates might be effective for the management of pain following in-patient bumn treatments, as well as
for treating various forms of procedural pain, including wound cate treatments and dressing reapplications.

Strategy

Our goal is to become a successful specialty pharmaceutical company by focusing our efforts on developing new prescriptton pain
medications that are simple, user friendly and cost-effective for the potental fumre treatment of patents with underserved pain
management needs. Key elements of our strategy are:

»  Focus on unmet and underserved medical needs in the prescription pain medication market, Despite advances in medicine and the development
of new drugs, pain relief remains a critical area of unmet and underserved medical need. Increasingly, patients, advocacy groups
and the media are highlighting the shortcomings of pain management. We will continue to focus on developing and




commercializing differentiated pain control products that provide the flexibility and versatility required to adequately address the
limitations of existing prescription pain drugs.

o Efficently select product candidates to minimize risk and maximize opportunity. We will continue to use in-house experience and capabilities
in product development, business development, regulatory affairs, risk management and portfolio management to build and
maintain an attractive product portfalio and candidate pipeline.

o Develsp new products with reduced clinical and regulatory risk. Following the specialty pharmaceutical business model, we will seek to
develop branded pharmaceuticals with novel formulations, routes of administration, methods and modes of delivery and new
indications from existing approved drugs with established safety profiles.

. Develop commercial parinerships in varions global markets. We currently retain U.S. and international marketing and distribution rights for
our products. We may license distribution rights to our products in cerrain global markets to reduce our commercialization tisks,
enhance market uptake for our brands, and generate capital to find our portfolio development efforts.

Products

We are developing differentiated pain control products that provide the flexibility and versatility required to adequately address the
limitations of existing prescription pain pharmaceuticals. Our current pipeline includes three lead product candidates, each of which is
protected by different intellectual property and is based on different technology. We selected these product candidates based on our belief
that each offered significantly lower clinical, regulatory, and commercial risk profiles as compared to new chemical entities.

Dyloject (diclofenac sodium injectable)

Background. After operations or trauma, injured tissue becomes inflamed. This inflammation is painful. Common drugs that reduce
inflammation fall into two broad classes. Pirst are the steroids (short for corticosteroids, such as cortsone), These are potent ant-
inflammatory drugs but their use even for short intervals carties substantial risks such as weakening of the bones or increased risk of
infections. Thus, corticosteroids are not routinely used after operations. The second class comprises nonsterodial anti-inflammatory drugs
(“NSAIDs"}, which include prescription drugs for the treatment of moderate-to-severe pain, as well as the more common and numerous
over-the-counter prescription drugs for the treatment of mild-to-moderate pain, such as aspirin. NSAIDs are widely used for all types of
pain, but relatively few can trear the moderate-to-severe pain typically experienced following operations. NSAIDs reduce pain and
inflammation through several mechanisms, principal among which is their ability to interfere with the enzyme class known as cyclo-
oxygenases. This enzyme acts upon certain fatty acids made by the body to generate pain-mediating substances known as prostaglandins.
Inhibition of the cyclo-oxygenases by NSAIDS reduces prostaglandin levels decreasing inflammation and thus reducing the pain associated
with the inflammatory response. Diclofenac is a prescription NSAID that is widely prescribed to treat post-operative pain due to its
combination of effectiveness and tolerability.

Currently available formulations of the popular drug diclofenac are pootly soluble in water. We have successfully improved the
solubility of diclofenac by the addition of 2 doughnut-shaped molecule that has the technical name hydroxypropyl-beta-cyclodextrin
(“HPBCD™). Diclofenac and HPBCD can be formulated to easily dissolve in water. This resultant product is more amenable for injection
into a muscle or a vein, where the solubilized material is able to directly enter the bloodstream. HPBCD is one example of 2 broader family
of ring-shaped sugar molecules called cyclodextrins. Cyclodextrins have been used to improve the solubility of many hard-to-dissolve
drugs. There are many types of cyclodextrins and most are toxic. Only modified beta-cyclodextrins (such as HPBCD) are regarded as safe
for injection. Our HPBCD is used in higher concentrations in the FDA-approved injectable antifungal drug, Sporanox® (itraconazole).

NSAIDs offer several advantages over opioids for the management of post-operative pain. NSAIDs have limited effects on the central
nervous system, do not depress respiration and are non-sedating. This latter attribute is of special importance in short-stay or ambulatory
surgery because NSAIDs can provide analgesia without delaying patient discharge from the hospital or outpatient setting. In addition,
NSAIDs are also useful in patients who for any reason are unable to take opioids. About a decade ago it became clear that there are at least
two forms of the enzyme cyclo-oxygenase (abbreviated “COX”). COX 1 plays a role in protecting the stomach from forming ulcers, and
also for allowing blood to clot in the first minute after a cut or incision. COX 2 becotmnes active after inflammation or trauma, and also is
important for normal kidney function. The recognition that COX 1 and COX 2 serve different functions led to the development and wide
use of drugs that selectively inhibited COX 2 and not COX 1, based upon the potential for such drugs to reduce pain and inflammation
with fewer stomach ulcers, and less effect upon blood clotting, than the nonselective NSAIDs. However, in the past several years it has
also become clear that some COX 2 inhibitors (also called “coxibs”) interfere with the health of blood vessels in the heart and those going




to the brain, and increase the risk of heart attack or stroke. The expanding concerns about heart attacks and strokes associated with long-
term use of COX 2 inhibitors and, most recently, naproxen do not necessarily apply to the short-term, perioperative administration of
these compounds for acute pain. Clinical tials to date have not demonstrated increased cardiovascular and cerebrovascular risk associated
with the short-term use of COX 2 inhibitors and naproxen to treat acute postsurgical pain. On the other hand, clinician’s global concerns
including fears of litigation associated with any medical complications after prescribing oral or injectable COX 2 inhibitors may reduce the
current and projected market share of COX 2 inhibitors for the treatment of acute pain. Diclofenac is not considered to be a selecdve
COX 2 inhibitor because it inhibits COX 1 and COX 2 alike.

There still exists an underserved medical need for a safe and effective injectable NSAID in the hospital setting. For example, ketorolac
tromethamine is an injectable NSAID that had significant sales prior to the FDA’s imposing a black box warning limiting the combined
duratdon of intravenous plus oral use to five days because of the risk of serious adverse events. Oral diclofenac can be used safely in excess
of five days and has a safety profile, considered superior to oral ketorolac. Diclofenac is currently approved for use in the U.S. in a variety
of oral formuladons as well as a topical and ophthalmic formulation. An injectable formuladon of diclofenac is commercially available in
Europe, but has significant drawbacks, including the need to buffer and dilute it at the pharmacy and a lengthy infusion period {over thirty
minutes). The development of injectable formulations of diclofenac has been limited by the drug’s poor solubility. We believe that the
proptietary formulation of injectable diclofenac that we are developing has the potendal to overcome these issues and to provide an
cffective and safe treatment of moderate-to-severe acute pain.

Clinical Resufts. Dyloject is in development in the U.S. for the treatment of post-operative pain and in Europe for the treatment of acute
forms of pain, including renal colic, exacerbations of osteo- and rheumatoid arthritis, acute back pain, acute gout, acute trauma, pain
associated with fractures in addition to post-operative pain.

Initial studies of Dyloject when administered by intravenous ot intramuscular injection, have demonstrated its safety along with 3 safe
rapid onset of action. Dyloject has also demonstrated bioequivalence to Voltarol ®. Published results from a Phase 2 269-patient
randomized, placebo-controlled, double-blind clinical trial demonstrated that Dyloject provides a rapid drop in post-operative pain
intensity. At all dosage levels tested, Dyloject provided stadstically significant post-operative pain relief through six hours (p <0.05) and was
safe and well-olerated by patients. The results of this clinical study were published in 2000 in the European Journal of Clinical
Pharmacclogy.

In October 2003, we completed a randomized, four-way cross-over Phase 1 trial comparing the pharmacokinetics, bioequivalence and
safety of Dyloject to Voltarol®. Dyloject was bioequivalent to Voltarol® regardless of intravenous infusion time as defined and required by
the MHRA.,

In March 2004, we completed a randomized, four-way cross-over Phase 1 clinical study comparing the pharmacokinetic, bioequivalence
and safety of Dyloject to Voltarol® when administered intravenously and intramuscularly. Dyloject was found to be bioequivalent to
Voltarol® regardless of the route of administration and was safe and well tolerated.

In July 2005, we announced that we had met our primary endpoint in the pivotal European Phase 2/3 study for Dyloject. In September
2005, at the European Society of Regional Anaesthesia and Pain Therapy annual meeting, we presented comprehensive results of this
randomized, double-blind, placebo- and comparator-controlled Phase 2/3 pivotal clinical trial comparing the safety, efficacy and
therapeutic equivalency of Dyloject to Voltarol®. The Marketing Authotization Application (“MAA” ) submission for approval to sell
Dyloject in Europe was filed in September 2005, and was accepted for review in October 2005. In October 2007, we announced that we
received marketing authotization approval in the UK. for Dyloject. In November 2007, we received pricing approval for Dyloject from the
U.K. Department of Health Pharmaceutical Price Regulation Scheme as well as notification of our first U.K. hospital formulary appraval.
As of February 1, 2008, Dyloject has been ordered by 26 different UK. hospitals, with 10 reordering product. Now that we have entered
the commercial phase of Dyloject in the U.K., we anticipate announcing attendant revenues with respect to the first quarter of 2008. We
continue to take the necessary steps to facilitate mutal recognition of Dyloject in, and a subsequent product launch, including distribution,
marketing and sales activites, in Germany and certain other European couatries. We intend to file additional marketing applications
through the mutual recognition process in a number of European Union {“EU”) member countries during the second half of 2008. There
can be no assurance as to whether or when such applications in the remaining European countries will be approved. The U.S. development
program for Dyloject has required additional studies beyond those sufficient for European MAA because no injecrable diclofenac product
has yet been marketed in the U.S.




In January 2006, we announced that we had met out primary endpoint of a linear dose response for pain relief over six hours in a Phase
2b U.S. study of Dyloject. The preliminary results of this randomized, double-blind, placebo- and comparator-controlled clinical trial
comparing the safety and efficacy of Dyloject to intravenous ketorolac demonstrated that patients with moderate-to-severe pain after oral
surgery who received Dyloject or intravenous ketotolac experienced statistically significant pain relief over six hours compared to patients
who received 2 placebo. In addition, approximately five minutes after intravenous injection, Dyloject demonstrated superior onset of pain
relief compared to ketorolac as measured by statistically significant reductions in pain intensity and pain relief using both the VAS and
categorical scales, In September 2006, we announced at “Europe Against Pain,” the annuat meeting of EFIC (the European Federation of
Chapters of the International Association for the Swudy of Pain) that the minimally effective dose of Dyloject in this study was 3.75mg,
which is an unexpectedly low dose and a novel finding. To achieve analgesia with lower doses of injectable diclofenac than was previously
understood as necessary offers the potential to reduce dose-related adverse affects with substantially equivalent analgesia. Moreover,
although this study was designed to measure analgesic outcomes rather than differenuation of side effects berween treatment groups, we
did observe half the incidence of surgical site bleeding in padents given Dyloject compared to those given ketorolag. In May 2006, we
commenced enrolling patients in a larger post-operative pain study in fulfillment of completing two Phase 3 studies for Dyloject necessary
for filing the U.S. New Drug Applicaton (“NDA™). In December 2007, we announced successful top-line results from the first of these
wo Phase 3 studies, and also announced that patient enrollment in the second of these two studies had commenced. We anticipate
completion of patient enrollment in this second Phase 3 study by mid-2008 and submission of the NDA for Dyloject in the first half of
2009. Most recently, we announced in January 2008 that our Phase 1 study of the effects upon plateler function of administering Dyloject
at therapeutically relevant doses showed minimal, albeit detectable, effects. The effects of Dyloject as well as oral immediate release
diclofenac, at their maximum, only reached the upper range of normal in contrast to the effects of ketorolac or aspirin, Both of the latter
drugs produced dramatic, highly significant interference with platelet aggregation. These results addressed the potential that NSAIDs have
upon surgical site bleeding and confirmed earlier literature showing supetiority of diclofenac over ketorolac with respect to this important
safety consideration.

PMI-150 (intranasal ketamine)

Background. PMI-150, a proprictary nasal formulation of ketamine, is currendy under development by us for treatment of acute
moderate-to-severe pain, including breakthrough pain. Ketamine, a non-opiate, is an N-methyl-D-aspartate (“NMDA”) receptor antagonist
that has been in clinical use for over 30 years as a general anesthetic. Since its apptoval by the FDA, ketamine has been safely used as an
anesthetic in tens of thousands of patients. NMDA receptors are located in the central nervous system and play a role in the perception of
acute and chronic pain as well as in the development of analgesic tolerance to opioids. Ketamine blocks NMDA receptors and therefore is
a logical drug candidate for use as an analgesic for syndromes associated with acute pain, as well as breakthrough pain. Ketamine, at lower
doses than that approved for use as an anesthetic, has been reported in the medical literature to be an effective analgesic in settings such as
post-operatively, during medical procedures, and for neuropathic pain.

As reported in recent medical literarure, the use of ketamine in low, subanesthetc doses as an analgesic, while not yet approved by the
FDA, is gaining clinician acceptance as a result of its effectiveness and minimal impact on cardiovascular and respiratory functions. Since
ketamine is not approved for use as an analgesic, physicians have resorted to using the drug off-label. We believe that an FDA-approved
formulation of ketamine for the wreatment of moderate-to-severe pain will provide physicians with an accepted and regulated alternative to
off-label use. In addition, in 1998, ketamine was scheduled by the U.S. Drug Enforcement Administration (the “DEA”) as a Schedule 111
controlled substance. We believe this wilt only improve the prospects of our intended use of ketamine, as the scheduling of ketamine by the
DEA provides additional protection with respect to controlling distribution, prescribing patterns and disposal, thereby reducing the
potental for misuse. '

Chnical Resuits. PM1-150 is in development in the U.S. for the treatment of acute moderate-to-severe pain and breakthrough pain. We
believe that PMI-150 is optimized for use as a pain medication and potentially offers a safe, non-opioid alternative for the treatment of
moderate-to-severe pain. .

Previous randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled Phase 2 clinical studies have demonstrated staristically significant (p<0.05) relief
of moderate-to-severe post-operadve and breakthrough pain. PMI-150 was fast-acting, with stadstically significant (p<0.05} pain relief
occurring as early as four minutes post administration of PMI-150. PMI-150 also appeared to be safe and well-tolerated by patients. These
results were presented at the American Society for Clinical Pharmacology and Therapeutics in Adanta, Georgia in Apnl 2002 and the
American Society of Clinical Oncology in Orlando, Florida in May 2002.

In May 2003, following the presentation of clinical data at the plenary session of the Advanced Technology Application for Combat
Casualty Care confetence in Orlando, Florida, the U.S. Department of Defense awarded an approximately $4.3 million funding extension
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to IDDS, our predecessor, to aid in the development of PMI-150. This award is based on the need of the military for a fast-acting, non-
invasive, and non-sedating alternative to the intravenous and oral medicatons commonly used for treatment of combat-related injuries,
such as burns, bullet wounds and blunt trauma.

In June 2004, we had an End-of-Phase 2 meeting with representatives of the FDA. The purpose of the meeting was to review the
intended clinical use and the proposed product development plan for PMI-150. The FDA provided guidance and defined the requirements
for NDA submission. In 2005, we completed the PMI-150 formulation and device bicequivalency programs and iniriated additional Phase
2 studies. We met with the FDA in January 2007 to finalize the development plan for this product candidate. At this meeting, the FDA
indicated that no additional clinical efficacy trials and only pharmacokinetic trials would be needed prior to filing an initial NDA. However,
at our pre-NDA meeting in November 2007, the review division of the FDA requested that we conduct one additional efficacy study prior
to filing. We are currently planning a post-operative, multi-dose, acute pain study in same-day orthopedic surgery that we expect to
commence by mid-2008. With respect to the potential application for this product for breakthrough cancer pain, in 2007 we began patient
enrollment in a mult-site trial. Also in 2007, we published in the international, peer-reviewed journal Awute Pain results of our Phase 2
randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled trial showing statistically significant superiority of intranasal ketamine over placebo in a
standard acute pain model {molar extraction). We are also continuing to petform internal deliberations regarding the development of our
PMI-150 product candidate in Europe.

Rylomine (intranasal morphine)

Background. Rylomine is in development in the U.S. and Europe for the treatment of acute moderate-to-severe pain and breakthrough
pain. Breakthrough pain is acute pain that overcomes or breaks through a padent’s fixed, by-the-clock doses of pain medicine. Morphine,
the active pharmaceutical ingredient in Rylomine, is the analgesic standard to which all other opioids are usually compared, and has potent
effects upon the mu-opioid receptor that is found in many nerve cells in pain pathways. When morphine binds to this receptor, it interferes
with the transmission of pain signals from nerve endings and across nerve pathways to the spinal cord and brain. The power of morphine
to reduce the level of physical distress places it among the most important naturally occurring compounds. Morphine is a strong analgesic
used for the relief of moderate-to-sevete acute and chronic pain, pre-operative sedation, and as a supplement to anesthesia. It is the drug of
choice for treating moderate-to-severe pain associated with, in part, susgical operations, myocardial infarction and cancer.

ChiSys™ Delivery Platform. We have licensed a proprietary drug delivery technology that allows us to nasally deliver and to achieve
therapeutic blood levels of morphine in a predictable fashion that was previously unattainable when administered through the nasal route.
The key to this technology is ChiSys™ , a naturally occurring carbohydrate polymer that, while pharmaceudcally inert by itself, enhances
the absorption of compounds across mucosal membranes such as those of the nasal cavity, and thereby provides the potental to deliver
drugs through such routes. This enhancement of drug delivery is particularly important for compounds such as morphine that are pootly
absorbed across mucosal barriers, in particular, the nasal membrane. The contribution of ChiSys™ to enhancing mucosal drug absorption
is reported to be due to several factors, including its potent mucoadhesive property, which prevents drug washout.

Conventional oral formulations of morphine do not provide rapid relief of pain in many patients. Aside from its slow and varable
onset of action, oral morphine demonstrates considerable patient-to-patient variability in absorption. Clinicians therefore must rely on
injection of morphine into a muscle or a vein to assure rapid and effective pain relief. Administration of injectable morphine requires
professional assistance or hospitalization. Thetefore, alternative formulations of morphine that are easy to administer by a patient or
caregiver, and that deliver rapid onset of action with clinically meaningful blood levels of active drug, would provide significant medical
benefit. We believe that Rylomine represents such an altetnative nasal formulation that combines patient convenience, ease of use, and
cost-effectiveness with rapid onset of pain relief and well-accepted potency equivalent to injectable delivery routes.

Previous single and multiple-dose Phase 1 clinical studies of Rylomine have demonstrated similar pharmacokinetics to intravenous
morphine. Rylomine is rapidly absorbed to produce blood levels of morphine typically associated with analgesic effectiveness. These data
were presented at the 2002 International Association for the Study of Pain 10th World Congress on Pain, in San Diego, CA.

In December 2002, we completed a large randomized, placebo- and comparator-controlled, double-blind, Phase 2 trial evaluating the
safety and effectiveness of Rylomine in 225 patients suffering from moderate-to-severe post-operative pain, Rylomine provided statistically
superior pain relief as compared to a placebo (p <0.05), with appreciable pain relief occurring five to ten minutes following nasal
administration. Rylomine delivered a statistically similar onset of action and total pain relief outcome as compared to intravenous morphine
infused over 10 minutes. Rylomine also demonstrated a lower side effect profile and faster onset of action compared to oral morphine.




In QOctober 2005, we announced that we had met our primary endpoint of a linear dose response for pain relief over four hours in a
Phase 2b study of Rylomine. In February 2006, at the American Academy of Pain Medicine annual meeting, and in May 2006 at the
American Pain Society (APS) annual meeting, we presented the final results of this randomized, double-blind, placebo- and comparator-
controlled clinical trial comparing the safety and efficacy of Rylomine to intravenous morphine. Patients with moderate-to-severe pain after
orthopedic surgery who received Rylomine 15 mg or 30 mg or intravenous morphine 7.5 mg experienced statistically significant (p <0.01)
pain relief over four hours compared to patients who received a placebo. One nasal spray of Rylomine 7.5 mg was determined to be the
minimally effective dose and equivalent to a 5 mg bolus intravenous injection of morphine. In this study, Rylomine 7.5 mg and 15 mg were
effective at relieving pain over 24 hours with the higher dose showing superior efficacy and the lower dose showing better tolerability.
There were no setious adverse events and most side effects were reported as mild to moderate in intensity, General side effects were dose
related and typical of morphine administration. Local adverse events were typical of nasally administered drugs and included bad taste,
nasal congestion, nasal discomfort, throat irtitation, sneezing and rhinorrhoea.

In April 2006, we announced that we held our End-of-Phase 2 meeting with the FDA and in May 2006 we initiated the U.S. Rylomine
Phase 3 clinical program. In June 2007, we announced successful top-line clinical results of the first of two Rylomine Phase 3 clinical trials
in which two dose regimens of Rylomine, intravenous morphine, or placebo were given to patients with acute pain after orthopedic
surgery. Pain scores, time to request rescue analgesic medication and the doses required and other outcome measures were assessed and
showed that Rylomine offered the same analgesic benefits as IV morphine and that both IV and intranasal morphine provided significantly
superior analgesia than placebo. Because bone pain is often considered more resistant to morphine than is soft-tissue pain (e.g, post-
abdominal surgery), we believe that these successful results in the more potendally challenging of our two Phase 3 pivotal wmals are
significant. We are also focused on seeking regulatory and scientific advice from French regulatory experts and the European Medicines
Agency (“EMEA”). The results of the clinical trials along with feedback from the regulatory agencies will determine the timing, extent and
cost of the European Rylomine development program and product filings.

Competitive grants

The U.S. Department of Defense has awarded us a total of approximately $5.5 million in contracts and grants to develop PMI-150 for
the treatment of acute moderate-to-severe pain in military personnel and for mass casualty management. These contracts reimburse us for
expenses associated with some aspects of the non-clinical, clinical and manufacturing sub-projects required to support an NDA
submission. |

Strategic agreements

Shimoda agreement. In December 2001, we entered into a license agreement with Shimoda Biotech, Ltd. and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Farmarc N.AN.V. (Netherlands Antilles) and Farmarc Netherlands B.V, {collectively, “Shimoda”), pursuant to which we
received certain worldwide, exclusive rights to develop and commercialize products related to a proprietary formulation of the injectable
delivery of diclofenac. Shimoda’s rights to the formulation were originally licensed from Janssen Pharmaceutical Products, L.P. Under the
terms of this agreement, we agreed to use commercially reasonable efforts to bring to market products that use the technology we licensed
from Shimoda, continue active marketing efforts for those products, and comply with the commercialization timelines imposed on
Shimoda. We believe we are currently in compliance with the agreement and have positive relations with our license partners. Shimoda
agreed that it will not grant to any third party any right ot license under any of Shimoda’s intellectual property rights involving the use of
any cyclodextrin product related to pain management, anesthesia or sedation without first offering us the right on the same terms and
conditions. Under the license agreement, we are also obligated to pay an aggregate of $6.0 million upon the occurrence of specified
developmental milestones, which include the filing of an NDA with the FDA for Dyloject, the approval of an NDA by the FDA and the
first commercial sale of a licensed product, and pay a royalty based upon our and our sublicensees’ sales of products. [n December 2005,
the agreement was amended to provide for developmental milestones upon the allowance of an MAA by the MHRA, the submission of an
NDA to the FDA, the approval of an NDA by the FDA and the one year anniversary of the date of first sale of a licensed product. In May
2006, the agreement was further amended to provide that we will be considered compliant even if we do not launch a commercial product
by December 14, 2007, provided that we diligently continue to pursue regulatory approval as of that date. As of December 31, 2007, we
had paid Shimoda an aggregate of $3.9 million in cash since the inception of this agreement. Under this agreement, the timing of the
remaining developmental milestones is dependent upon factors th-t are beyond our control, including our ability to recruit patients, the
outcome of future clinical trials, regulatory approval, and any requu. ments imposed on our clinical trials by the FDA. If the FDA imposes
more stringent requirements on our clinical trials, the length and number of such trials may be increased resulting in additional research and
development expenses. We are obligated to pay Shimoda, on a country-by-country basis, a royalty on the sales, net of various customary
cash discounts, attributable to these products,
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West Pharmaceatival agreements. In August 2000, IDDS entered into a license agreement, which was amended in October 2001 and
October 2003, with West Pharmaceutical under which IDDS acquired a worldwide, exclusive right to develop and commercialize intranasal
morphine under patents held by West Pharmaceutical for the transmucosal delivery of morphine to humans and animals for the treatment
of pain. The licensed patent portfolic from West Pharmaceutical provides U.S. protection untl 2014 and worldwide protection through
2013. The term of the license remains in effect until the last to expire of the Licensed Patents (as defined in the license agreement). We
believe that certain pending patent applications, if approved, will significantly expand the life of this portfolio. In the future, we may be
required to pay West Pharmaceutical an aggregate of up to $5.0 million for research and development milestones if certain defined events
occur, which include the first filing of a marketing authorization application with a regulatory agency, first approval of a marketing
authorization application and the first commercial sale of a licensed product. As of December 31, 2007, we had paid West an aggregate of
$5.6 million in cash since the inception of this agreement. The tming of the remaining milestones is dependent upon factors that are
beyond our control, including our ability to recruit patients, the outcome of future clinical trials and any requirements imposed on our
clinical trials by regulatory agencies. If regulatory agencies impose more stringent requirements on our clinical trials, the length and number
of such trials may be increased resulting in additonal research and development expenses. We are obligated to pay West Pharmaceutical a
royalty on the sales, net of various customary cash discounts, artributable to intranasal morphine,

In February 2005, West Pharmaceutical sold a substantial majority interest in its drug delivery business to Archimedes Pharma Limited
(“Archimedes”), a new company formed by Warburg Pincus Private Equity VIIT and Warburg Pincus International Partners. As part of the
sale, West Pharmaceutical assigned the IDDS License Agreement and related agreements to Archimedes, and Archimedes assumed all of
West Pharmaceutical’s obligations thereunder.

In February 2006, we settled a litigadon with West Pharmaceutical regarding its assignment of the IDDS License Agreements to
Archimedes. Subsequently, on March 1, 2006, West paid us approximately $600,000 to resolve-all claims, and the patties exchanged mutual
releases.

Ketanmine license. In September 2000, IDDS assumed a license agreement with Dr. Stuart Weg upon the closing of its merger with Pain
Management, Inc., another specialty pharmaceutical company. The license grants IDDS the exclusive, wotldwide rights for the intellecrual
property surrounding intranasal ketamine. The term of the license agreement remains in effect until the last to expire of the patent rights.
Under the license agreement with Dr. Weg, we are obligated to make aggregate milestone payments of approximately $1.6 million to Dr.
Weg, Herbert Brotspies and Calgar & Associates. As of December 31, 2006, we had paid Dr. Weg, Mr. Brotspies and Calgar & Associates
an aggregate of $950,000 in cash and issued 236,298 shares of common stock in lieu of cash payments of $600,000. We are also obligated
to pay Dr. Weg, Mr. Brotspies, and Calgar & Associates a royalty on the sales, net of various customary cash discounts, attributable to
intranasal ketamine. .

Sales and marketing

Our commercialization efforts will focus on a dual-path marketing and distribution strategy as a result of cur areas of therapeutic focus,
A narrow channel of distribution will target hospitals, chronic care facilities, palliative care providers, long-term care centers, pain
specialists, high-prescribing oncologists, oncology clinics, burn clinics, and customers such as the U.S, Department of Defense. This
focused approach could allow for the creation of a small internal sales and marketing organization. Alternatively, we may license
disttibution rights to our products to teduce commercialization risks. If we are successful in expanding the approved product labeling for
our products, we will evaluate the utilization of a broader channel of distribution such as large, established pharmaceutical companies and
contract sales organizatons to assist in the broadest commercialization of our product candidates. In order to cover all of the key
prescribing physicians at an adequate level of reach and frequency, we would need to significantly expand our proposed sales force or
partner with a company with a substantial sales organization. Quuside of the U.S. we intend to sublicense distribution and marketing nghts
to one ot more pharmaceutical companies with established sales forces in the targeted territories.

Competition

Our success will depend, in part, upon our ability to achieve market share at the expense of existing, established products and future
products in the relevant target markers, Existing and future products, therapies, technological innovations, and delivery systems will
compete directly with our products. Competing products and technologies may provide greater therapeutic benefit for a specific indication
or may offer comparable performance at a lower cost. Alternative technologies are being developed to improve the delivery of dmgs within
the prescription pain management industry, several of which may be in the clinical trials stage or are awaiting approval from the FDA,
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We compete with fully integrated pharmaceutical companies, smaller companies that are collaborating with larger pharmaceutical
companies, academic institutions, government agencies, and other public and private research institutions. Many companies, for example,
currently sell either generic or proprietary prescription pain formulations. Companies that currently sell both generic and proprietary opicid
formulations include, among others, Abbott Laboratories, Alpharma Inc., AstraZeneca, Cephalon, Endo Pharmaceuticals, Elkins-Sinn,
Johnson & Johnson, Purdue Pharma, Roxane Laboratories and Watson Laboratories. Alternative technologies are being developed to
improve or replace the use of opioids for pain management, several of which are in clinical trials or are awaiting approval from the FDA.
These alternatives include Elan’s Prialt, Pfizer’s Lyrica as well as combination products from Endo Pharmaceuticals. In addition,
companies pursuing different but related fields represent substantial competition. Such competitors may also have access to more
resources, financial and otherwise, which may allow these institutions to develop and market competing products more rapidly and more
effectively than we have, Many of these competitors, cither alone or together with their collaborative partners, operate larger research and
development programs and have substantially greater financial resources than we do, as well as significantly greater experience in
developing drugs, undertaking preclinical testing and human clinical trials, obtaining FDA and other regulatory approvals of drugs,
formulating and manufacturing drugs and launching, marketing and selling drugs.

Intellectual property

Our goal is to obtain, maintain and enforce patent protection for our products, formulations, processes, methods and other relevant
proprietary technologies, preserve our trade secrets and operate without infringing on the proprietary rights of other parties, both in the
United States and in other countries. Qur policy has been to actively seek to obtain, where appropriate, the broadest intellectual property
protection possible for our product candidates, proprietary information and proprietary technology through a combination of contractual
arrangements and patents.

We currently have exclusive licenses to eight issued U.S. patents and their foreign equivalent patents and patent applications, and are
the assignee of one additional issued U.S. patent and its foreign counterparts. In addition, we have filed (and have pending) seven U.S.
patent applications, each of which is or is expected to be the subject of foreign equivalent applications.

The issued U.S. patents that are owned or have been exclusively licensed to us, and the product candidates {or uses thereof that we may
or may not exploit} that relate to those patents are:

Patent numbers Product candidate Expiration date
5,543,434 Intranasal ketamine Feb. 25, 2014
5,679,714 Intranasal ketamine Oct, 21, 2014
5,989,582 Intranasal ketamine Feb. 25, 2014
6,248,789 Intranasal ketamine Feb. 25, 2014
7,273,889 Intranasal ketamine July 10, 2023

5,554,388 Rylomine (intranasal morphine} Sept. 10, 2013
5,629,011 Rylomine (intranasal morphine) May 13, 2014
5,744,166 Rylomine (intranasal morphine) Aug. 21,2011
5,679,660 Dyloject (injectable diclofenac) Dec. 2, 2014

To the extent our pending patent applications are issued, if at all, they will only provide us with protection for the claims set forth in
those patents when issued. We believe that, if issued, the claims in one of our pending patent applications is likely to cover our Rylomine
(intranasal morphine) product candidate, and that the claims in four of our pending patent applications are likely to cover our Dyloject
(injectable diclofenac) product candidate. We have been awarded a European patent covering 30 European countries, including EU major
market countries (G5), which significantly broadens and extends our patent protection for Dyloject. European Patent No. 1 574 221,
entitled “Stable Injectable Compositions,” extends Dyloject’s European patent life and exclusivity from 2014 into 2024.

We also depend upon the skills, knowledge and experience of our scientific and technical personnel, as well as that of our advisors,
consultants and other contractors, none of which is patentable. To help protect our proprietary know-how that is not patentable, and for
inventions for which patents may be difficult to enforce, we will rely on trade secret protection and confidentiality agreements to protect
out interests. To this end, we requite all employees, consultants, advisors and other contractors to enter into confidendality agreements that
prohibit the disclosure of confidential information and, where applicable, require disclosure and assignment to us of the ideas,
developments, discoveries and inventions important to our business.
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The names Dyloject and Rylomine are registered trademarks in the European Union, and in the U.S. we have filed “intent-to-use”
trademark applicatons for these names, both of which have been allowed. We also have pending “use-based” trademark applications in the
U.S. for the natne “Javelin”, our logo and our name used in combination with our logo,

Manufacturing

We do not own any manufacturing facilites. We contract with qualified third pardes that must comply with current good
manufacturing practices and procedures reviewed by the FDA for the manufacture of bulk active pharmaceutical ingredients and finished
product. Historically, we have worked with several manufacturing vendors including, most recently, DPT Lakewood, Inc. for the clinical
supply of PMI-150 and Rylomine. In addition, in February 2007, we entered into a Commercial Supply Agreement (the “Supply
Apreement”) with Precision Pharma Services, Inc., pursuant to which Precision Pharma agreed to manufacture our requirements for the
supply of Dyloject, in accordance with US. and E.U. good manufactuting practices. We committed to purchase at least $7,650,000 worth
of product during the two year period beginning on April 1, 2007. The initial term of the Supply Agreement is two years, and it is
renewable in one-year increments. We were advised that the FDA has inspected and approved the faciliies of both DPT Lakewood, Inc.
and Precision Pharma, and that both facilides were determined to be in compliance with good manufacturing practices. Additionally, in
May 2007, we entered into a Development and Toll Manufacturing Agreement (the “Manufacturing Agreement”) with Baxter Healtheare
Corporation (“Baxter”), pursuant to which we committed to purchase at least $13,230,000 worth of Dyloject product manufactured to our
specifications, commencing upon regulatory approval from the FDA. The initial term of the Manufacturing Agreement is three years,
renewable thereafter in one-year increments. Under the Manufacturing Agreement, either party may terminate the agreement upon written
notice upon the occurrence of certain evenis, including breach, bankruptcy, insolvency or, subject to certain cure provisions and
restrictons, the lack of FDA approval for Dyloject by a specified date.

We believe that the raw materials needed for producton of our product candidates are readily available from alternative suppliers.
However, as part of the regulatory approval process we must specify the manufacturing process and the particular raw materials to be used.
Changes in the materials or the manufacturer could be subject to prior regulatory approval.

Government regulation

The FDA and comparable regulatory agencies in foreign countries as well as pharmacy regulators in state and local jurisdictions impose
substantial requirements upon the clinical development, manufacture and marketing of pharmaceutical products. These agencies and other
federal, state and local entities regulate research and development activities and the testing, manufacture, quality control, safety,

effectiveness, labeling, storage, record keeping, approval, advertising, and promotion of our products.

The process required by the FDA under the drug provisions of the United States Food, Drug, and Cosmetc Act before our initial
products may be marketed in the U.S. generally involves the following:

*  preclinical laboratory and animal tests;

¢ submission of an Investigational New Drug Application (“IND"), which must become effective before human clinical trials may
begin;

*  adequate and well-controlled human clinical ttials to establish the safety and efficacy of the product candidate for its intended use;
. submission to the FDA of an NDA; and
*  FDA teview and approval of an NDA.

The testing and approval process requires substantial time, effort, and financial resources, and we cannot be certain that any approval
will be granted on a tmely basis, if 2t all.

Preclinical tests include laboratory evaluation of the product candidate, its chemistry, formulation and stability, as well as animal studies
10 assess the potential safety and efficacy of the product candidate. Cerrain preclinical tests must be conducted in compliance with good
laboratoty practice regulations. Violations of these regulations can, in some cases, lead to invalidation of the studies, requiring such studies
to be replicated. In some cases, long-term preclinical studies are conducted while clinical studies are ongoing,




We then submit the results of the preclinical tests, together with manufacturing information and analytical data, to the FDA as part of
an IND, which must become effective before we may begin human clinical trials, The IND automatically becomes effective 30 days after
receipt by the FDA, unless the FDDA, within the 30-day time period, raises concerns or questions about the conduct of the trials as outlined
in the IND and imposes a clinical hold. In such a case, the IND sponsor and the FIDA must resolve any outstanding concerns before
clinical trials can begin. Our submission of an IND may not result in FDIA authorization to commence clinical trials. All clinical trials must
be conducted under the supervision of a qualified investigator in accordance with good clinical practice regulations. These regulations
include the requirement that all subjects provide informed consent. Further, an independent Insututional Review Board {(“IRB”™) ar each
medical center proposing to conduct the clinical trials must review and approve any clinical study. The IRB also continues to monitor the
study and must be kept aware of the study’s progress, particularly as to adverse events and changes in the research. Progress reports
detailing the results of the clinical trials must be submitted at least annually to the FDA and more frequendy if adverse events occur.

Human clinical trials are typically conducted in three sequential phases that may overlap:

. Phase 1. The drug is initially introduced into healthy human subjects or patients and tested for safety, dosage tolerance, absorption,
metabolism, distribution and excretion.

*  Phase 2: The drug is studied in a limited patient population to identify possible adverse effects and safety risks, to determine the
efficacy of the product for specific targeted diseases and to determine dosage tolerance and optimal dosage.

®  Phase 3: When Phase 2 evaluations demonstrate that a dosage range of the drug is effective and has an acceptable safety profile,
Phase 3 trials are undertaken to further evaluate dosage and clinical efficacy and to further test for safety in an expanded patient
population, often at geographically dispersed clinical study sites.

We cannot be certain that we will successfully complete Phase 1, Phase 2 or Phase 3 testng of our product candidates within any
specific time period, if at all. Furthermore, the FDA or the TRB, or us as IND sponsor, may suspend clinical trals at any time on various
grounds, including a finding that the subjects or patients are being exposed to an unacceptable health risk.

Under the Pediattic Research Equity Act of 2003, a sponsor is also required to include an assessment, generally based on clinical study
data, on the safety and efficacy of its drugs for all relevant pediatric populations before it submits an NDA. The statute provides for
waivers or deferrals in certain situations, and we intend to submit applications for such waivers or deferrals, but we can make no assurances
that such situations will apply to our products ot that the waivers or deferrals will be granted.

We also must finalize a process for manufacturing the product in accordance with current good manufacturing practice (“GMP”)
requirements. The manufacturing process must be capable of consistently producing quality batches of the product, and we must develop
methods for testing the quality, purity, and potency of the final products. Additdonally, appropriate packaging must be selected and tested
and stability studies must be conducted to demonstrate that the product does not undergo unacceptable deterioration over its shelf-life.

The results of product development, pre-clinical studies, and clinical studies are submitted to the FIDA as part of an NDA for approval
of the marketing and commercial shipment of the product. The FDA conducts an initial review of each NDA submitted to assess whether
it is acceptable for filing. The FDA may refuse to file the NDA and may request additional informadon. In this event, the application snust
be resubmitted with the addidonal information, The resubmitted application is also subject to review before the FDA accepts it for filing,
Once the FDA accepts the NDA for filing, the agency begins an in-depth review of the NDA. The FDA has substantial discretion in the
approval process and may disagree with our interpretaton of the data submirted in the NDA. The review process may be significantty
extended by the FDA requests for additional information or clarification regarding information already provided. Also, as part of this
review, the FDA may refer the application to an appropriate advisory committee, typically a panel of clinicians, for review, evaluation and a
recommendadon. The FDA is not bound by the recommendation of an advisory commitree. Manufacturing establishments often also are
subject to ingpections prior to NDA approval to assure compliance with GMPs,

The FDA's response to the NIDA will be in the form of an approval letter, an approvable letter or a non-approvable letter. Any
response from the FDA that is not approval of the NDA may require us to submit additional informaton, which may include additonal
clinicat data. Even if the FDA approves the NDA, the agency may decide later to withdraw product approval if compliance with regulatory
standards is not maintained or if safety problems occur after the product reaches the market. The FDA may require post-approval studies,
also known as Phase IV studies, to develop additicnal informadon regarding the product. In addidon, the FDA requires post-approval
adverse event reporting, and the agency has the power to require changes in labeling or to prevent further marketing of a product. The
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agency may also decide later to withdraw product approval if compliance with regulatory standards is not maintained ot if safety problems
occur after the product reaches the market.

Under the Prescription Drug User Fee Act (“PDUFA™), submission of an NDA with clinical data requires payment of a fee, which can
be increased over time by Congress. For fiscal year 2008, that fee is $1,178,000. In return, the FDA assigns a goal of ten months for
standard NDA reviews from acceptance of the application to the time the agency issues its response. There is no guarantee that the FDA
will meet its performance goal of ten months for its review.

Satisfaction of the above FDA requirements or requirements of state, local and foreign regulatory agencies typically takes several years,
and the actual time required may vary substantially based upon the type, complexity and novelty of the pharmaceutical product.
Government regulation may delay or prevent marketing of potential products for a considerable period of dme and impose costly
procedures upon our activities. We cannot be certain that the FDA or any other regulatory agency will grant approval for any of our
products under development on a timely basis, if at all. Success in preclinical or carly-stage clinical trials does not assure success in later-
stage clinical trials. Data obtained from pre-clinical and clinical activities are not always conclusive and may be susceptible to varying
interpretations that could delay, limit or prevent regulatory approval. Even if a product receives regulatory approval, the approval may be
significandy limited to specific indications or uses. Further, even after regulatory approval is obtained, later discovery of previously
unknown problems with a product may result in restrictions on the product or even complete withdrawal of the product from the market.
Delays in obtaining, or failures to obtain, regulatory approvals would have a material adverse effect on our business.

Any products we manufacture or distribute pursuant to the FDA clearances or approvals are subject to pervasive and continuing
regulation by the FDA, including record-keeping requirements, reporting of adverse experiences with the drug, submitting other periodic
reports, drug sampling and distribution requirements, notifying the FDA and gaining its approval of certain manufacturing or labeling
changes, and complying with FDA promotion and advertising requirements. The FDA has actively enforced regulations prohibiting the
marketing of products for unapproved uses. However, in certain circumstances, and subject to very stringent requirements, the FDA will
permit the dissemination of peer-reviewed scientific reprints related to unapproved uses. Drug manufacturers and their subcontractors are
required to register their facilities with the FDA and state agencies and are subject to periodic unannounced inspections by the FDA and
state agencies for compliance with current good manufacturing practices, which impose procedural and documentation requirements upon
us and our third-party manufacturers. Failure to comply with these regulations could result, among other things, in warning letters,
suspension of regulatory approval, refusal to approve pending applications or supplements to approved applicatons filed by us, recalls,
suspension or closure of production or injunctions, seizutes, or civil or criminal sanctions. We cannot be certain that we or our present ot
future subcontractors will be able to comply with those regulations and other FDA regulatory requirements.

We and our product candidates are also subject to a vatiety of state laws and regulations in those states or localities where our products
are or will be marketed. Any applicable state or local regulations may hinder our ability to market our products in those states ot localities,

The FDA’s policies may change, and additional government regulations may be enacted which could prevent or delay regulatory
approval of our potental products. Moreover, increased attention to the containment of health care costs in the US. and in foreign
markets could result in new government regulations that could have a material adverse effect on our business. We cannot predict the
likelihood, nature or extent of adverse governmental regulation that might arise from future legislative or administrative action, eithet in the
U.S. or abroad.

In addition, whether or not FDA approval has been obtained, approval of a pharmaceutical product by comparable governmental
regulatory authorities in foreign countries must be obtained prior to the commencement of clinical trials and subsequent sales and
marketing efforts in those countries. The approval procedure varies in complexity from country to country, and the tdme required may be
longer or shorter than that required for FDA approval. We may incur significant costs to comply with these laws and regulations now or in
the future.

Other regulatory requirements

The U.S. Federal Trade Commission and the Office of the Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
(“HHS”) also regulate certain pharmaceutical marketing practices. Thus, reimbursement practices of the HHS covering medicine and
medical services are important to the success of our products. The federal Controlled Substances Act (“CSA”) imposes various registration,
record-keeping and reporting requirements, procurement and manufacturing quotas, import and export controls, labeling and packaging
requirements, security controls, and a restriction on prescription refills on certain pharmaceutical products. Most states impose similar
controls over controlied substances under state law as regulated by the Board of Pharmacy or other state regulatory authorities. The CSA is
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administered by the DEA, a division of the Department of Justice. To meet its responsibilities, the DEA conducts periodic inspections of
registered establishments that handle controlled substances. Failure of companies to maintain compliance, particularly as manifested in loss
or diversion, can result in regulatory action, including civil and criminal penaltes, refusal to renew necessary registrations, or initiating
proceedings to revoke those registrations. If a manufacrurer or distributor has its registration revoked, it can no longer lawfully possess or
distribute controlled substances, meaning effectively that the operatons of such an organization must cease with respect to controlled
substances. In certain circumstances, violations also can lead to criminal preceedings.

A principal factor in determining the particular requirements, if any, applicable to a product is its actual or potential abuse profile. A
pharmaceutical product may be “scheduled” as a Schedule I, II, IIT, IV ot V substance, with Schedule 11 substances considered to present
the highest risk of substance abuse for any product with a medical use, and Schedule V substances the lowest. Morphine and ketamine are
classified as Schedule I and 11T substances, respectively. As a Schedule I substance, each substance prescription for our ketamine product
would be limited to five refills within a six-month period. Morphine, however, as a Schedule II substance would be subject to higher
regulation, including no refills for prescriptions, special transactions reporting to the DEA, special DEA-supplied order forms for all
transactions, and written prescriptions instead of prescriptions phoned or faxed to a pharmacy. The DEA also limits the quantity of the
Schedule 1T controlled substance inventories used by pharmaceutical manufacturers in the production of controlied substances. As part of
the commercialization of our morphine product, we, out subcontractors or our vendors will be required to file for and obtain quotas from
the DEA for the procurement and manufacture of controlled substance active ingredients and finished drug products.

We are also subject to numerous federal, state and local laws relating to such matters as safe working conditions, manufacturing
practices, environmental protecdon, fire hazard control, and disposal of hazardous or potentially hazardous substances. We may incur
significant costs to comply with these laws and reguladons now or in the future. We cannot assure you that any portion of the regulatory
framework under which we currently operate will not change and thar such change will not have a material adverse effect on our current
and antcipated operations.

All three of our product candidates are in late stage development as shown below:

Product candidate Indication Development stage
Dyloject Post-operative pain Phase 3 (U.S.)

(injectable diclofenac) Post-operative pain, anti-inflammatory ~ MHRA Pricing Approval Received (U.K.) Murual
Recogniton Process (other European Union

countries)
PMI-150 Acute pain Phase 3 {US)
{(intranasal keramine)
Rylomine Acute moderate-to-severe pain Phase 3 (U.S))

(intranasal morphine)

The End-of-Phase 2 FDA meeting is usually required in order to progress into Phase 3 trials and ultimately product registration. The
FDA wypically schedules the End-of-Phase 2 meeting within six weeks of the meeting request, if accepted. If not accepted, the FDA
informs the company of insufficiencies to be rectfied in order to reschedule. The design, timing and cost of the Phase 3 development
program will be largely determined by the clinical safety and efficacy data and feedback from the FDA at the End-of-Phase 2 meeting,

In the second qguarter of 2006, our End-of-Phase 2 meeting for Dyloject took place. Patient enrollment in the Phase 3 program for this
product candidate commenced in the second quarter of 2006. In May 2006, we commenced enrolling patients in a larger post-operaave
pain study in fulfillment of completing two Phase 3 studies for Dyloject necessary for filing the U.S. New Drug Application ("NDA™). In
December 2007, we announced successful top-line results from the first of these two Phase 3 studies, and also announced that patient
enrollment in the second of these two studies had commenced. We anticipate completion of patient enrollment in this second Phase 3
study by mid-2008 and submission of the NDA for Dyloject in the first half of 2009. Most recently, we announced in January 2008 that our
Phase 1 study of the effects upon platelet function of administering Dyloject at therapeutically relevant doses showed minimal, albeit
detectable, effects. The effects of Dyloject as well as oral immediate release diclofenac, at their maximum, only reached the upper range of
normal in contrast to the effects of ketorolac or aspirin. Both of the latter drugs produced dramatic, highly significant interference with
platelet aggregation. These results addressed the potential that NSAIDs have upon surgical site bleeding and confirmed earlier literature
showing superiority of diclofenac over ketorolac with respect to this important safety constderation.
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In 2005, we completed the PMI-150 formulation and device bioequivalency programs and initiated additional Phase 2 studies. We met
with the FDA in January 2007 to finalize the development plan for this product candidate. At this meeting, the FDA indicated that no
additional clinical efficacy trials and pharmacokinetic trials would be needed prior to filing an inidal NDA, However, at our pre-NDA
meeting in November 2007, the review division of the FDA requested that we conduct one additional efficacy study prior to filing, We are
currently planning a post-operative, multi-dose, acute pain study in same-day orthopedic surgery that we expect to commence by mid-2008.
With respect to the potential application for this product for breakthrough cancer pain, in 2007 we began patient enrollment in 2 multi-site
trial.

We held the Rylomine End-of-Phase 2 meeting with the FDA in the first quarter of 2006 and commenced patient enrollment in the
Phase 3 program in May 2006. In June 2007, we announced successful top-line clinical results of the first of two Rylomine Phase 3 clinical
trials in which two dose regimens of Rylomine, intravenous morphine, or placebo were given to patients with acute pain after orthopedic
surgery. Pain scores, time to request rescue analgesic medication and the doses required and other outcome measures were assessed and
showed that Rylomine offered the same analgesic benefits as IV morphine and that both IV and intranasal morphine provided significantly
superior analgesia than placebo. Because bone pain is often considered more resistant to morphine than is soft-tissue pain {(e.g, post-
abdominal sutgery), we believe that these successful results in the more potentially challenging of our two Phase 3 pivotal trals are
significant. In December 2007, we announced that we were successful in meeting our primary endpoints in the first of our Rylomine Phase
3 trials.

European product approval

Prior regulatory approval for human healthy volunteer studies (Phase 1 studies) is required in member states of the E.U. Following
successful completion of Phase 1 studies, data is submitted in summarized format to the applicable regulatory authority in the member
state in respect of applications for the conduct of later Phase 2 studies. The regulatory authorities in the E.U. typically have between one
and three months to raise any objections to the proposed study, and they often have the right to extend this review period at their
discretion. In addition, one or more independent ethics committees, which typically operate similatly to an Institutional Review Board in
the U.S., will review the ethics of conducting the proposed research,

In order to gain marketing approvat in the E.U., we must submit 2 dossier to the relevant authority for review, which is known in the
E.U. as an MAA. The format is usually specific and laid out by each authority, although in general it will include information on the quality
of the chemistry, manufacturing and pharmaceutical aspects of the product as well as the non-clinical and clinical data.

In the E.U. there is, for many products, a choice of two different authofization routes: centralized and decentralized, Under the
centralized route, which we are pursuing for our intranasal morphine product, one marketing authorization is granted for the entire E.U.,
while under the decentralized route, which we are pursuing for intravenous diclofenac, a series of national marketing authorizations are
granted. In the centralized system the application will be reviewed by members of the Committee for Medicinal Products for Human Uses
(“CHMP”), on behalf of EMEA. The EMEA will, based upon the review of the CHMP, provide an opinion to the European Commission
on the safety, quality and efficacy of the product. The decision to grant or refuse an authorization is made by the European Commission.
In circumstances where use of the centralized route is not mandatory, we can choose to use the decentralized route, in which case the
application will be reviewed by one member state’s regulatory agency. If the regulatory agency grants the authorization, other member
states’ regulatory authorities are asked to “mutually recognize” the authorization granted by the first member state’s regulatory agency.

Approval can take several months to several years, or can be denied. The approval process can be affected by a number of factors.
Additional studies of clinical trials may be requested during the review and may delay marketing approval and involve unbudgeted costs.
The regulatory authorities may conduct an inspection of relevant facilities and review manufacturing procedures, operating systems and
personnel qualifications. In addition to obtaining approval for each product, in many cases each drug manufacturing facility must be
approved. Further inspections may occur over the life of the product. An inspection of the clinical investigation sites by a competent
authority may be required as part of the regulatory approval procedure. As a condition of marketing approval, the regulatory agency may
require post-marketing surveillance to monitor for adverse effects, or other additional studies as deemed appropriate. After approval for
the initial indication, further clinical studies are usually necessary to gain approval for any additional indications. The terms of any approval,
including labeling content, may be more restrictive than expected and could affect the marketability of a product.

Failure to comply with applicable regulatory requirements after obtaining regulatory approval can, among other things, result in the
suspension of regulatory approval, as well as possible civil and criminal sanctions. Renewals in Europe may require additional data, which
may result in a license being withdrawn. In the E.U., regulators have the authotity to revoke, suspend or withdraw approvals of previously
approved products, to prevent companies and individuals from participating in the drug approval process, to request recalls, to seize
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violative products and to obtain injunctions to close manufacturing plants not operating in conformity with regulatory requirements and to
stop shipments of violative products, ‘

In July 2005, we announced that we had met our ptimary endpoint in the pivotal European Phase 2/3 study for Dyloject. In September
2005, at the European Socicty of Regional Anaesthesia and Pain Therapy annual meeting, we presented comprehensive results of this
randomized, double-blind, placebo- and comparator-controlled Phase 2/3 pivotal clinical trial comparing the safety, efficacy and
therapeutic equivalency of Dyloject to Voltaral®. The Marketing Authotization Applicaton (“MAA” ) submission for approval to sell
Dyloject in Europe was filed in September 2005, and was accepted for review in October 2005. In October 2007, we announced that we
received marketing a2uthorization approval in the U.K. for Dyloject. In November 2007, we received pricing approval for Dyloject from the
U.K. Department of Health Pharmaceutical Price Regulation Scheme as well as notification of our first UK. hospital formulary approval,
As of February 1, 2008, Dyloject has been ordered by 26 different U.K. hospitals, with 10 reordering product. Now that we have entered
the commercial phase of Dyloject in the U.K., we anticipate announcing attendant revenues with respect to the first quarter of 2008. We
continue to take the necessary steps to facilitate mutual recognition of Dyloject in, and a subsequent product launch, including distribution,
matketing and sales activites, in Germany and cermin other European countries. We intend to file additonal marketing applications
through the murual recognition process in a number of European Union (“EU”) member countries during the second half of 2008. There
can be no assurance as to whether or when such applications in the remaining European countries will be approved.

In September 2004, the CHMP appointed France as the Rapporteur country that will be responsible along with Germany for reviewing
the Rylomine MAA filing. We are focused on seeking regulatory and sdenrific advice from French regulatory experts and the EMEA. The
results of the clinical wrials along with feedback from the regulatory agencies will determine the timing, extent and cost of the European
Rylomine development program and product filings.

Pricing controls

Before a pharmaceutical product may be marketed and sold in certain foreign countries the proposed pricing for the product must be
approved. The requirements governing product pricing vary widely from country to country and can be implemented disparately at the
national level.

The E.U. generally provides options for its member states to control the ptices of medicinal products for human use. A member state
may approve a specific price for the medicinal product or it may instead adopt a system of direct or indirect controls on the profitability of
the company placing the medicinal product on the market. For example, the regulation of prices of pharmaceuticals in the UK. is generally
designed to provide controls on the overall profirs that pharmaceutical companies may derive from their sales to the U.K. Natonal Health
Service. The UK. system is generally based on profitability targets or limits for individual companies which are normally assessed as a
remirn on capital employed by the company in servicing the Nationat Health Service market, comparing capital employed and profits.

In comparison, ltaly generally establishes prices for pharmaceuticals based on a price monitoring system. The reference price is the
European average price calculated on'the basis of the prices in four reference markets: France, Spain, Germany and the U.K. Italy typically
establishes the price of medicines belonging to the same therapeutic class on the lowest price for a medicine belonging to that category,
Spain generally establishes the selling price for new pharmaceudcals based on the prime cost, plus a profit margin within a range established
each year by the Spanish Commission for Economic Affairs. Promotional advertising costs are limited.

There can be no assurance that any country that has price controls or reimbursement limitations for pharmaceuticals will allow
favorable reimbursement and pricing arrangements for our products.

Third-party reimbursements

In the U.S,, E.U. and elsewhere, sales of therapeutic and other pharmaceutical products are dependent in part on the availability and
adequacy of reimbursement to the consumer or the health care provider from third party payers, such as government and private insurance
plans. Third party payers are increasingly challenging the prices charged for medical products and services, and new products that are more
expensive than existing treatments may have difficulty finding ready acceptance unless there is a clear therapeutic benefit.

In the U.S,, the willingness of consumers to choose treatment with a self-administered outpatient preseription drug over a different
drug, or over another form of treatment, is often dependent in part upon the success of the manufacturer in obtaining placement of the
product on their health plan’s formulary or drug list, because favorable formulary placement means lower out of pocket costs. Obtaining
favorable formulary placement typically requires that the product be less expensive than what the health plan determines to be
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therapeutically equivalent products, and often requires manufactuters to offer discounts or rebates. Federal law also requires manufacturers
to pay rebates to state Medicaid programs in order to have their products reimbursed by Medicaid. Beginning in the summer of 2004,
Medicare sponsored a prescription drug discount card program that is intended to teduce costs for prescription drugs, and beginning in
2006, a new Medicare Part D offered eligible beneficiaries limited coverage for outpatient prescription drugs. Both of these programs rely
on formularies. These modifications to Medicare payment formulas include those for prescription drugs administered in a provider setting,
such as a hospital or physician’s office, and are generally designed to lower reimbursement for those drugs.

The E.U. generally provides options for its member states to restrict the range of medicinal products for which their natonal health
insurance systems provide reimbursement. Member states in the E.U. can opt to have a “positive” or a “negative” list. A positive list is a
listing of all medicinal products covered under the national health insurance system, whereas a negative list designates which medicinal
products are excluded from coverage. The E.U., the U.K. and Spain use a negative list approach, while France uses a positive list approach.
In Canada, each province decides on reimbursement measures. In some countries, in addition to positive and negative lists, products may
be subject to a clinical and cost effectiveness review by a health technology assessment body. A negative determination by such a body in
relation to one of our products could affect the presctibing of the product. For example, in the UK., the National Institute for Clinical
Excellence (“NICE”) provides guidance to the National Health Service on whether a particular drug is clinically effective and cost
effective. Although presented as “guidance,” doctors are expected to take the guidance into account when choosing a drug to prescribe. In
addition, health authorities may not make funding available for drugs not given a positive recommendation by the NICE. There is a risk
that a negative determination by the NICE will mean fewer prescriptions. Although the NICE will consider drugs with orphan status, there
is a degree of tension on the application by the NICE of the standard cost assessment for orphan drugs, which are often priced more
highly to compensate for the limited market. It is unclear whether the NICE will adopt a more relaxed approach toward the assessment of
orphan drugs.

We cannot assure you that any of our products will be considered cost effective and that reimbursement to the consumer or the health
care provider will be available or will be sufficient to allow us to sell our products on a competitive and profitable basis.

Fraud and abuse laws

A federal law commonly known as the federal healthcare program anti-kickback law, and several similar state laws, prohibit any
remuneration that is intended to induce physicians or others cither to refer patients, or to acquire or arrange for or recommend the
acquisition of health care products or services, While the federal law applies only to referrals, products or services for which payment may
be made by a federal health care program, the state laws often apply regardless of whether federal funds may be involved. Other federal
and state laws prohibit anyone from presenting or causing to be presented claims for payment to health care payers that are false,
fraudulent or are for items or services not provided as claimed. Several recent and current enforcement actions by federal and state
prosecutors have targeted some sales and marketing activities of prescription drug manufacturers under these statutes. As we begin to
market our products to health care providers, such as physicians and hospitals, the relationships we form, including compensation of
physicians for speaking or consulting services, financial support of continuing medical education or research programs, and assisting
customers with obtaining third-party reimbursement for its products, could be challenged under these broad laws. A successful challenge
could lead to civil or criminal penalties, including the exclusion of our products from reimbursement under Medicare, Medicaid, U.S.
militaty health care or other federally-funded health care programs. Even an unsuccessful challenge could cause adverse publicity and be
costly to respond to, and thus could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. It is our
intention to consult with experienced counsel concerning the potential application of these and other laws to our business and to attempt
to structure our sales, marketing and other activities to comply with all such laws. However, given the broad reach of these laws and the
increasing attention being given to them by law enforcement authorities, we cannot assure you that some of our activities will not be
subject to challenge in the future. '

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we had 40 full-time employees and two temporary employees. We intend to employ additional employees or
retain persons as consultants as needed, depending on the availability of such persons.

Available information
We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and in

accordance with such laws we file annual, quarterly and current reports and other information with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”). The SEC maintains a website that contains annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy and information
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statetnents and other information filed with the SEC. The SEC’s website address is_http:/ /www.sec.pov . You may also read and copy any
document we file with the SEC at the SEC’s public reference room, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, I2.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-
800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of its public reference room. The information we file with the SEC and other

informaden about us is also available on our website at_http://www javelinphammaceuticals.com . However, the informadon on our
website is not a part of, nor is such information to be deemed incorporated by reference into, this report,

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.
Risks Related to Out Business

We currently have no significant product revenues and cannot be certain when significant product revenues wilf commence, if
ever.

To date, we have devoted significant financial resources to research and development of our products. We have only received
marketing authorization approval with respect to Dyloject in the United Kingdom. Untl, and unless, we receive approval from the FDA
and from regulatory authorities in other foreign jurisdictions for our product candidates, we cannot sell our products in such countries and
we will not have significant product revenues. As a result, we have generated significant operating losses. As of December 31, 2007, we had
an accumulated deficit of $110.5 million, excluding an approximately $3.6 million deemed dividend; although $18.6 million of this amount
was related to a non-cash charge for the issvance of common stock in connection with the acquisition of a license. We have used
substantial amounts of cash to date and expect capital outlays and operating expenditures to increase over the next several years as we
expand our infrastructure and research and development activitdes. We expect to fund our operations and capital expenditures primarily
from cash on hand and additional financing sources.

If we cannor obtain additional financing, our product development and commercialization efforts may be reduced or
discontinued,

Although we believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to support the current operating plan through at least
September 30, 2008, we will need additonal financing to support our operating plan thereafter. Our funding requirements may change as a
result of many factors, including delays in development activities, underestimates of budget items, unantcipated cash requirements,
increased regulatory requirements with attendant time delays, Limitation of development of new potental products, future product
opportunities with collaborators, future licensing opportunities and future business combinations. Consequently, we will need to seeck
additional sources of financing, which may not be available on favorable terms, if at all.

We plan to raise additional financing through public or private equity offerings, debt financings and/or additional corporate
collaboration and licensing arrangements. The issuance of additional equity securities in connection with any financing will canse dilution to
our shareholders and such an issuance or the perception that we will make such an issuance could have a material negative effect on the
price of our common stock. If we raise additional capital by issuing debt securities, we would incur substantial costs relating to interest
payments, may be required to pledge assets as securtity for the debt and may be constrained by restricdve financial and/or operatonal
covenants. If we raise additional funds through collaboration and licensing arrangements, it may be necessary to relinquish some rights to
our technologies or product candidates, or grant licenses on terms that are not favorable to us.

If we do nor succeed in raising additional funds on acceptable terms, we may be unable to complete planned pre-clinical and clinical
trials or obtain approval of our product candidates from the FDA and other regulatory authorities. In additdon, we could be forced to
discontinue product development, curtail operatons, reduce or forego sales and markeung efforts and lose attractive business
opportunities. These actons would likely reduce the price of our common stock.

We have incurred significant losses and may never achieve or sustain profitability.

We have a history of losses and expect to incur substantal losses and negative operating cash flows for the foreseeable future, and we
may not achieve or maintain profitability. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, we had net iosses of $10.6 million, $17.8
million and $31.0 million, respectvely. Our net loss for the years ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2007 was materially
increased as compared to prior fiscal years in part due to our adoption of the amendment issued by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board to Statement of Financial Accountng Standards No. 123, Accounting For Stock-Based Compensaton (“SFAS No. 123R™). As
discussed in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” in the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, we adopted SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 2006. SFAS
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No. 123R eliminates the ability to account for shate-based compensation transactions using Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
and instead requires us to recognize compensation expense using a fair-value based method for costs related to share-based payments
including stock options. Our adoption of SFAS No. 123R is expected to materially impact our financial position and results of operations
for future periods.

Even if we succeed in developing and commercializing one or more of our product candidates, we expect to incur substantal losses for
the foresceable future and may never become profitable. We also expect to continue to incur significant operating and capital expenditures
for the next several years and anticipate that our expenses will increase substantially in the foreseeable future as we:

*  continue to undertake pre-clinical development and clinical trials for ovr product candidates;

*+  seek regulatory approvals for our product candidates;

*  implement additional internal systems and infrastructure;

*  lease additional office facilities;

. hire addivonal personnel to advance commercialization; and

*  expand research and development activities.

* We also expect to experience negative cash flows for the foreseeable future as we fund our operating losses and capital expenditures.
As a result, we will need to generate significant revenues in order to achieve and maintain profitability. We may not be able to generate
these revenues or achieve profitability in the future. Our failure to achieve or maintain profitability could negatively impact the value of our
common stock.

We have a limited operating history upon which to base an investment decision.

We are a development-stage company and have not yet demonstrated our ability to perform the functons necessary for the successtul
commercialization of any of our product candidates. The successful commercialization of our product candidates will require vs to perform
a variety of functions, including:

*  continuing to undertake preclinical development and clinical trials;

*  participating in regulatory approval processes;

. formulating and manufacturing products;

*  entering into arrangements with manufacturers; and

*  conducting sales and marketing activities cither directly or through distributors.

Our operations have been limited to organizing and staffing, acquiring, developing and securing our proprietary technology and
undertaking pre-clinical trials and clinical trials of our principal product candidates. Although we have begun to establish a sales force in the
U.K., these operatons provide a limited basis to assess out ability to commercialize our product candidates and the advisability of investing

in our common stock.

We cannot guarantee that we are in compliance with all potentially applicable regulations and compliance with newly-enacted
regulations will result in increased costs and management time,

As a publicly traded company we are subject to significant regulations, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, some of which have
only recently been adopted, and all of which are subject to change. While we have developed and instituted a corporate compliance
ptogtam based on what we believe ate the current best practices and continue to update the program in response to newly implemented or
changing regulatory requirements, we cannot assure you that we are or will be in compliance with all potentially applicable regulations. We
also cannot assure you that our ongoing assessments of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting will not uncover
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material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Moreover, we cannot assure you that we could correct any material weakness or significant
deficiencies to allow our management to conclude that our internal controls over financial reporting are effective in time to enable our
independent registered public accounting firm to attest that such assessment will have been fairly stated in any report to be filed with the
SEC or attest that we have maintained effective internal control over financial reporting.

Since late 2004, our SEC reporting status has evolved from “stall business” issuer to “non-accelerated” full reporting issuer to
“accelerated” filer becoming subject to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. By reason of this reporting status, as well as new
disclosure rules of the SEC and the American Stock Exchange, our legal and financial compliance costs have substantially increased and a
significant portion of management’s dme has been altocated in order to comply with these rules, especially with tespect to compiling the
initial comprehensive documentation of our internal controls, and then evaluating and testing the operating effectiveness of our internal
controls systems in seeking compliance with Secdon 404. If we fail to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act or any other regulations, we
may not be able to accurately report our financial results and might become subject to investgation by regulatory authorities. Any such
investigations could be costly, and would likely divert management’s attention and resources. Any inability to meet such compliance could
be detrimental to investors’ confidence in us, and thereby adversely affect the price of our common stock. In addition, any failure to
comply with applicable regulations could also tesult in a range of consequences, including restrictions on our ability to sell equity or
otherwise raise capital funds, suspension or termination of clinical trials, the failure to approve a product candidate, restrictions on our
products or manufacturing processes, withdrawal of products from the market, significant fines, or other sanctions or litigation.

If we fail to obtain or maintain the necessaty U.S. or foreign regulatory approvals for our product candidates, we will be unable
to commercialize them.

Government regulations in the US. and other countrics have a significant impact on our business and affect the research and
development, manufacture and marketing of our products. We will require FDA approval to commercialize our product candidates in the
U.S. and approvals from similar regulatory authorities in foreign jurisdictions to commercialize our product candidates in those
jurisdictions.

In order to obtain FDA approval of any of our product candidates, we must submit to the FDA an NDA, demonstrating that our
product candidate is safe for humans and effective for its intended use. This demonsiration requires significant research and animal testing,
which are referred to as pre-clinical studies, as well as human studies, which are referred to as clinical trials. We cannot predict whether our
research and clinical approaches will result in drugs that the FDA considers safe for humans and effective for indicated uses. The FDA has
substantial discretion in the drug approval process and may either refuse to accept our application, or may decide after review of our
application that the darta is insufficient to allow approval of the relevant product. If the FDA does not accept or approve our application, it
may require us to conduct additional pre-clinical testing, manufacturing studies or clinical studies and submit that data before it will
reconsider our application. The FDA may also require us to perform post-approval studies. The approval process may also be delayed by
changes in government regulation, future legisladon or admintstrative action or changes in FDA policy that occur prior to or during our
regulatory review, Delays in obtaining regulatory approvals may:

*  delay commercialization of, and our ability to derive product revenues from, our product candidates;
*  impose costly procedures; and
*  diminish competitive advantages that we may otherwise enjoy.

Even if we comply with all FDA requests, the FDA may ultimately reject one or more of our NDAs, We cannot be certain that we will
ever obtain regulatory clearance for any of our product candidates. Failure to obtain FDA approval of any of our principal product
candidates will severely undermine our business by reducing the number of potental salable products and, therefore, corresponding
product revenues. Also, the FDA might approve one or more of our product candidates but may also approve competitors’ products
possessing characteristics that offer their own treatment advantages.

Before we submit our NDAs, we plan to request waivers or deferrals from the requirement under the Pediatric Research Equity Act of
2003 to include an assessment, generaily based on clinical study darta, of the safety and efficacy of our drugs for all relevant pediatric
populations. We can make no assurances that the FDA will grant cur waiver or deferral requests. If we are required to conduct clinical
research studies in pediatric patients, this could delay the development and possible approval of our products and increase the overall costs
of product approvals.
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In addition, even after these product candidates are marketed, our products and the manufacturers are subject to -continual vigilance
and review by applicable regulatory authorites, including FDA adverse event reporting requirements and FDA requirements governing
product distribution, advertising and promotion. At any stage of development or commercialization, the discovery of previously unknown
problems with our product candidates, our own manufacturing or the manufacture by third-party manufacturers may result in restrictions
on our products or their manufacture, including withdrawal of our product from the market.

In foreign jurisdictions, we must receive approval from the appropriate regulatory, pricing and reimbursement authorities before we can
commercialize and market our drugs. Foreign regulatory approval processes generally include all of the risks associated with the FDA
approval procedures described above and additional risks associated with pricing and reimbursements. Pursuing foreign regulatory
approvals will be time-consuming and expensive. The regulations vary among countries, and foreign regulatory authorities may require
different or additional clinical trials than we conducted to obtain FDA approval for our product candidates. Other than the marketing
authorizaton approved for Dyloject in the UK., we cannot give any assurance that we will receive the approvals necessary to
commercialize our product candidates for sale outside the United States,

Approval by the FDA does not ensure approval by regulatory authorities in foreign jurisdictions on a timely basis, or at all,

Because we have limited foreign regulatory, clinical and commercial resources, we may plan to commercialize some products
internationally through collaborative relationships with foreign partners. Future partners are critical to our international success. We may
not be able to enter into collaboration agreements with appropriate partners for important foreign markets on acceptable tetms, or at all
Future collaborations with foreign partners may not be effective or profitable for us.

Our product candidates contain controlled substances, the supply of which may be limited by U.S. government policy and the
availability of which may generate public controversy, thereby reducing or restricting any future marketing arrangements or
sales.

The active ingredients in some of our current product candidates, including morphine and ketamine, are regulated by the U.S. Drug
Enforcement Administration (“DEA”), as Schedule II or III substances under the Controlled Substances Act of 1970. Most states place
similar controls over these products under a state Board of Pharmacy or similar agency. Consequently, their manufacture, shipment
(including import and export), storage, sale and use are subject to the highest degree of regulation and accountability. For example, all
regular Schedule 11 drugs must be prescribed by a physician, or under a physician’s direction, and may not be refilled within 30 days.
Furthermore, the amount of Schedule IT substances we can obtain for clinical trials, manufacruring and commercial disttibution is limited
by the DEA under a quota system, and our allotment may not be sufficient to complete clinical trials or meet commetcial demand, if any.
Any delay or refusal by the DEA in establishing our procurement quota of such substances could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial position and results of operations.

Products containing controlled substances have been known to and may continue to generate public controversy. The World Health
Organization advocates balance in national analgesic policies, so as to meet medical needs for opioids (such as morphine) and other
controlled substances (such as ketamine) while reducing opportunities for drug abuse, misuse and diversion. Opponents of these products,
however, may seck restrictions on marketing and withdrawal of any regulatory approvals, based upon concerns about the actual or potential
misuse of such products. In addition, these opponents may seck to generate negative publicity in an effort to persuade the medical
community to reject these products. Political pressures and adverse publicity could lead to delays in the introduction and marketing of our
product candidates, increased expenses for marketing, and/or restricted availability of our product candidates. Our contract manufacturers
that make and handle controlled substances also are subject to inspections by DEEA and state authorities to evaluate ongoing compliance
with security and other requirements under relevant federal and state controlled substance laws and regulations. We do not have control
over the contract manufacturers’ compliance with these regulations and standards. Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulatory
requirements may result in action such as civil penaltics, refusal to renew necessary registrations, or initiating proceedings to revoke those
registrations and, in certain circumstances, criminal proceedings. If one of these manufacturers has its registration revoked, denied or
suspended, it can no longer lawfully possess or distribute controlled substances, thereby possibly resulting in a negative impact on our
business.

Health care reformn measures and other statutory or regulatory changes could adversely affect our business.
The pharmaceutical industry is subject to extensive regulation, and from time to time legislative bodies and governmental agencies

consider changes to such regulations that could have significant impact on industry participants. For example, in light of recent highly-
publicized safety issues regarding certain drugs that had received marketing approval, the U.S. Congress is considering various proposals
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regarding drug safety, including some which would require additional safety studies and monitoring and could make drug development
more costly. We are unable to predict what additional legisladon or regulation, if any, relating to safety or other aspects of drug
development may be enacted in the future or what effect such legislaton or regulation would have on our business.

The business and financial condition of phatmaceutical companies are also affected by the efforts'of governments, third-party payors
and others to contain or reduce the costs of health care to consumers. In the U.S. and various foreign jurisdictions there have been, and we
expect that there will continue to be, a number of legislative and regulatory proposals aimed at changing the health care system, such as
proposals relating to the reimportation of drugs into the U.S. from other countries (where they are then sold ar a lower price) and
government control of prescription drug pricing. The pendency or approval of such proposals could result in a decrease in our share price
or limit our ability to raise capital or to obtain strategic collaborations or licenses.

Our product candidates are in the late stages of clinical trials in the United States, and there is no assutance that final approval
will be obtained.

Our product candidates may never be successfully matketed or manufactured. Our three principal product

candidates, Dyloject, PMI-150 (ketamine) and Rylomine, are in the late stages of clinical testing in the U.S. on a limited number of patients.
For some medical uses for which we hope to market our products, to date there have been few or no studies to determine the efficacies of

_the specific product candidates. It is possible that the FDA will disagree with our current clinical and pre-clinical research plans and require
us to conduct more extensive studies than we currently anticipate before that agency will consider our products for marketing approval,
Some of our future studies involve drug exposures for durations that are significantly longer than we have tested thus far. The longer-term
studies could reveal safety or other issues that could have an adverse impact on the ability to gain marketing approval. We will need to
commit substantial time and resources in order to conduct further clinical trials before we can submit an NDA with respect to any of these
product candidates. We cannot predict with any certainty if or when we might submit an NDA for regulatory approval of any of our
product candidates. :

Clinical trials are expensive, time-consuming and difficult to design and implement, which could affect allocations of funds and
time from other programs.

Clinical trials are expensive and difficult to design and implement, in part because they are subject to rigorous regulatory requirements.
Furthert, the medical, regulatory and commercial environment for phatmaceutical products changes quickly and often in ways that we may
not be able to accurately predict. ‘The clinical trial process is also time-consuming. We estimate that clinical trials of our product candidates
will take several more years to complete. Furthermore, as failure can occur at any stage of the trials, we could encounter problems that
cause us to zbandon or repeat clinical trials. The commencement and completion of clinical trials may be delayed by several factors,
including:

*  changes to applicable regulatory requirements;

¢ unforeseen safety issues;

*  determination of dosing issues;

. lack of effectiveness in the clinical trials;

*  slower than expected rates of patient recruitment;

*  inability to monitor patients adequately during or after treatment;

*  inability or unwillingness of medical investigators to follow our clinical protocols;

*  inability to maintain a supply of the investigational drug in sufficient quantities to support the trials; and

*  suspension or termination of clinical trials for various reasons, incleding noncompliance with regulatory requirements or changes
in the clinical care protocols and standards of care within the institutions in which our trials take place.
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In addition, we or the FDDA may suspend the clinical trials at any time if it appears that we are exposing participants to unacceptable
health risks or if the FDA finds deficiencies in our investigational NDA submissions or the conduct of these trials.

A number of companies in the biotechnology and drug development industry have suffered significant setbacks in advanced clinical
trials despite promising results in eatlier trials, In the end, we may be unable to develop marketable products.

The results of the clinical trials are uncertain and may not support our product candidate claims.

Even if the clinical trials are completed as planned, we cannot be certain that the results will support our product candidate claims ot
that the FDA or government authorities will agree with our conclusions regarding such results. Success in preclinical testing and early
clinical trials does not ensure that later clinical trals will be successful, and we cannot be sure that the results of later clinical trials will
replicate the résults of prior clinical trials and pre-clinical testing. The clinical trial process may fail to demonstrate that our product
candidates are safe for humans and effective for indicated uses. This failure would cause us to abandon a product candidate and may delay
development of other product candidates. Any delay in, or termination of, the clinical trials will delay the filing of NDAs with the FDA
and, ultimately, our ability to commercialize our product candidates and generate product revenues. In addition, the clinical trials involve a
small patient population. Because of the small sample size, the results of these clinical trials may not be indicative of future results.

Delays in patient enrollment for clinical trials could increase costs and delay regulatory approvals.

The rate of completion of clinical trials will depend on the rate of patient enrollment. There may be substantial competition to enroll’
patients in clinical trials for other products in development. This competition has delayed the clinical trials of other biotechnology and drug
development companies in the past. In addition, ongoing improvements in drug therapy, particularly for pain management drugs, may
make it more difficult for us to enroll patients in our clinical trials as the eligible patient population may choose to enroll in clinical wials
sponsored by other companies or choose other recently-approved therapies. Delays in patient enrollment can result in increased
development costs and delays in regulatory approvals,

Physicians and patients may not accept and use our drugs, which would cause a change in the business strategy with attendant
delays and needs for capital for any new business, and possibly the cessation of business.

Even if the FDA and/or applicable foreign regulatory agencies approve our drugs, physicians and patients may not accept and use
them. Acceptance and use of these drugs will depend upon a number of factors including:

*  perceptions by members of the health care community, including physicians, about the safety and effectiveness of these drugs and
the use of controlled substances;

*  potential concerns by clinicians that new formulations of well-known active pharmaceutical ingredients may have lower benefit-
to-risk ratios than earlier, widely-used formulations;

*  cost-effectiveness of these drugs relative to competing products;

*  availability of reimbursement for our products from government or other healthcare payers; and

+  effectiveness of marketing and distribution efforts by us and our licensees and distributors, if any.

Because we expect sales of the current product candidates, if approved, to generate substantially all of our product revenues for the
foreseeable future, the failure of any of these drugs to find market acceptance would harm our business and could require us to seek
additonal financing, We expect practitioners will have to be particularly convinced as to the benefits of our products in cases where our

product represents a new formulation of an existing drug.

Our ability to generate product revenues will be diminished if the drugs sell for inadequate prices or patients are unable to
obtain adequate levels of reimbursement, thereby reducing fiture levels of revenues and the ability to achieve profitability.

Our ability to commercialize our products, alone or with collaborators, will depend in part on the extent to which reimbursement will
be available from:
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. government and health administration authorities;
*  private health maintenance organizations and health ingurers; and
. other healthcare payors.

Significant uncertainty exists as to the reimbursement status of newly approved healthcare products. Healthcare payors, including
Medicare, routirtely challenge the prices charged for medical products and services. Government and other healthcare payors increasingly
attempt to contain healthcate costs by limiting both coverage and the level of reimbursement for drugs. Even if our product candidates are
approved by the FDA, insurance coverage may not be available, and reimbursement levels may be inadequate to cover such drugs, If
government and other healthcare payors do not provide adequate coverage and reimbursement levels for any of our products, the post-
approval market acceptance of our products could be diminished.

The drug-development programs depend in Iarge part upon third-party researchers who are outside our control.

We depend upon independent investgators and collaborators, such as universities, medical institutions and clinical research
organizatons, to conduct our pre-clinical and clinical trals under agreements with us. These collaborators are not our employees and,
despite certain contractual obligations, we cannot control the amount or timing of resources that they devote to our programs. These
investigators may not assign as great a priority to our programs or pursue them as diligently as we would if we were undertaking such
programs ourselves. If outside colfaborators fail to devote sufficient time and resources to these drug-development programs, or if their
performance is substandard, the approval of our FDA applications, and our introduction of new drugs, will be delayed. Many of the
agreements that we have entered into with these collaborators are terminable at the option of either party upon providing 30 days prior
written notice to the other party. If any of these agreements are terminated for any reason, it could delay regulatory approval and
commercialization of our products. In addidon, these collaborators may have relationships with other commercial entities, some of which
may compete with us. If these collaborators assist our competitors at our expense, our competitive position would be harmed.

We will rely exclusively on third parties to supply and manufacture our product candidates, withour any direct control over the
quality of our product candidates, or dming for the supply, production and delivety of our product candidates, thereby possibly
adversely affecting any future revenues.

We have relied exclusively and are dependent on certain third party single source suppliers, including DPT Lakewocd, Inc., Predsion
Pharma Services, Inc. and Baxter Healthcare Corporaton, to supply raw materials and finished goods for our product candidates. Many of
these agreements are terminable at the option of either party upon providing cerrain specified periods of prior written notice to the other
party. We cannot assure you that we will be able to effectively and efficiendy replace any suppliers that may choose to terminate their
relationships with us. The loss of one or more of these suppliers, if not replaced, could have a material adverse effect on our business. The
FDA and regulatory agencies in other countries also periodically inspect manufacturing facilities, including third parties who manufacture
products or active ingredients for us. The FDA and/or applicable foreign regulatory agencies may not believe that the chosen
manufacturers have sufficient experience making the dosage forms that we have contracted with them to preduce, and may subject those
manufacturers to increased scrutiny. Pharmaceutical manufacturing facilities must comply with applicable good manufacturing practice
standards, and manufacturers usually must invest substantial funds, time and effort to ensure full compliance with these standards. We will
not have conirol over our contract manufacturers’ compliance with these regulations and standards. Failure to comply with applicable
regulatory requirements can result in sanctions, fines, delays or suspensions of approvals, seizures or recalls of products, operating
restrictions, manufacturing interruptions, costly corrective actions, injunctions, adverse publicity against us and our products and possible
criminal prosecutions.

If we are unable to obtain sufficient supplies of raw materials or if there is a significant increase in the price of raw materials, our
business would be seriously harmed. If any of our product candidates receives the approval of the FDA and/or applicable foreign
regulatory agencies, we expect to rely on one or more third-party contractors to supply our drugs. If any current or future third-party
suppliers cease to supply the drugs in the quantity and quality we need to manufacture the drug candidates or if the current or future third-
party suppliers are unable to comply with good manufacturing practce and other government regulations, the qualification of additional or
replacement suppliers could be a lengthy process, and there may 1. © be adequate alternatives to meet our needs, which would negatively
affect our business. We may not be able to obtain the necessary drugs used in our products in the future on a timely basis, if at all,

If we are unable ro hire additional qualified personnel, our ability to grow the business may be harmed. We must hire and retain
skilled employees in a tight labor market and will be subject to high labor costs and related increased employment expenses.
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We will need to hire additonal qualified personnel with expertise in preclinical testing, clinical research and testing, government
regulation, formulation and manufacturing, finance and accounting and sales and marketing, We will compete for qualified individuals with
numerous biopharmaceutical companies, universites and other research institutions. Competition for such individuals, particularly in the
Boston metropolitan area, is intense, and we cannot be certain that our search for such personnel will be successful. Attracting and
retaining qualified personnel will be critical to our success.

Skilled employees in the industry are in great demand. We are competing for employees against companies located in the Boston
metropolitan area that are more established than we are and have the ability to pay more cash compensation than we do. We will require
sales and marketing personnel to effectively sell our products. We will also require scientific personnel in many fields, some of which are
addressed by relatively few companies. As a result, depending upon the success and the timing of clinical tests, we may experience difficulty
in hiring and retaining highly skilled employees, particularly scientists, If we are unable to hire and retain skilled personnel, our business,
financial condition, operating results and future prospects could be materially adversely affected.

We have limited experience in marketing and selling our products, and we will likely need to rely on third party collaboratots to
do so. :

We curtently have a small designated sales and marketing staff, with limited internal sales or distribution capabilities. In order to
commercialize our products following approval, we intend to further develop internal sales, marketing and distrbution capabilities to target
particular markets for our products, as well as make arrangements with third parties to perform these services for us with respect to other
markets for our products. We may not be able to fully establish these capabilities internally or hire sales personnel with approptiate
expertise to market and sell our products, if approved. In addition, even if we are able to identify one or more acceptable collaborators to
perform these services for us, we may not be able to enter into any collaborative arrangements on favorable terms, or at all.

If we enter into any collaborative arrangements for the marketing or sale of our products, our product revenues are likely to be lower
than if we marketed and sold our products ourselves. In addition, any revenues we teceive would depend upon the efforts of our
collaborators, which may not be adequate due to lack of attention or resource commitments, management turnover, change of strategic
focus, business combinations ot other factots outside of our control.

Depending upon the terms of the collaboration, the remedies we may have against an underperforming collaborator may be limited. If
we were to terminate the relationship, it may be difficult or impossible to find a replacement collaborator on acceptable terms, if at all.

If our products are not accepted by the market, or if we cannot compete successfully for market share against other drug
companies, we may not achieve sufficient product revenues, and our business will suffer.

The market for our product candidates is charactetized by intense competition and rapid technological advances. If our product
candidates receive FDA or foreign approval, they will compete with a number of existing and future drugs and therapies developed,
manufactured and marketed by others. Existing or future competing products may provide greater therapeutic convenience or clinical or
other benefits for a specific indication than our products, or may offer comparable performance at a lower cost. If our products fail to
capture and maintain market share, we may not achieve sufficient product revenues, and our business wilt suffer.

We will compete against fully integrated pharmaceutical companies and smaller companies that are collaborating with larger
pharmaceutical companies, academic institutions, government agencies and other public and private research organizations. Many of these
competitors have prescription analgesics already approved or in development. In addition, many of these competitors, either alone or
together with their collaborative partners, operate larger research and development programs and have substantially greater financial
resources than we do, as well as significantly greater experience in:

. developing drugs;

. undertaking preclinical testing and human clinical trials;

. obtaining FDA and other regulatory approvals of drugs;

. formulating and manufacturing drugs; and
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. launching, marketng and selling drugs.

The United States Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act and FDA regulations and policies provide incentives to manufacturers to challenge
patent validity or create modified, noninfringing versions of a drug in order to facilitate the approval of abbreviated new drug applications
for generic substitutes. These same incentives also encourage manufactuters to submit new drug applications, known as 505(b)(2)
applications, that rely on literature and clinical data not generated by or for the drug sponsor. In light of these incentives and especially if
our products are commergially successful, other manufacrurers may submit and gain approval for either an abbreviated NDA or a 503(b)(2)
application that will compete directly with our products.

Developments by competitors may render our products or technologies absolete or noncompetitive.

Companies that currenty sell both generic and proprietary opioid formulations inclede among others Abbott Laboratories, Alza
Pharmaceuticals, AsuaZeneca, Cephalon, Endo Pharmaceudcals, Elkins-Sinn, Janssen Pharmaceutical, McNeil Consumer Healtheare,
Purdue Pharma, Roxane Laboratories and Watson Laboratories. Alternative technologies are being developed to improve or replace the
use of opioids for pain management, several of which are in clinical trials or have recently been approved by the FDA. These aiternatives
include Elan’s Prialt, Pfizer’s Lyrica, and combination products from Endo Pharmaceuticals. In addition, companies pursuing distinct but
related fields such as neuromodulation devices represent substantial competition. Many of these organizations competing with us have
substandally greater capital resources, larger research and development staffs and facilities, longer drug development history in obtaining
regulatory approvals and greater manufacturing and marketing capabiliies than us. These organizations also compete with us to attract
qualified personnel, parties for acquisitions, joint ventures or other collaboradons.

If we fail to adequately protect or enforce our intellectual property tights or secure rights to patents of others, we may be unable
to exploit our intellectual property rights.

Our success, competitve position and future revenues will depend in part on our ability and the abilities of our licensors to obtain and
maintain patent protection for our products, methods, processes and other technologies, to preserve our trade secrets, to obtain trademarks
for our name, logo and products, to prevent third parties from infringing on our proprietary rights and to operate without infringing the
proprietary rights of third partes.

We have exclusive licenses to certain patent rights, including rights under U.S. patents and U.S. patent applications as well as rights
under equivalent foreign patents and patent applicatons, and we also own pending U.S. patent applications and foreign equivalents, We
anticipate filing additdonal patent applications both in the U.S. and in other countries, as appropriate. However, we cannot predict:

»  the degree and range of protection any patents will afford us against competitors, including whether third parties will find ways to
challenge, invalidate or othetwise circumvent our patents;

. if and when patents will issue;
+  whether or not others will obtain patents claiming aspects similar to those covered by our patents and patent applications; or
*  whether we will need to initiate litigadon or administrative proceedings which would be costly whether we win or lose.

We may not be able to adequately predict the costs associated with any such litigaton and, even if resolved in our favor, these costs
could be substantial. Such litigation could also divert management’s attention and resources. In addition, if this litigation is resolved against
us, we could be held liable for significant damages.

If a product covered by our patents or patents exclusively licensed to us is approved, then when those of our patents and exclusively
licensed patents covering that product expire, ot if they are challenged and held to be invalid or otherwise circumvented before they expire,
that product may be subject to generic competition.

Our success also depends upon the skills, knowledge and experience of our scientific and technical personnel, our consultants and
advisors as well as our licensors and contractors. To help protect our proprietaty know-how and inventions for which patents may be
unobtainable or difficult to obtain, we rely on trade secret protection and confidentiality agreements. To this end, we require all of our
employees, consultants, advisors and contractors to enter into agreements which prohibit the disclosure of confidendal information 2nd,
where applicable, require disclosure and assignment to us of the ideas, developments, discoveries and inventions important to our business.
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These agreements may not provide adequate protection for our trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information in the event of
any unauthorized use or disclosure or the lawful development by others of such informatdon. If any of these trade secrets, know-how or
other proprietaty information is disclosed, the value of our wrade secrets, know-how and other proprietary rights would be significantly
impaired, and our business and competitive position would suffer,

We will market our company and our products using trademarks. In the United States, we have filed “intent-to-use” rrademark
applications for the names Rylomine and Dyloject that have been allowed, If we do not marker products under those trademarks within a
specified period of time (initally six months, with extensions of up to three years from the date of allowance), we may not be able to
register those trademarks. We have also filed “use-based” U.S, trademark applications for our name, our logo, and our name and logo
together. If any of these applications do not result in registration of the applicable trademark, we may not be able to use that trademark in
commerce, and we may incur additional, unanticipated costs to identify and register new trademarks in lieu of the wademarks that are
included in the pending applications.

If we inftinge the rights of third parties, we could be prevented from selling our products, forced to pay damages, and incur
substantal costs in defending litipations.

If our products, methods, processes and other technologies infringe the proprietary rights of other parties, we could incur substantal
costs, and we may have to:

¢ obtain licenses, which may not be available on commercially reasonable terms, if at all;
+  redesign our products or processes to avoid infringement;

e  stop using the subject miatter claimed in the patents held by others;

e pay damages; or

*  defend litigation or administrative proceedings which would be costly whether we win or lose, and which could result in a
substantial diversion of our management resources.

We are aware of a third party which could allege that certain uses of our product candidates infringe upon certain of such third party’s
ptoptietary rights. Although we do not intend to market our preduct candidates for such uses and we are not aware of any such uses
currently in practice, we may not be able to avoid claims made by such third party as a result of our product candidates being used by
consumers for purposes other than as marketed by us.

We may be exposed to liability claims associated with the use of hazardous materials and chemicals.

Qur research and development activities involve the controlled use of hazardous matenals and chemicals. Although we believe that the
safety procedures of out manufacturers and distributors for using, storing, handling and disposing of these materials comply with federal,
state and local laws and regulations, the risk of accidental injury or contamination from these materials cannot be completely eliminated. In
the event of such an accident, we could be held liable for any resuldng damages, and any liability could materially adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, the federal, state and local laws and regulations governing the use,
manufacture, storage, handling and disposal of hazardous or radiozactive materials and waste products may require us to incur substantial
compliance costs that could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may become subject to substantial product Hability claims for which we have limited insurance, and may be required to
limit commercialization of our products in response to product liability Iawsuits.

The testing and marketing of medical products entail an inherent risk of product liability. Although side effects from clinical trials thus
far have been generally limited to symptoms known to be associated with these well-established medications, such as dysphoria (a feeling of
malaise), and nausea, we may be held liable if any more serious adverse reactions from the use of our product candidates occurs. Qur
product candidates involve new methods of delivery for potent drugs that require greater precautions to prevent unintended use, especially
since they are designed for patients’ easy self-use rather than for administration by medical professionals. For example, the FDA may
require us to develop a comprehensive risk management program for our product candidates to reduce the risk of improper patient
selection, diversion and abuse. The failure of these measures could result in harmful side effects or death. As a result, consumers, regulatory
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agencies, pharmaceutical companies or others might make claims against us. If we cannot successfully defend ourselves against product
liability claims, we may incur substantial Labilities or be required to limit commercialization of our product candidates. Our inability to
obtain sufficient product liability insurance at an acceptable cost to protect against potential product liability claims could prevent or inhibit
the commercialization of pharmaceutical products we develop, alone or with corporate collaborators. We currently carry clinical trial
insurance but do not carry product lisbility insurance. We, or any corporate collaborators, may not be able to obtain insurance at a
reasonable cost, if at all. Even if our agreements with any future corporate collaborators entitle us to indemnification against losses, such
indemnification may not be available or adequate if any claim arises.

Risks related to management
We may not successfully manage our growth, thereby preventing achievement of our business plan.

Our success will depend upon the expansion of our operations and the effective management of our growth, which will place a
significant serain on our management and on our administrative, operational, and financial resources. To manage this growth, we must
expand our facilities, augment our operational, financial and management systems, and hire and train additional qualified personnel. If we

are unable to manage our growth effectively, our business would be harmed.

We rely on key executive officers and scientific and medical advisors whose knowledge of our business and technical expertise
would be difficult to replace. -|

We are highly dependent on Martin ]. Driscoll, our Chief Executive Officer, and Daniel B. Carr, M.D., our Chief Medical Officer and
Vice Chairman of the Board, as well as other executive officers. We do not have “key person” life insurance policies for any of our officers.
We do not have employment agreements with any person other than with Mr. Driscoli, Dr. Carr, Stephen ]. Tulipano, our Chief Financial
Officer, and David B. Bernstein, our Secretary, General Counsel and Chief Intelicctual Property Counsel. The loss of the technical
knowledge and management and industry expertise of any of our key personnel could result in delays in product development and clinical
testing, loss of customers and sales, if any, and diversion of management resources, which could adversely affect operating results.

In addition, we rely on members of our scientific advisory board and consultants to assist us in formulating our research and
development strategy. All of the members of our scientific advisory board and our clinical advisors have other jobs and commitments and
may be subject to non-disclosure obligations that may limit their availability to work with us. '
Risks related to our common stock
The market price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly, which may cause certain investors to avoid purchasing our
shares.

Since July 20, 2006, our common stock has been listed on The American Stock Exchange Inc. (the “ASE”) under the symbol “JAV.”
The market price for our common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to factors, some of which are beyond our control, such as:

e announcement of new products or product enhancements by us or our competitors;

¢ results of the testing and régulatory approval of our products;

»  developments concerning intellectual property rights and regulatory approvals and concems;

. quarterly variations in our and our competitors’ results of operations;

* . changes in earnings estimates or recommendations by securities analysts;

. developments in our industry;

+  general market conditions and other factors, including factors unrelated to our own operating pcrf.ommncc;

¢ changes in laws or regulations applicable to cur products;
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*  changes in the market valuations of similar companies;
*  announcements by us of significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures (;r capital commitments;
*  additions or deparrures of key personnel;
. trading volume of our commaon stock;
. sales of our common stock by us; and
*  announcements by us of non-compliance with the ASE director independence requirements.
There has been a limited market for our common stock, which may accelerate price swings.

Recent history relating to the market prices of public companies indicates that, from time to time, there may be periods of extreme
volatlity in the market price of cur common stock. As our common stock only recently began trading on the ASE, there is no assurance
that the trading market will become more active. Prior thereto, our common stock had been traded on the OTC Bulletin Board with an
inactive market and the bid and asked prices for our common stock having fluctuated significantly on low trading volumes. Since
December 2004 the market price of our common stock has ranged from $1.90 to $7.60 per share. Because of the limited trading volume in
our common stock, holders may be unable to sell their shares of our common stock when or at prices they desire. Moteover, the inability
to sell shares in a declining market because of such illiquidity or at a price holders desire may substantially increase their risk of loss.

The American Stock Exchange imposes listing standards on our common stock that we may not be able to fulfill, thereby
leading to a possible delisting of our common stock.

As a listed ASE company, we are subject to ASE rules covering among other things, certain major corporate transactons, the
composition of our Board of Directors and commitiees thereof, minimum stockholders equity, and the maintenance of the market price of
our common stock.

We had not previously been subject to similar regulations. The failure to meet these or other ASE requirements may result in the de-
listing of our common stock from the ASE, which could adversely affect the liquidity and market price theteof.

We have not previously paid dividends on our common stock and we do not anticipate doing so in the foreseeable future,

We have not in the past paid any dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate that we will pay any dividends on our common
stock in the foreseeable future. Any future decision to pay a dividend on our common stock and the amount of any dividend paid, if
permitted, will be made at the discretion of our board of directors.

We may issue shares of preferred stock that have greater rights than our common stock.,

We are permitted by our certificate of incorporation to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock. We can issue shares of our
preferred stock in one or more series and can set the terms of the preferred stock withourt seeking any further approval from our common
stockholders or other security holders. Any preferred stock that we issue may rank ahead of our common stock in terms of dividend
ptiotity or liquidation rights and may have greater voting rights than our common stock.

A significant number of shares of our common stock are subject to options and warrants, and we may issue additional options
and warrants in the future. The issuance of shares of common stock upon the exercise of these options and warrants, as well as
issuances under our 2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, will dilute the interests of other security holders and may depress the
price of our common stock.

As of March 1, 2008, there were 49,035,967 shares of common stock outstanding. As of such date, there were vested outstanding
options to purchase up to 3,707,733 shares of common stock granted under the Javelin 2005 Omnibus Stock Incentve Plan (the
“Incentive Plan™), unvested outstanding options to purchase up to 2,950,896 shares of common stock granted under the Incentive Plan,
and outstanding watrants to purchase up to 2,380,649 shares of common stock. There were also outstanding as of March 1, 2008 options
to purchase up to 1,106,444 shares of common stock granted outside of the Incentive Plan. In addition, we may issue additional options
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and warrants from time to time to provide compensation to our employees, officers, directors and consultants under our stock option
plans, and to finance our operations. We have also adopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan pursuant to which our employees may
purchase shares of common stock at a discount through payroll deductions, subject to certain eligibility requirements. The issuance,
perceived issuance, or exercise of warrants, options or other equity securities will have a dilutive impact on other stockholders and could
have a material negative effect on the market price of our common stock.

Our principal shareholders own a substantial amount of the shares outstanding and may exert significant influence on our
Company. -

As of March 1, 2008, our officers, directors and 5% holders collectively own, directly or indirectly, approximately 27% of the
outstanding shares of our common stock. They will ‘therefore be able to exert substantial influence on the election of directors and on
other matters submitted to shareholders, including any mesger, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of our assets. Through their
ownership of securities, these stockholders will be able to substantially impact any vote of the stockholders and exert considerable
influence over our affairs.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and provisions under Delaware law may inhibit a takeover of our
Company.

Under our certificate of incorporation, our board of directors is authorized to issue shares of our common or preferred stock without
the approval of our stockholders, subject to certain ASE regulations, Issuance of these shares could make it more difficult for third parties
to acquire us without the approval of our board of directors as more shares would have to be acquired to gain control. Additionally, under
our bylaws, only our board of directors is authorized to call a special meeting of stockholders. Such provision in our bylaws could make it
more difficult for third parties to acquire us or gain control without the approval of our board of directors, who may determine whether o
not to call a special meeting of our stockholdets. Our bylaws also provide that a vote of at least 80 percent of the outstanding shares of
capital stock of the Company is required to amend certain provisions of our bylaws. This provision may prevent a third party from
successfully acquiring control of our Company. Also, Delaware law imposes restrictions on mergers and other business combinations
between us and any holder of 15% ot mote of our outstanding common stock. These provisions may deter hostle takeover attempts that
could result in an acquisition of us that could have been financially beneficial to our stockholders.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
Currently, we do not have any unresolved comments from the SEC staff with respect to our prior filings.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.
Our principal executive offices consist of approximately 22,214 square feet of leased space at 125 CambridgePark Drive, Cambridge,

Massachusetts under a lease expiring in June 2012. We also lease approximately 2,500 square feet in Lake Success, New York, to support
our manufacturing group, under a lease expiring in September 2009. We believe these premises are sufficient for our current needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

From time to time, we are involved in disputes and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. As of December 31,
2007, we were not a party to any material legal proceedings nor are we aware of any circumstance that may reasonably lead a third party to
initiate matetial legal proceedings against us.

ITEM 4, SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2007.
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PART II.

‘ ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Principal Market and Market Prices

Our comimon stock has traded on the American Stock Exchange (ASE) since July 20, 2006 under the symbol JAV, having previausly
traded in the over-the-counter market on the OTC Electronic Bulletin Board (OTCBB) under the symbol JVPH from September 7, 2005
(having been traded under the symbol ITRD prior thereto). The following table sets forth for the indicated periods the high and low sales
price or bid price, as applicable, of our common stock for the two fiscal years ended December 31, 2007, as reported on the ASE and
OTCBB. With respect to the OTCBB, such quotations are based on quotations between dealers, and do not reflect retail mark-up, mark-
down or commissions, and may not necessatily represent actual transactons.

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
Fiscal Period 12/31/07 12/31/06
High - Low High Low
First Quarter § 7.00 $ 444 $ 435 $ 295
Second Quarter 7.48 5.65 4.15 3.20
Third Quarter - 6.75 377 3.92 3.00
Fourth Quarter 5.74 33 5.67 2.66

Approximate Number of Holders of QOur Common Stock

On February 29, 2008, there were approximately 136 stockholders of record of cur common stock, excluding record holders of IDDS
common stock who have not yet exchanged the certificates for their IDDS shares for our common stock. In addition, a number of shares
of common stock are held in street or nominee name, so it is believed that there are a substantial number of additional beneficial owners of
out ¢ommon stock,

Dividends

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock in the past, and we do not anticipate doing so in the
foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain any future earnings for funding growth and, therefore, do not anticipate paying any cash
dividends in the foreseeable furure.
Transfer Agent

American Stock Trust & Transfer Company, New York, New Yotk, is the transfer agent for our common stock.

Securities Authotized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securides to be Weighted average exercise
issued upon exercise of price of outstanding Number of secutities
outstanding options, options, warrants and remaining available for
Plan Category waaggants and rdghrs rghts futoreissuance = 00000
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 5,845,797 § 338 2,614,065(1)
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders 1,106,444 § 387 —
Total: 6,952.241 $ 3.46 2,614,065(1)

(1)  Includes 100,000 shares of commoan stock available for future issuance under the 2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
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Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related information shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or “filed” with the SEC, nor shall such information be
incorporated by referente into any future filing wnder the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Aat”), or the Secunities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Aet”), each as amended, except to the extent that we specfically incorporate 1 by reference into such filing.

The graph below shows a comparison of cumulative total return on our common stock to the cumulative return on The Russell 2000
Index, the RDG Small Cap Pharmaceutical Index and the AMEX Biotechnology Index since December 7, 2004. The performance graph is
being shown only from December 7, 2004 because Intrac, Inc., our predecessor, had been a “shell” corporation without operations and
very limited trading of its common stock until the December 7, 2004 closing of the merger between Intrac and IDDS, which had been a
private company. The Performance Graph assumes reinvestment of dividends, where applicable. The stock performance shown on the
graph below is based on historical data and is not indicative of, or intended to forecast, the possible future performance of our common
stock.

COMPARISON OF 3 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc., The Russell 2000 Index,
The RDG Smallcap Pharmaceutical Index And The AMEX Biotechnotogy Index
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* $100 invested on 12/7/04 in stock or on 11/30/04 in index-including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The sclected financial data presented below, which has been derived from our audited consclidated financial statements for the fiscal
years 2003-2007, should be read in conjunction with Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation” and the accompanying consolidated financial statements and related notes included in this Annual Report. The following table
sets forth selected consolidated financial data as of and for the years in the five year period ended December 31, 2007, All share and per
share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the 1.018 per share exchange ratio in the December 2004 reverse merger between Intrac and
IDDS, and the 1.0t6-for-1 stock split on March 12, 2002. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in the
future,

Cumulative
from
February 23,
1998
(Inception) to
Year Ended December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 @ ____ 2005 2004 2003 —2007
(In thousands, except per share data)
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues:
Government grants and contracts 5 — 5 842 § 1548 3 837 § 1102 § 5,805
Operating expenses:
Research and development 19,019 10,854 7,213 4,806 2,217 76,237
Selling, general and administrative 13,811 9,609 5,222 2,703 2,013 43,541
Depreciation and amortization 97 61 44 32 24 276
Total operating expenses 32927 20,524 12,479 7,541 4,254 120,054
Operating loss (32927 (19.682) {10,931) (6,704) (3.152) (114.249)
Other income —_ 601 — 4 —_ 605
Interest expense {t) — — (356) an (945)
Interest income 1,897 1,283 319 9 14 4,119
Other income (expense} 1.896 1,884 319 (343) (3) 33779
Net loss : {(31,031) {17,798) (10,612) (7,047) (3,155) (110,470
Deemed dividend related to beneficial
conversion feature of Series B convertible
preferred stock, p— — — (3.559

Net loss attributable to common stockholders §(31.031) § (17798 § (10612 $§_{7.047) § (315 § (114,029

Net loss per share attributable to common

stockholders:
Basic and diluted $ 0.68) § 0.4 3 (0.38) $ (064 $ (032
Weighted average shares 45,463 40,180 27,831 106,937 9918
As of December 31,
— 2007 _ __ 2006  ____ 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15931 8% 9273 § 33307 § 14783 % 3151
Short term matketable securities 21,319 11,462 —_ —_ —
Working capital 30,015 17,885 32,988 12,173 2,366
Convertible preferred stock — _— —_ —_ 23,183
Total assets 43,152 21,441 34,439 15,156 3,510
Stockholders equity (deficit) 34,511 18,232 33,202 12,342 (20,673)
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATION "

This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and accompanying notes included elsewhere in
this Annual Report. This discussion includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Operating results are not
necessarily indicative of results that may occur in future pericds.

Forward Looking Statements

We are including the following cautionary statement in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to make applicable and take advantage of the
safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 for any forward-looking statements made by or on our
behalf. Forward looking statements include statements concerning plans, objectives, goals, strategies, future events or performance and
undetlying assumptions and other statements which are other than statements of historical facts. Certain statements contained herein are
forward-looking statements and accordingly involve risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially
from those expressed in good faith forward-looking statements. Our expectations, beliefs and projections are expressed in good faith and
are believed by us to have a reasonable basis, including, without limitation, management’s examination of historical operating trends, data
contained in our records and other data available from third parties, but there can be no assurance that management’s expectations, beliefs
ot projections will result or be achieved ot accomplished. Any forward-looking statement contained in this document speaks only as of the
date on which the statement is made. We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement or statements to reflect events
or circumstances that occur after the date on which the statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

In addition to other factors and matters discussed elsewhere herein, the following are important factors that, in our view, could cause
actual results to differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking statements: the carrying-out of our research and development
program for our product candidates, including demonstrating their safety and efficacy at each stage of testing; the timely obtaining of
regulatory approvals and patents; the commercialization of our product candidates, at reasonable costs; the ability of our suppliers to
continue to provide sufficient supply of products; the ability to compete against products intended for similar use by recognized and weli
capitalized pharmaceutical companies; our ability to raise capital when needed, and without adverse and highly dilutive consequences to
stockholders; and our ability to retain management and obtain additional employees as required. We are also subject to numerous risks
relating to our product candidates, manufacturing, regulatory, financial resources, competition and personnel as set forth in the section
“Risk Factors” in this report. Except to the extent required by applicable laws or rules, we disclaim any obligations to update any forward-
looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof. '

Ovetview

We are a specialty pharmaceutical company that applies proprietary technologies to develop new products and improved formulations
of existing drugs that target cutrent unmet and underserved medical needs primarily in the pain management market. Our product
candidates are designed to offer enhanced pain relief, fewer adverse side effects and faster relief of pain compared to other currently
available treatments. We have three late stage product candidates in clinical development in the United States: Dyloject™ (diclofenac
sodium injectable), PMI-150 (intranasal ketamine) and Rylomine (intranasal morphine). On October 31, 2007, we received marketing
authorization approval in the United Kingdom (“U.K.") for Dyloject®, our proprictary injectable formulation of diclofenac sodium (75
mg/2 ml). Commercial launch of the product occurred in December of 2007 upon first inclusion in local hospital formularies. Product
revenues related to Dyloject are expected to occur in 2008,

We have devoted substantially all of our resources since we began our operations in February 1998 to the development of proprictary
pharmaceutical products for the treatment of pain. We have not generated any revenues from product sales. Since our inception, we have
incurred an accumulated net loss attributable to our common stockholders of approximately $110.5 million through December 31, 2007,
excluding approximately $3.6 million of a deemed dividend. These losses have resulted principally from costs incurred in research and
development activities, including acquisition of technology rights, general and administrative expenses, and most recendy, sales and
marketing expenses. Research and development activities include salaries, benefits and stock-based compensation for our research,
development and manufacturing employees, costs associated with nonclinical and clinical trials, process development and improvement,
and clinical and commercial scale manufacturing. Selling, general and administrative costs include salaries, benefits and stock-based
compensation for employees, temporary and consulting expenses, and costs associated with our post-launch selling and marketing activitics
in the UK.
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On September 7, 2005, we completed a merger with Intrac, Inc. (“Intrac™), a Nevada corporation, for the purpose of migrating the
Intrac corporate entity to Delaware, at which time Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Javelin”) continued the business conducted by Intrac,
Javelin was incorporated in July 2005 in the State of Delaware by Intrac.

On December 6, 2004, we completed a reverse merger transaction with Innovadve Drug Delivery Systems, Inc. (“IDDS”), wheteby
Intrac Merger Sub, Inc, a newly-formed wholly-owned subsidiary of Intrac merged with and inte IDDS, with IDDS as the surviving
corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Intrac. In consideration for their shares of IDDS, the formes stockholders of IDDS received
approximately 95.5% of the outstanding common stock of Intrac. Following the merger, the executive officers and directors of IDDS
became the executive officers and directors of Intrac. For accounting purposes, the merger was treated as a reverse acquisition with IDDS
as the acquiror and Intrac as the acquired party. Therefore, when we refer to our business and financial information relating to periods
ptior to the merger, we are referring to the business and financial informatdon of IDDS. The merger did not have any significant effects on
our assets or liabilities or on our results of operations subsequent to the date of the merger,

Since our inception, we have incurred approximately $76.2 million of research and development costs. The major research projects
undertaken by us include the development of Dyloject, PMI-150 and Rylomine. Total research and development costs incurted to date for
each of these products was approximately $19.3 million, $18.2 million and $18.5 million, respectively. In addition, we incurred
approximately $1.6 million of research and development costs since inception that do not relate to our major research projects, and we
incurred a charge of approximately $18.6 million related to the merger of IDDS with Pain Management, Inc, and the related acquisition of
a licensing agreement in 1998,

For various reasons, many of which zare outside our conwrol, including timing and results of our clinical trials, obtaining regalatory
apptoval and our dependence on third parties, we cannot estimate the total remaining costs to be incurred to commercialize our products,
nor is it possible to estimate when, if ever, any of our products will be approved by regulatory agencies for commercial sale. In addition, we
may experience adverse results in the development of our products, which could result in significant delays in obtaining approval to sell our
products, additional costs to be incurred to obtain regulatory approval or failure to obtain regulatory approval. If any of our product
candidates were to experience setbacks, it would have a material adverse effect on our financial position and operating results. Even if we
successfully complete development and obtain regulatory approval of one or more of our products, failure of physicians and patents to
accept our products as a safe, cost-effective alternative compared to existing products would have a material adverse effect on our business.

Qur financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern basis, which assumes realization of assets and settlement of liabilides
in the ordinary course of business, We have limited capital resources, significant net operating losses and negative cash flows from
operations since inception and expect these conditions to continue for the foreseeable future. In addition, it is anticipated that we likely will
not generate significant revenues from product sales during the year ending December 31, 2008. Although we believe that our existing cash
resources will be sufficient to support the current operating plan at least through September 30, 2008, we will need addidonal financing to
support our operatng plan thereafter or we will need to modify our operanng plan accordingly. We may raise addittonat funds through the
private and/or public sale of our equity and/or debt securities. We may also seek to raise capital through collaborative arrangements with
corporate sources or other sources of financing. There can be no assurance that such additional financing, if at all available, can be
obtained on térms reasonable to us. If sufficient funds are not available, we will need to postpone or discontinue future planned operations
and projects.
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Results of Operations

Revenues. With the exception of revenues derived from government grants and contracts, we have generated no operating revenues
since our inception. However, we do expect to generate product revenues in 2008 from sales of our lead product Dyloject primarily in the
UK.

Product revenues from Dyloject in 2008 and beyond will be contingent upon: successfully completing the U.K. hospital formulary
approval process with advantageous pricing; our ability to file additional marketing applications through the mutual recognition process in
a number of European Union (“EU”) member countries; regulatory approval of those applications; our ability to achieve favorable pricing
in member countries; our ability to market Dyloject effectively; and market acceptance of Dyloject. There can be no assurance as to
whether or when such applications in the remaining Eutopean countsies will be approved.

In October 2000, we received a grant of $1.2 million from the U.S. Department of Defense (“DOD”). In May 2003, the DOD
extended funding of the development of PMI-150 by awarding us 2 $4.3 million contract. The DOD reimburses us for certain research and
development costs related to the PMI-150 development program which can fluctuate from period to period. The DOD contract was the
sole source of contract and grant revenue. The DOD contract is billed monthly as costs are incutred.

We did not record any contract revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to approximately $0.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006, During 2006, the DOD contract was the sole source of contract revenue. As of December 31, 2006, we had no
additional funds available for reimbursement from the DOD grant, nor did we enter into any new grants in 2007. The decrease is
attributable to decreased activity associated with expenditures billable to the DOD contract.

Contract revenue decreased from approximately $1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 to approximately $0.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2006. During 2005, the DOD contract was the sole source of contract revenue. The decrease is attributable
to decreased activity associated with expenditures billable to the DOD contract.

As of December 31, 2006, we had no additional funds available for reimbursement from the DOD grant, nor did we enter into any new
grants in 2007,

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries, stock-based compensation
and related expenses for personnel, materials and supplies used to develop and manufacture our product candidates. Other research and
development expenses include compensation paid to consultants and outside service providers to run the clinical trials. We expense
research and development costs as incurred. We expect that we will continue to incur significant research and development expenses in the
future as our three product candidates proceed with pivotal clinical trials and progress through the later stages of product development
towards commercialization. Research and development expenses may fluctuate from period to period due to the timing and nature of
clinical trial expenditures and regulatory filings.

Research and development expenses increased from approximately $10.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 to $19.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2007. The increase in research and development expenses resulted from the advancement of each
of our three product candidate development programs. Research and development salaries, temporary labor, and benefits increased by
approximately $1.5 million as compared to the same period of the prior year. The increase was due primarily to the addition of full time
personnel and recording stock-based compensation in accordance with SFAS 123(R). Expenses associated with clinical trials, including lab
fees, increased by approximately $4.7 million, Expenses associated with manufactuting and process development increased by $2.2 million
compared to the same period of the ptior year. Milestone expenses were $300,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006. There were no
milestone expenses fot the year ended December 31, 2007.

Dyloject product development costs increased from approximately $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 to §9.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2007. In July 2007, we began the second of two pivotal U.S. Phase 3 clinical studies for Dyloject. This
U.S. study is enrolling patients with moderate-to-severe postoperative pain following elective orthopedic surgery. This is a 4-arm design
that employs Dyloject and ketorolac doses, or placebo, in posto, erative orthopedic surgical patients. In December 2007, Dyloject
successfully met primary and secondary analgesic efficacy endpoints in the first of two pivotal U.S. Phase 3 studies. In this U.S. multi-
center study, 331 postoperative lower abdominal surgery patients with moderate-to-severe pain were randomized to receive certain dosage
levels of Dyloject, ketorolac or placebo TV every six hours. Additionally, in January 2008, we announced results of a new Phase 1 study of
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Dyloject demonstrating minimal effects upon platelet function at a clinically effective dose. In contrast, aspirin and ketorolac each impaired
platelet aggregation significantly.

PMI-150 product development costs increased from $2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 to $6.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007. By year end we had three of our planned Phase 1 trials needed to complete the clinical portion of our NDA
filing for PMI-150 fully accrued. In July 2007, we began dosing the first patient in a Phase 3 clinical study of PMI-150 in a trial that is
expected to enroll up to 90 patients and is designed to extend published observatons by us in a pilot study of PMI-150 in treating
breakthrough pain. Additionally, we are now planning a postoperative, multi-dose, acute pain study in same-day orthopedic surgery, This
additiona] pre-submission study will extend the timeline and cost for filing our initial NDA.

Rylomine product development costs decreased from $4.8 miliion for the year ended Diecember 31, 2006 to $3.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007. In June 2007, Rylomine successfully met its primary clinical endpoint, in this first of two pivotal Phase 3
studies, as patients with moderate-to-severe pain after elective orthopedic surgery had significantly better Summary of Pain Intensity
Differences scores over 24 hours than the corresponding placebo groups. This study, termed MOR-003, involved 278 randomized padents
with moderate-to-severe post-surgical pain enrolled at seven sites in the United States.

Research and development expenses increased from approximately $7.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 to $10.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2006, The increase in research and development expenses resulted from the advancement of each of our
three product candidate development programs. Research and development salaries, temporary labor, and benefits increased by
approximately $1.7 million as compared to the same period of the prior year. The increase was due primarily to the addition of full time
personnel and recording stock-based compensation in accordance with the adoption of SFAS 123(R) in 2006. Expenses associated with
clinical trals, including lab fees, increased by approximately $1.1 million, Expenses associated with manufactuting and process
development increased by $736,000 compared to the same period of the prior year. Milestone expenses increased from approximately
$200,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005 to $300,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Dyloject product development costs increased from approximately §3.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 to $3.5 million
for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2006, In May 2006, we commenced treatment of the first patient in our Phase 3 clinical program. This
pivotal U.S. study will enroll 360 patients with moderate-to-severe postoperative pain following abdominal surgery. In 2005, we completed
a 155 patient European Phase 2/3 pivotal study and had completed and submitted the MAA (marketing authorization application) to the
MHRA. Also in 2005, we initiated a 353 patient dose-response U.S. Phase 2b clinical study and completed patient enrollment by the year
ended December 31, 2005. Costs associated with manufacturing the clinical drug supply and the ongoing Dyloject stability program were
approximately $599,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to approximately §381,000 for the year ended December 31,
2005. :

PMI-150 product development costs increased from $1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 to $2.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006. Clinical trial expenses, including labs, data management and monitoring, for the year ended December 31, 2006
were approximately $588,000 and were associated with ongoing studies for our PMI-150 product candidate. In 2005 we completed the
PMI-150 bioequivalency program and inidated a U.S. Phase 2 study for which we completed enrollment by December 2005. Clinical
manufacturing expenses were approximately $960,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006. Milestone payments were not paid during
2006. Clinical trial expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005 were approximately $751,000 and were associated with the ongoing
Phase 2 program. Clinical manufacturing and regulatoty expenses were approximately $471,000 and $80,000, respectively for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

Rylomine product development costs increased from $2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 to $4.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006. Clinical trial expenses, including labs, site fees, data management and monitoring, were approximately $3.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2006. In May 2006, we initiated a Phase 3 clinical study of Rylomine. This pivotal U.S. study will
enroll 256 patents with moderate-to-severe postoperative orthopedic pain. In 2006 clinical manufacturing costs of $481,000 were
associated primarily with the drug supply and the ongoing formal stability program. Clinical trial expenses were approximately $1.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2005. In 2005, we initated a 187 patient mult-center dose-response Phase 2b clinical study and by
December 2005 we had completed patent enrollment and analysis of the dara, Clinical manufacturing and regulatory expenses were
approximately $452,000 and $121,000, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2005. In 2005 clinical manufacturing costs were
associated ptimarily with the ongoing formal stability program and the development and validation of test methods in support of regulatory
submissions. Regulatory expenses were associated primarily with the preparation for future FDA regulatory meetings.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries, stock-based
compensation and other related costs for personnel in executive, finance, accounting, information technology, sales and marketing and
human resource functions. Other costs include promotional costs, medical education and other marketing costs associated with the launch
of a product, as well as facility costs and professional fees for legal and accounting services. We expect selling, general and administrative
expenses to increase primarily as a result of increased sales and matketing costs associated with the launch of Dyloject in the UK., and as
we expand and improve our administrative infrastructure.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased from approximately $9.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 to $13.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2007. Salary, stock-based compensation and benefits expense increased by approximately $1.9
miltion due to an increase in full time headcount and stock-based compensation in accordance with of SFAS 123(R). Sales and marketing
expenses increased by approximately $1.8 million due to the hiring and fielding of a contract sales force in the latter half of 2007 and
market research, promotional and medical education costs related to Dyloject pre and post-launch efforts in the UK. General and
administrative expenses increased by approximately $533,000 as we incurred higher travel, facilities, insurance, dues and subscriptions,
depreciation and other general and administrative costs of approximately $165,000, $170,000, $98,000, $44,000, 337,000 and §122,000,
respectively, which was partially offset by a reduction in our third party consulting costs of approximately $103,000.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased from approximately $5.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 to $9.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Salary, stock-based compensation and benefits expense increased by approximately $2.9
million due to an increase in full time headcount and stock-based compensation in accordance with our adoption of SFAS 123(R) in 2006.
Non-cash compensation decreased by approximately $719,000 from amortization of deferred stock option expense and warrant expense.
We incurred higher legal and patent fees of approximately $427,000 and $123,000, respectively, primarily related to defending an arbitration
decided in our favor in September 2006, maintenance, protection and expansion of our intellectual property, and costs incurred for listing
on the American Stock Exchange in July 2006. Our third party consulting costs increased by nearly $529,000 in 2006 primarily due to
additional support required to document and maintain internal controls to ensure Sarbanes Oxley compliance. Additionally, we incurred
higher selling and marketing costs of approximately $1.0 million related to pre-launch sales and marketing consulting and market research
in preparation for our potential launch of Dyloject in the near future.

Interest Income. Interest income consists of interest earned on our cash, cash equivalents and short term marketable securities
available for sale.

Interest income increased from approximately $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 to approximately $1.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2007 due to higher average invested balances of cash, cash equivalents and short term investments in 2007,

Interest income increased from approximately $320,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005 to approximately $1.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006 due to higher average invested balances of cash, cash equivalents and short term investments in 2006.

Interest Expense. Interest expense historically has consisted of interest incurred on loans. There was no significant interest expense
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Other Income. In February 2006, we settled litigation with West Pharmaceutical Services, Inc. (“West”) regarding West’s assignment
of certain license agreements to Archimedes Pharma Limited (“Archimedes™) as part of the sale of West’s Drug Delivery business to
Archimedes. Under the terms of the settlement, on March 1, 2006 West paid us approximately $600,000 to resolve all claims and we
exchanged mutual releases. The amount received from West in 2006 is included in other income for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since inception, we have financed our operations primarily through the private placemnent of our equity securides, debt financings and
grant revenue primarily from the U.S. Department of Defense. We may raise additional funds through the private and/or public sale of our
equity and/or debt securities. We may also seek to raise capital through collaborative arrangements with corporate sources or other sources
of financing, We intend to continue to use the proceeds from these sources to fund ongoing research and development activities, activities
related to potental future commercialization, capital expenditures, working capital requirements and other general purposes. As of
December 31, 2007, we had cash, cash equivalents and short term investments of approximately $37.3 million, compared to $20.7 million
as of December 31, 2006.

On February 6, 2007 we filed a shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commisston (the “SEC”), which was
declared effective by the SEC on February 12, 2007, pursuant to which we sold in May 2007 an aggregate of 7,549,300 shares of common
stock, which consisted of 7,100,000 shares in an underwritten public offering at a price to the public of $6.00 per share, and 449,300 shares
purchased by our underwriters at a price of $6.00 per share. Net proceeds from the sale of the common stock under the offering wete
approximately $41.8 million, net of approximately $2.9 million for underwriting fees and $0.6 million of additional offering expenses.

On November 7, 2005 we closed a private placement consisting of the sale of approximately 14.2 million shares of out common stock
and 711,111 warrants for net proceeds of approximately $29.8 million. In December 2004, we raised approximately $18.1 million through
the sale of approxitnately 6.1 million shares of our common stock at $2.95 per share in a private placement.

Although we believe that our existing cash resources will be sufficient to support the current operating plan at least through September
30, 2008, we will need additional financing to support our operating plan thereafter or we will need to modify our operating plan
accordingly. We may raise additional funds through the private and/or public sale of our equity and/or debt secutites. We may need to
raise additional funds to meet long-term planned goals. On February 6, 2008, we filed with the SEC a Registration Statement on Form $-3
under the Securities Act, which became effective on February 12, 2008. This registration statement allows us, from time to titne, to offer
and sell any combination of shares of common stock and/or preferred stock, various series of debt securities, and/or warrants to purchase
any of such securities, cither individually or in units comprised of any of such securities, but not to exceed $60 million. To date, we have
not issued any additional securities or warrants under this registration statement. There can be no assurance that additional financing, if at
all available, can be obtained on terms acceptable to us. If we are unable to obtain such addidonal financing, future operations will need to
be scaled back or discontinued.

As a development stage enterprise, our primary efforts, to date, have been devoted to conducting research and development, raising
capital, forming collaborations and recruiting staff. We have limited capital resources and revenues, have experienced a $114.0 million net
loss attributable to our common stockholders and have had negative cash flows from operations since inception. These losses have resulted
principally from costs incurred in research and development activites, including acquisition of technology rights, increasing costs related to
potential future commercialization of our product candidates, and general and administrative expenses. As of December 31, 2007, we have
paid an aggregate of 35.6 million and $4.0 million in cash since inception to West Pharmaceutcal and Shimoda Biotech (Proprietary) Lid.,
respectively, pursuant to agreements that we have entered into with these entities. We expect to incur additonal operating losses undl such
time as we genetate sufficient revenue to offset expenses, and we may never achieve profitable operations.

We expect our cash requirements for operating acvities will increase due to the following future activities:
*  Conducting commercializaton activides in support of Dyloject product launch, including pre-launch planning, development of
market plans, producton of commercial stock, pricing and reimbursement application, development of regional sales and

marketing capabilities;

*  Conducting remaining nonclinical programs, including carcinogenicity studies to support both PMI-150 and Rylomine regulatory
submission and label extensions;

*  Conducting clinical programs, including Phase 1 and Phase 3 clinical trials to support regulatory submissions and label extensions
of cur product candidates;

¢ Continuing to support Good Manufacturing Practices (“GMP™) drug supply requirements of our nonclinical and clinical trials;

completng formal stability testing, analytical development, methods development, specification development and commercial
scale-up;
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*  Maintaining, protecting and expanding our intellectual property;

¢ Developing expanded internal infrastructure; and
*  Hiring additional personnel.
Cash used in operating activities

From inception through December 31, 2007, net cash used in operating activities was approximately §74.2 million. Net cash used in
opetating actvites increased to approximately $25.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 from approximately $12.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2006.

Net cash from operating activides for the year ended December 31, 2007 consists primarily of our net loss of $31.0 million. The
increase in net cash used for operating activities was due primarily to higher cash outflows associated with an increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses and research and development acdvity in 2007. Significant increases were directly related to salaries, benefits and
infrastructure costs related to the addition of several new personnel, advancing our research and development clinical trials for each of our
product candidates, and increased pre- and post-launch planning and development costs associated with commercialization of Dyloject.
Operating cash flows differ from net income as a result of non-cash charges or changes in working capital, pricnarily our non-cash stock-
based compensation expenses of approximately $3.5 million. Also in 2007, our outstanding payables and accrued Babilities increased by
approximately $3.0 million, while our prepaid expenses and other current assets increased by approximately $1.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

Net cash used in operating activities increased to approximately $12.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
approximately §11.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. '

The increase in net cash used for operating activities was due primarily to higher cash outflows associated with an increase in selling,
general and administrative expenses and research and development activity in 2006. Significant increases were directly related to salaries,
benefits and infrastructure costs related to the addition of several new personnel, advancing our research and development clinical trials for
each of our product candidates, and increased pre-launch planning and development costs associated with commercialization of Dyloject.
Operating cash flows differ from net income as a result of non-cash chatges or changes in working capital, primarily our non-cash stock-
based compensation expenses of approximately $2.8 million, Also in 2006, our cutstanding payables increased by approximately $1.9
million, while our oustanding receivable from the DOD decreased by approximately $460,000 for the year ended Decernber 31, 2006.

Cash used in investing activities

From inception through December 31, 2007, net cash used in investing activities was approximately §23.9 million, primarily related to
the net purchases of short term marketable securities available for sale. Net cash used in investing activities increased to approximately
$12.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 from approximately $11.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Net cash used in investing activities increased primarily due to a cash payment in December 2007 of $1.8 million to Shimoda for the
achievement of a commercialization milestone telated to our Dyloject product. In compliance with our policy, the milestone has been
recorded as an intangible asset on our consolidated balance sheet as it relates to a commercialized product with future economic benefit,
and is being amortized over the remaining life of the patents (approximately 17 years). This was offset by a decrease of $1.6 million of cash
used in net purchases of short term marketable securities compared to 2006. From inécption to December 31, 2007, capital expenditures
have not been matetial resulting from our use of contract manufacturing facilities and leased office space. We expect that cash used for
investing activities in 2008 will fluctuate based on the furure funding and the need to utilize our current investments for operations.

Net cash used in investing activities increased to approximately $11.6 million for 2006 from approximarely 30.1 million in 2005,
primarily related to the net purchases of short term marketable securities available for sale. Proceeds from our 2005 financing were invested
in marketable securides in the fitst quarter of 2006, primarily in short term marketable securides. Gross purchases were approximately
$23.3 million, while gross proceeds from sales and maturities were approximately $11.8 million. From inception 1o December 31, 2006,
capital expenditures have not been material resulting from our use of contract manufacturing facilities.
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Cash provided by financing activities

From inception through December 31, 2007, net cash provided by financing activities was approximately $114.0 million. For the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, net cash provided by financing actvities was $43.8 million and $10,000, respectively.

For 2007, net cash from financing activities related to proceeds from the May 2007 underwritten public offering which generated net
proceeds from the sale of the common stock of approximately $41.8 million; approximately $0.6 million from the exercise of warrants; and

approximately $1.4 million from the exercise of certain stock options.

Net cash provided by financing activities was approximately $10,000 related to the exercise of warrants for the year ended December
31, 2006. Our financing activitics raised net cash of approximately $29.8 million from the private placement of our common stock in 2005.

Commitments

The following table summatizes our commitments as of December 31, 2007:

Payments due by period
Beyond
Toral <1Y¥ear 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Operating leases (1) § 3507329 § 798,748 § 1575953 § 1,132,628 §—
Shimoeda License Agreement (2) ° ' 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 — - -
Archimedes License Agreements (3) 5,000,000 — 5,000,000 - =
Manufacturing Supply Agreements (4) 25,724,356 7,894,356 5,170,000 12,660,000

9 38,231,685 $ 12,693,104 § 11,745953 § 13,792,628 §—

(1) We lease approximately 24,713 square feet of general office space in Cambridge, Massachusetts and Lake Success, NY, as well as
smaller offices in the UK. and Germany, in addition to small equipment leases.

(2) Under the license agreement with Shimoda Biotech, Ltd. we are obligated to make aggregate remaining milestone payments of
approximately $4.0 million upon the occurrence of specified developmental milestones, which include the filing of an NDA with the
FDA for Dyloject, the approval of an NDA by the FDA and the first commercial sale of a licensed product and pay a royalty based
upon our and our sublicensees’ sales of products, which is subject to change, as noted.

(3) Under the license agreements with Archimedes Pharma Limited (assigned from West Pharmaceutical Services, Inc.), we may be
required to pay an aggregate of $5.0 million for research and development milestones if certain defined events occur, which include
the first filing of a marketing authorization application with a regulatory agency, first approval of a marketing authorization
application and the first commercial sale of a licensed product, which is subject to change, as noted. The timing of the remaining
milestones is dependent upon factors that are beyond our control, including our ability to recruit patients, the outcome of future
clinical trials and any requirements imposed on our clinical trials by regulatory agencies, However, for the purpose of the above table,
we have assumed that the payment of the milestones will occur between one to three years, from December 31, 2006.

(4) Under our Commercial Supply Agreement with Precision Pharma Services, Inc., we committed to purchase at least 37,650,000 worth
of product during the two year period beginning on April 1, 2007. Under our Manufacturing Agreement with Baxter Healthcare
Corporation (“Baxter”), we committed to purchase at least $13,230,000 worth of Dyloject product manufactured to our
specifications, commencing upon regulatory approval from the FDA. As is customary in such agreements, either party may terminate
upon written notice upon the occurtence of certain events, including breach, bankruptcy, insolvency or, subject to cermain cure
provisions and restrictions, including the lack of FDA approval for Dyloject by a specified date for Baxter.

Purchase Commitments

In February 2007, we entered into a Commercial Supply Agreement (the “Supply Agreement”) with Precision Pharma Services, Inc.
(“Precision”). The initial term of the Supply Agreement is two years, and it is renewable in one-year increments. Under the Supply
Agreement, Precision agreed to manufacture our requirements for the supply of Dyloject, in accordance with US. and E.U. good
manufactuting practices. We committed to purchase at least §7,650,000 worth of product during the two year period beginning on April 1,
2007.
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Either party may terminate the Supply Agreement upon written notice if the other party is in material breach of any provision thereof,
subject to applicable 30 or 90 day cure periods, Either party may also terminate the Supply Agreement upon 60 days’ prior written notice
upon the occurrence of cermin events involving the bankrupicy or insolvency of the other party, and the Supply Agreement shall
automatically terminate upon the occurrence of certain events specified therein, Moreover, we may elect 1o terminate the Supply
Agreement if Precision fails to meet its performance obligations regarding the manufacture of Dyloject in accordance with GMP, and
under certain other conditions. :

In May 2007, we entered into a Development and Toll Manufacturing Agreement (the “Manufacturing Agreement”) with Baxter
Healtheare Corporation (“Baxter”). The agreement is for U.S. drug supply and has a three year term, renewable thereafter in one-year
increments. Under the Manufacturing Agreement, we committed to purchase at least $13,230,000 worth of Dyloject™ product
manufactured to our specifications, commencing upon regulatory approval from the US. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA™). As is
customary in such agreements, either party may terminate upon written notice upon the occurrence of certain events, including breach,
bankruptey, insolvency or, subject to certain cure provisions and restrictions, including the lack of FDA approval for Dyloject by a
specified date.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates

Revenue Recognition. We have been awarded government grants and contracts from the U.S, Department of Defense (“DOD™) and
the National Institutes of Health (the “NIH”), which are used to subsidize our research and development projects. The DOD reimburses
us for certain research and development subproject costs related to the PMI-150 development program. DOD and NIH revenue is
recognized as subsidized project costs for each period are incurred. Contract and grant revenue is derived from internal headcount expense
and external contractual expense, both of which are highly dependent on the timing, order and relatdonship of individual reimbursable
subprojects. Our grant submissions may fluctuate from period to petiod due to the dming and scope of these activities and the results of
studies and clinical trials. As of December 31, 2006, we had utilized all available contract and grant funding.

With the exception of revenues derived from government grants and contracts, we have generated no operating revenues since our
inception. However, we do expect to generate product revenues in 2008 from sales of our lead product Dyloject primatily in the UK.

We recognize tevenue when all of the following criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; delivery has occutred or
services have been rendered; the seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable; collectbiliry is rcasonably assured; and tide and the risk
and rewards of ownership have transferred to the buyer. '

Inventory. Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined under the first-in, first-out, or FIFO, method. At
December 31, 2007, our inventory consists entirely of Dyloject. We make the decision to capitalize inventory costs associated with our
products at the point we believe future economic benefit will be realized, generally upon regulatory approval. Our inventory is currently
manufactured by a third party manufacturer in the US. We do not capitalize inventory produced by the manufacturer undl a batch is
completed and released. A batch is teleased afier testing and acceptance of the batch as commercially viable, At that point, we assume
ownership and title to the inventory, and incur a liability, We do not have economic responsibility for product that is not commercially
viable. Cur inventory is initially considered work-in-process, as it is considered brite stock until it is labeled and packaged. Inventory is
considered finished goods vpon successful labeling and packaging of the product.

Inventory is relieved to cost of goods sold upon sale at actual cost of production, We periodically review our inventories for excess or
obsolete inventory and write-down obsolete or otherwise unmarketable inventory to its estimated net realizable value, If the actual net
realizable value is less than that estimated by us, or if there are any further determinations that inventory will not be marketable based on
estimates of demand, additional inventory write-downs may be required.

Intangible Assets. Our intangible assets consist of deferred milestone payments related to our products when furure
commercialization is considered probable and the future economic benefit is expected to be realized, generally upon regulatory approval.
These intangible assets were recorded at fair value and are stated net of accumulated amortization and impairments. They are amortized on
a straight line basis over their remaining estimated useful lives, which is approximately 17 years, and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets might not be recoverable.

Conditions that would necessitate an impairment assessment include a significant decline in the observable market value of an asset, a

significant change in the extent or manner in which an asset is used, or a significant adverse change that would indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset or group of assets is not recoverable. Determination of recoverability is based on an estimate of undiscounted future
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cash flows resulting from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. In the event that such cash flows are not expected to be
sufficient to recover the carrying amount of the assets, the assets are written-down to their estimated fair values.

Research and Development Costs. Since our inception, we have incurred approximately $76.2 million of research and development
costs. The major research projects undertaken by us include the development of Dyloject, PMI-150 and Rylomine. We expense all research
and development costs as incurred for which there is no altermative future use. For various reasons, many of which are outside our control,
including timing and results of our clinical trials, obtaining regulatory approval and dependence on third parties, we cannot esumate the
total remaining costs to be incurred to commercialize our products, nor is it possible to estimate when, if ever, any of our products will be
approved by regulatory agencies for commercial sale. In addition, we may experience adverse results in the development of our products,
which could result in significant delays in obtaining approval to sell our products, additional costs to be incutred to obtain regulatory
approval or failure to obtain regulatory apptoval. In the event any of our product candidates were to experience setbacks, it would have a
material adverse effect on our financial position and operating resuits. Even if we successfully complete development and obtain regulatory
approval of one or more of our products, failure of physicians and patients to accept our products as a safe, cost-effective alternative
compared to existing products would have a material adverse effect on our business.

Share-based Payments. We make certain assumptions in order to value and expense our various share-based payment awards. In
connection with valuing stock options and warrants, we use the Black-Scholes model, which requires us to estimate certain subjective
assumptions. The key assumptions we make are: the expected volatility of our stock; the expected term of the award; and the expected
forfeirure rate.

We review our valuation assumptions periodically and, as a result, we may change our valuation assumptions used to value stock-based
awards granted in future periods. Such changes may lead to a significant change in the expense we recognize in connection with share-
based payments.

Income Taxes As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately $69.8 million of domestic net operating loss carryforwards and $2.5
million of foreign net operating loss carryforwards which either expire on various dates through 2027 or can be carried forward indefinitely.
These loss carryforwards are available to reduce future federal, state and foreign taxable income, if any. These loss carryforwards are
subject to review and possible adjustment by the appropriate taxing authorities. We have incurred operating losses since inception and have
established valuation allowances equal to the total deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty with respect to achieving profitable operations
in the future. Should the uncertainty regarding our ability to achieve profitable operations change in the future, we would reverse all or a
portion of the valuation allowance, the effect of which could be material to our financial statements.

Contingencies and Litigation.

There has been, and we expect there may be, significant litigation in the industry regarding commercial practices, regulatory issucs,
pricing, and patents and other intellectval property rights. Certain adverse unfavorable rulings or decisions in the future could create
variability or have a matenial adverse effect on our future results of operations and financial position.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Certain warrants issued in conjunction with our common stock financing are equity linked derivatives and accordingly represent an off
balance sheet arrangement. These warrants meet the scope exception in paragraph 11(a) of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 133 - Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, or SFAS 133, and are accordingly not accounted for as
derivatives for purposes of SFAS 133, but instead included as a component of equity. See Footnote 7 to the consolidated financial
statements and the Consolidated Statement of Stockholders” Equity for more information.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilides” (“SFAS
No. 159™). SFAS No. 159 allows entities the option to measure eligible financial instruments at fair value as of specified dates. Such
election, which may be applied on an instrument by instrument basis, is typically irrevocable once elected. SFAS No. 159 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and early application is allowed under certain circumstances. SFAS No. 159 is not expected
to have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinanons” (“SFAS 141(R)”). SFAS 141(R) expands the
definition of transactions and events that qualify as business combinations; requires that the acquired assets and habilities, including
contingencies, be recorded at the fair value determined on the acquisition date and changes thereafter reflected in earnings, not goodwill;
changes the recognition dming for restructuring costs; and requires acquisition costs to be expensed as incurred. Adoption of SFAS 141(R)
is required for combinations occurring in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Early adoption and retroactive application of
SFAS 141(R) to fiscal years preceding the effective date are not permired.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Intetest in Consolidated Financial Statements” (“SFAS 160”).
SFAS 160 re-characterizes minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries as non-controlling interests and requires the classificadon of
minority interests as a component of equity. Under SFAS 160, a change in control will be measured at fair value, with any gain or loss
recognized in eamings. The effective date for SFAS 160 is for annual periods beginning on of after December 15, 2008. Early adoption and
retroactive application of SFAS 160 to fiscal years preceding the effective date are not permitted. We currently do not expect the adoption
of this Starement will have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 157-2 (FSP FAS 157-2), which delays the effective date of FASB
Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurting basis (at least annually). SFAS 157 establishes a framework for measuring
fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The changes to current practice resulting from the application of this
Statement retate to the definidon of fair value, the methods used 10 measure fair value, and the expanded disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, except for nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilites that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a nonrecurring basis for which delayed
application is permitted until fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. We do not believe SFAS 157 or FSP FAS 157-2 will
materially impact our consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Market Risk Related to Interest Rates and Foreign Currency

We are exposed to market risks related to changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates; however, we believe those risks
to be not material in relation to our operations. We do not have any derivative financial instruments.

Interest Rate Risk

As of December 31, 2007, our cash included approximately $14.0 million of money market securities, and $21.3 million in short term
available for sale marketable securities. Additionally, at December 31, 2007 approximately $11.1 million of our investments were invested in
auction rate secutities representing debt instruments issued by domestic government sponsored agencies. Due to recent adverse
developments in the global credit and capital markets, certain auctions have failed as a result of liquidity issues, As of March 10, 2008, we
had reduced our exposure to approximately $5.0 million in auction rate securities,

If uncertainties in the credit and capital markets continue, these markets deteriorate further or we experience any ratings downgrades
on the aucton note securities in our portfolio, we may incur impairments to our investment portfolio, which could negatively affect our
financial condition, cash flow and reported earnings, and the lack of liquidity of our auction note securities could have a material impact on
our financial flexibility and ability to fund our operations.

Due to the short term duration of our investment portfolio, an immediate 10% change in interest rates would not have a material effect
on the fair market value of our portfolic. Therefore, we would not expect our operating results or cash flows to be affected to any
significant degree by the effect of a sudden change in market interest rates on our securities portfolio.

Foreign Curtency Exchange Risk

From inception to December 31, 2007, all of our revenues are denotinated in U.S. dollars and, as a result, we have relatively litde
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk with respect to current revenues. A minor portion of our research expenses are payable in
foreign currency. We do not use forward exchange contracts to hedge exposures denominated in foreign currencies or any other derivative
financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. The effect of an immediate 10% change in exchange tates would not have a
material impact on our future operating results or cash flows.

49




ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Index to Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, and the cumulative period from
February 23, 1998 (inception) to December 31, 2007

Consolidated Statements of Redeernable Preferred Stock and Stockholders” Equity (Deficit) for the period from February 23, 1998
(inception) to December 31, 2007, including the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, and the cumulatve period from
February 23, 1998 (inception) to December 31, 2007

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Ditectors and Stockholders of Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Subsidiaries (a development stage entetprise) (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, redeemable preferred stock and
stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for the years then ended and the amounts included in the cumulatve columns in the
consolidated statements of operations and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence suppotting the amounts.and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Decemnber 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for the years then ended and the amounts included in the cumulative columns in the consolidated statements of operations and cash flows
for the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Javelin
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteriz established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO)
and our report dated March 13, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and
Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting,

/s/ McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Burlington, Massachusetts
March 13, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc.:

We have audited Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ (a development stage enterprise) (the “Company”) internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control of Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
repotting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable derail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or- timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the rdsk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Subsidiaries (a development stage enterprise) and the related consolidated
statements of operations, redeemable preferred stock and stockholders equity {deficit), and cash flows as of, and for the years ended,
December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the amounts included in the cumulative columns in the consolidated statements of operations and cash
flows for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, and our report dated March 13, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion.

/s/ McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Butlington, Massachusetts
March 13, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated statements of operations, changes in redeemable preferred stock and stockhelders’ equity (deficit) and
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2005 present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and cash flows of Javelin
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (formetly Intrac, Inc.) and its subsidiary (a development stage enterprise) (the “Company™) for the year ended
December 31, 2005, and cumulatively for the period from February 23, 1998 (inception) to December 31, 2005 (not separately presented),
in conformity with accounting principles generelly accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statemnents are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principtes used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has recurring losses and limited capital resources.
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York, New York
April 14, 2006
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Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(A Development Stage Enterprise)
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets
Current assets: Cash and cash equivalents
Short term marketable securities available for sale
Inventory
Grant receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Fixed assets, at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred lease liability
Total current liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,

none of which are outstanding

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively; 48,990,845 and 40,409,421 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2007 and

2006, respectively.
Additional paid-in capital
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Deficit accumulated duting the development stage
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,
2007 2006
$ 15931243 § 9273479
21,319,150 11,461,674
116,143 =
_— 113,645
1,289,809
38,656,345 21,094,391
545,195 237.163
3,795,577 —
154,498 109,223
43,151,615 21.440.777
8,156,788 3,151,379
484,141 57,869
8,640,929 3,209,248
48,990 40,409
144,922,785 97,634,546
8,594 - G117
11 9 (79,438,309
34,510,686 182




Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(A Development Stage Enterprise)
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Cumulative from
February 23,
1998
(inception) to

Year Ended December 31,

—_—207 2006 0 2005 2007
Revenues:
Government grants and contracts g — 3 842171 3§ 1,547,753 § 5,804,824
Operating expenses:
Research and development 19,018,854 10,854,116 7,212,801 76,236,567
Selling, general and administrative 13,810,772 9,608,598 5,222,104 43,541,365 (1)
Depreciation and amortization 97,650 61,008 44,321 276,263
Total operating expenses .- 32927 276 20,523,722 12,479,226 120,054,195
Operating loss T (32927216 __(19681551) _ (10931473) ___ (114249371)
Other income (expense):
Interest expense (699) 47 (65) {944,657)
Interest income ' 1,896,601 1,282,604 319,766 4,119,360
Other income — 600,758 — 604,985
1,895,902 1,883,315 319,701 3.779.688

Net loss (31,031,374) (17,798,236) (10,611,772) (110,469,683)
Deemed dividend related to beneficial conversion

feature of Series B redeemable convertible preferred

stock — — — {3.559,305)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $§ (31,031,374 § (17.798236) 3 (10611772 § (114,028 988)
Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders
Basic and diluted § . 008 3§ - 044 § {0.38)
Weighted average shares _A5agps3 40179543 __ 2183L18R
(1) Includes related party transaction of $1,075,182 cumulative from February 23, 1998 (inception) through December 31, 2002 (see note

13).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Subsidiaries
{A Development Stage Enterprise)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended
December 31,

2007

2006

2005

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss 3 (31,031,374)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss

to net cash used in operating
activities:
Depreciation 97,650
Amortization of intangible asset 4,423
Stock-based compensation
expense
Amortization of
premium/discount on
marketable securities - o (2,364)
Amortization of deferred
financing costs —
Amortzation of otiginal issue
discount —
Amortization of unearned
compensation —
Non-cash expense recognized -
with issuance of Common
Stock in connection with
acquisidon of a license —
Non-cash expense recognized
with issuance of Preferred
Stock for license milestone —
Non-cash expense recognized
with issuance of Common
Stock in connection with
liquidation damages —
Amortization of discount on
debenture —
Stock options and warrants
issued in consideration for
services rendered —
Non-cash expense contributed
by affiliate —
Changes 1n assets and labilities:
(Increase) decrease in grant
receivable
{Increase) in inventory
Increase)
decrease in prepaid expenses,
other current assets and
other assets
(Decrease) increase in
accounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities

3,460,050

113,645
(116,143)

(1,089,491)

3,007,073

(17,798,236)

61,008

2,822,939

(36,174)

459,856

41,329

1,943,756

58

$

(10,611,772)

44,321

345,672

373,299

373,387

(458,327)

(276,410)

(1,088,846)

Cumulative from
February 23, 1998
(inception) to

December 31, 2007

$  (110,469,683)

276,263
4,423
6,282,989

(38,538)

252,317

101,564

345,672

18,600,000

100,000

373,299

314,795

3,003,076

1,075,182

(116,143)

(1,424,513)

6,158,455



{Decrease) increase in
deferred revenue
(Decrease) increase in
deferred lease liability
Increase in due to Licensor
Net cash used in operating
activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of short term
marketable securities
Redempdon of short term
marketable securities
Acquisition of intangible assets
Capital expenditures
Net cash (used in) provided
by investing activities
Cash flows from financing acdvities:
Proceeds from exercise of warrants
Proceeds from exercise of stock
options
Proceeds from sale of Common
Stock
Proceeds ftom sale of Preferred
Stock
Expenses assoctated with sale of
Common Stock
Expenses associated with sale of
Preferred Stock
Proceeds from notes payable
Proceeds from issuance of debenture
Repayment of debenture
Expenses associated with notes
payable
Repayment of notes payable
Net cash provided by
financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
period
Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid for interest:
Supplemental disclosure of noncash
investing and financing activities:
Non cash issuance of common stock
Non cash addition of intangible
asset
Optons and warrants issued for
services and financings
Conversion of Merger Note and
accrued interest to Series C stock
Recapitalization in connection with
Merger with Intrac

— (19,522)
426,272 47,998
—(25,130,259) —(12.477.046)
(57,401,400) (23,250,617)
47,560,000 11,820,000
(1,800,000) —

— (405,689 . (136,306)
12,047 (11,566,923)
636,646 9,999
1,400,746 —
45,295,800 —
(3,498,087) —
43835105 - 9999
6,657,764 (24,033,970)
9273479 33307449
$ 15931243 $ 9273479
% %
5 —_ $ —
$ 2,000,000 —

59

19,522
(7,230
11,2
{68,536)
(68,5306)
104,804
12
31,999,984
(2,225411)
29,87
18,524,469
14,782,980
§ 33,307,449
$ 500,000

484,141
500,000

176,701

(80,652,017)
59,380,000
(1,800,000)

(821,459)

(23,893.476)

752,213
1,400,758
95,392,074

25,451,201
(7,576,722)
(1,764,385)

2,015,000
1,000,000
(1,000,000)

(153,719)
(1,515,000)

114,001,421

15,931,243

315931243
§ 271633
500,000

2,000,000

1,222,574

¥ B A

519,795

L

1,153




Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(A Development Stage Enterprise)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Business

Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc., along with its wholly owned subsidiaries Javelin Pharmaceuticals U.K. Limited, Javelin Pharmaceuticals
GmbH and Innovative Drug Delivery Systems, Inc. (collectively, “we,” “us,” the “Company” or “Javelin”), is a development stage
enterprise engaged in the research, development and commercialization of innovative treatments for the relief of moderate to severe pain.
We conduct operationss in a single segment. Substantally all of our operatdons are within the United States of America, but we have
established branch offices in the United Kingdom (“U.K.”} and Germany through which we will conduct commercial actvities in the
future. On October 31, 2007, we received marketing authorization approval in the UK. for Dyloject®, our proptetary injectable
formulation of diclofenac sodium (75 mg/2 ml). Commercial launch of the product occurred in December of 2007 upen first inclusion in
local hospital formularies. Product revenues related 1o Dyloject are expected o oceur in 2008,

In addition to the normal risks associated with a new business venture, there can be no assurance that our research and development
will be successfully completed or that any approved product will be commercially viable. In addition, we operate in an environment of
rapid change in technology, are dependent upon raising capital to fund operations, and are dependent upon the services of our employees,
collaborators and consultants.

Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. was incorporated in July 2005 in the State of Detaware by Intrac, Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Intrac™),
for the purpose of migrating the Intrac corporate entity to Delaware (the “Migratory Merger”). The Migratory Merger was effective on
September 7, 2005, at which time Javelin Pharmaceuticals continued the business conducted by Intrac. Through the Migratory Merger,
each outstanding share of Intrac common stock was automatically exchanged for one share of Javelin Pharmaceuticals common stock. On
December 6, 2004, Innovatve Drug Delivery Systems, Inc. (“IDDS”), then a private operating company, consummated a merger with
Intrac, a public shell company (the “Reverse Merger”). For accounting purposes, the Reverse Merger has been treated as a recapiralization
of IDDS with IDDS as acquirer and with each share of IDDS common stock, stock options and warrants prior to the Reverse Merger
converted to 1.018 shares of Intrac common stock, stock options and warrants following the Reverse Merger, Thus, all common share and
per share data included herein have been adjusted as if the stock exchange had occurred at inception. Accordingly, IDDS is considered to
have issued shares of its common stock, stock options and warrants to shareholders of Intrac in exchange fot the net assets of Intrac. For
the three year period prior to the Reverse Merger, Intrac’s operations were nominal, The assets, liabilities and historics’ operating results
prior to the Reverse Merger are those of IDDS. Pro forma information giving effect to the Reverse Merger has not been provided since the
Reverse Merger is not considered a business combinatdon under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business
Combinadons.” At the time of the Reverse Merger, Intrac had 1,153,190 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, and Inuac did
not hold any net assets. Therefore, since the Reverse Merger is accounted for as a recapitalization of 1DDS, the Intrac common shares
were included in the surviving corporation’s stockholders equity at their par value with an offset to additional paid-in capital of $1,153. As a
result of the Migratory Merger, IDDS became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Javelin,

Pain Management, Inc. (the “Predecessor Company™) was incorporated in the State of Delaware on February 23, 1998, On September
25, 2000, the Predecessor Company merged with IDDS. The terms of the merger provided for each share of the Predecessor Company’s
common stock to convert into approximately .908 shares of IDDS common stock. Accordingly, the stockholders of the Predecessor
Company exchanged 5,212,500 shares of the Predecessor Company’s common stock for 4,733,797 shares of IDDS common stock. Prior
to the merger, IDDS had outstanding 5,174,257 shares of common stock. Following the closing of the merger, the only asset held by
IDDS was a licensing agreement with West Pharmaceutical Services, Inc. (see Note 8) executed on August 25, 2000, 1DDS was
incorporated on April 8, 1999, however, it remained dormant until executing the merger and licensing agreements noted above. The
Predecessor Company’s Board of Directors and management assumed similar roles in IDDS after the merger closed. For financial
reporting purposes, the merger was accounted for as the acquisition of a licensing agreement by the Predecessor Company and a
reorganizadon with IDDS becoming the surviving entity. Consequently, the assets, liabilines and historic operating results of IDDS prior to
the merger are those of the Predecessor Company. The fair value of the licensing agreement was determined to be approximately $18.6
million based on the fair value of the common stock issued. The rights obtained under the licensing agreement related to an unproven
technology that would require significant research and development effort to commercialize a product. There is also a significant
uncertainty as to whether the research and development effort will be successful. Since the licensed technology has no alternadve furure
use, the fair value of the consideration issued to obtain the licensing agreement was expensed as research and development at the time the
merger closed.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern basis, which assumes realization of all assets and settlement or
payment of all liabilities in the ordinary course of business. We have limited capital resources, net operating losses and negative cash flows
from operations since inception and expect these conditions to continue for the foreseeable future. In addidon, it is anticipated that we will
not generate significant revenues from product sales in the twelve months following December 31, 2007. Although we believe that our
existing cash resources wilt be sufficient to support the current operating plan at least through September 30, 2008, we will need additional
financing to support our operating plan thereafter or we will need to modify our operating plan accordingly. In addition, we have the ability
to reduce discretionary spending to preserve cash. We may seek to raise additional funds through the private and/or public sale of our
equity and/or debt securities. We may also seek to raise capital through collaborative arrangements with corporate sources or other sources
of financing. There can be no assurance that such additional financing, if at all available, can be obtained on terms reasonable to us. In the
event that sufficient funds are not available, we will need to postpone or discontinue planned operations and projects. Our continuance as a
going concern is dependent upon, among other things, our ability to obtain adequate long-term financing, the success of our research and
development program and our attainment of profitable operations. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might
result from the outcome of this uncertainty. ‘

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Significant estimates relate
to the valuation of equity instruments issued for services rendered, recoverability of fixed assets and deferred taxes. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject us to concentrations of credic risk consist of cash, cash equivalents, and marketable
securities. We have established investment guidelines that relate to credit quality and diversification and that limit exposure to any one issue
of securities,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments which have maturities of three months or less, when acquired, to be cash equivalents. Our
cash and cash equivalents are comptised of demand deposit accounts, money market accounts and U.S. ‘Freasury obligations. The carrying
amount reported in the balance sheet for cash and cash equivalents approximates its fair value.

Marketable Securities

Short-term marketable secutities consist of certificates of deposit, government securities and corporate auction-rate securities with
original maturities of greater than three months at the time of purchase. As of December 31, 2007, all the auction-rate securities held have
original maturities in excess of one year. Qur investment policy permits investments in auction-rate securities that have interest reset dates
of three months or less at the time of purchase. The reset date is the date on which the underlying interest rate is revised based on a Dutch
auction and the underlying security may be readily sold. Although the securities held have extended maturities, we classify these securities
as current as they are available for sale under SFAS No. 115 — Accounting for Certain Invesuments in Debt and Equity Securities. All
available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair market value and unrealized gains and losses are included in accumulated other
comprehensive loss in shareholders’ equity. Realized gains and losses and declines in value, if any, judged to be other-than-temporary on
available-for-sale securities are reported in other expense. The cost of available-for-sale securities sold is based on the specific identfication
method. We have established guidelines that maintain safety and provide adequate liquidity in our available-for-sale portfolio. These
guidelines are periodically reviewed and modified to take advantage of trends in yields and interest rates. We have not recognized any
charges for unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities that were determined to be other-than-temporary.
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Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined under the first-in, first-out, or FIFO, method. At December
31, 2007, out inventory consisted entirely of Dyloject finished goods.

We make the decision to capitalize inventory costs associated with our products at the point we believe future economic benefit will be
realized, generally upon regulatory approval. Qur inventory is currently manufactured by a third party manufacturer in the US. We do not
capitalize inventory produced by the manufacturer until a barch is completed and released. A batch is released after testing and acceptance
of the batch as commercially viable. At that point, we assume ownership and title to the inventory, and incur a liability. We do not have
economic responsibility for product that is not commercially viable. Our inventory is initially considered work-in-process, as it is
considered brite stock until it is labeled and packaged. Inventory is considered finished goods upon successful labeling and packaging of
the product.

We capitalize all or in part the following activities related to commercial inventory production for released inventory: commercial
manufacturing, raw materials used, production expenses, quatity assurance and testing, packaging and labeling, and shipping costs.

Inventory is relieved to cost of goods sold upon sale at actual cost of production. We petiodically review our inventories for excess or
obsolete inventory and write-down obsolete or otherwise unmarketable inventory to its estimated net realizable value. If the actual net
realizable value is less than that estimated by us, or if there are any further determinadons that inventory will not be marketable based on
estimates of demand, additional inventory write-downs may be required.

Fixed Assets

Furniture and fixtures, laboratory equipment, and computer equipment and software are stated at cost and are depreciared on a
straight-line basis over their estitnated useful lives. Fxpenditures for maintenance and repairs which do not materially extend the useful
lives of the assets are charged to expense as incurred. The cost and accumulated depreciation of assets tetired or sold are removed from the
respective accounts and any gain or loss is recognized in operations. The estimated useful lives of fixed assets are as follows:

Leaseholds 3 -5 years
Laboratory equipment 7 years
Furniture and fixrures 5 years
Computer equipment and software 3 years

Intangible Assets

In connection with our research and development efforts, we have entered into various arrangements which provide us with rights to
develop, produce and market products using certain know-how, technelogy and patent rights. Terms of the various license agreements may
require us to make license and/or milestone payments upon the achievement of certain product development objectives and commercial
objectives and pay royaltes on future sales, if any, from the sale of commercial products.

Our intangible assets consist of deferred milestone payments related to our products when furure commercialization is considered
probable and the future economic benefit is expected to be realized, generally upon regulatory approval. These intangible assets were
recorded at fair value and are stated net of accumnulated amortization and impairments. They are amortized on a straight tine basis over
their remaining estimated useful lives, which is approximately 17 years, and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate chat the carrying amount of the assets might not be recoverable.

Conditions that would necessitate an impairment assessment include a significant decline in the observable market value of an asset, a
significant change in the extent or manner in which an asset is used, or a significant adverse change that would indicate that the carrying
amount of an.asset or group of assets is not recoverable. Determination of recoverability is based on an estimate of undiscounted future
cash flows resulting from the use of the asset and its evenmal disposition. In the event that such cash flows are not expected to be
sufficient to recover the carrying amount of the assets, the assets are written-down to their estimated fair values,
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Revenue Recognition

We have been awarded government grants and contracts from the U.S. Department of Defense (“DOD”) and the National Institutes
of Health (the “NIH™), which are used to subsidize our research and development projects {“Projects™). This revenue is recognized as
subsidized Project costs for each period are incurred. For the year ended December 31, 2002, our revenue included $214,856 and $72,390
from the DOD and the NIH, respectively. In May 2003, we were granted an extension of a prior grant by the DOD in the amount of a
$4.3 million contract. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, all of our research revenue came from reimbursements for costs
incurred in relation to the contract from the DOD. For all periods presented, our only source of revenue was in the form of grants and
CONtracts.

Interest income is recognized as carned.
Research and Development Costs

We expense all research and development costs as incurred for which there is no alternative future use. Such expenses include licensing
and upfront fees paid in connection with collaborative agreements for potential products prior to commercialization, as well as expenses
incurred in performing research and development activities, including salaries and benefits, clinical trial and related clinical manufacturing
expenses, share-based compensation expense, contract services and other outside expenses. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005, we received reimbursements for research and development costs incutred in relation to the contract from the DOD, described
above. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, research and development expenses that were incutred and reimbursed under
our DOD grants and contracts were $842,171 and, $1,547,753, respectively.

Patents

As a result of research and development efforts conducted by us, we have applied, or are applying, for a number of patents to protect
proprietary inventions. All costs associated with patents are expensed as incurred.

Net Loss Per Share

We prepare our per share data in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, “Earnings Per Share” (“SFAS
No. 128™). Basic net loss per share is computed on the basis of net loss for the petiod divided by the weighted average number of shares of
common stock outstanding during the period. Since we have incurred net losses since inception, diluted net loss per share does not include
the number of shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding options and warrants and the conversion of preferred stock since such
inclusion would be ant-dilutive.

Disclosures required by SFAS No. 128 have been included in Note 10.
Deferred Financing Costs

Costs incurred in connection with issuance of notes payable are deferred and amortized using the interest method as interest expense
over the term of the debt instrument. ,

Comprehensive Loss

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income”, established standards for reporting and
display of comprehensive loss and its components in the financial statements. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, our
comprehensive loss was $31.0 million and $17.8 million, respectively, which consisted of our net loss for each year and $13,712 and
$(5,117) of unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities for 2007 and 2006, respectively. We had no other comprehensive items to report
other than net loss for the year ended December 31, 2005,
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Na. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets”, we review our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset
might not be recoverable. An impairment foss is recognized if the carrying amount of the long-lived asset is not recoverable and its carrying
amount exceeds its fair value, which is based upon estimated undiscounted future cash flows. For all periods presented, there have been no
jimpairment losses incurred. :

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004) — Share-Based Payment,
or SFAS 123(R). This Statement requires compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in thé financial
statements using a fair-value measurement method. Under the fair value method, the estimated fair value of an award is charged against
income on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the vestng period. We selected the modified prospective
adoption method as prescribed in SFAS 123(R), and therefore we have not restated our financial statements for prior periods. Under the
modified prospective application, this Statement was applied to new awards granted in 2006, as well as to the unvested portion of
previously granted stock option awards for which the requisite service had not been rendered as of January 1, 2006.

Priot to January 1, 2006, our stock option plan was accounted for under the recognition and measurement provisions of APB Opinion
No. 25 Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations, as permitted by Statement of Financial Accountdng
Standards No. 123, Accoundng for Stock-Based Compensadon. Generally, no compensation expense was recognized in the financial
statements in connection with the awarding of stock option grants to employees provided that, as of the grant date, all terms associated
with the award are fixed and the fair value of our stock, as of the grant date, is equal to or less than the amount an employee must pay to
acquire the stock, We had recognized compensation expense in situations where the terms of an option grant were not fixed or where the
fair value of our commeon stock on the grant date was greater than the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock.

The adoption of SFAS 123(R) had and will have a material impact on our consolidated financial positon and results of operadons. See
Note 11 for further information regarding our stock-based compensation assumptions and expenses, including pro forma disclosures for
prior petiods as if we had recorded stock-based compensation expense.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes™ (“SFAS No. 109”). SFAS No. 109 requires that we recognize deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future
tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred tax liabilities
and assets are determined on the basis of the difference between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their respective financial reporting
amounts (“temporary differences”) at enacted tax rates in effect for the years in which the temporary differences are expected to reverse.
SFAS No. 109 also requires that the deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance, if based on the weight of available evidence, it
is more likely than not that some portion or all of the recorded deferred tax assets will not be realized in future periods. In connection with
preparing our 2006 tax return, we adjusted the carrying values of our deferred tax assets, with a corresponding adjustment to the valuation
allowance. These adjustments had no effect on our results of operatons or our financial position,

We adopted Financial Interpretation Number 48, “Accounting for Uncertain Tax Positions” (“FIN 48”) on January 1, 2007. FIN 48
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with FASB
Statement No. 109,” Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement of a tax position aken
or expected to be taken in a tax return, The company did not establish any addidonal reserves for uncertain tax liabilities upon adoption of
FIN 48.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS
No. 159”). SFAS No. 159 allows entities the option to measure eligible financial instruments at fair value as of specified dates. Such
election, which may be applied on an instrument by instrument basis, is typically irrevocable once elected. SFAS No. 159 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and early application is allowed under certain circumstances. SFAS No. 159 is not expected
to have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows..

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinadons” (“SFAS 141(R)™). SFAS 141(R) expands the
definition of transactions and events that qualify as business combinations; requires that the acquired assets and liabilities, including
contingencies, be recorded at the fair value determined on the acqmsmon date and changes thereafter reflected in eamings, not goodwill,
changes the recognition timing for restructuring costs; and requires acquisition costs to be expensed as incurred. Adoption of SFAS 141(R)
is required for combinations occurring in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Early adoption and retroactive applicadon of
SFAS 141(R) to fiscal years preceding the effective date are not permitted.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financial Statements” (“SFAS 1607).
SFAS 160 re-characterizes minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries as non-controlling interests and requires the classification of
minority interests as a component of equity. Under SFAS 160, a change in control will be measured at fair value, with any gain or loss
recognized in earnings. The effective date for SFAS 160 is for annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Early adoption and
retroactive application of SFAS 160 to fiscal years preceding the effective date are not permitted. We currently do not expect the adoption
of this Statement will have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 157-2 (FSP FAS 157-2), which delays the effective date of FASB
Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least anaually). SFAS 157 establishes a framework for measuring
fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The changes to current practice resulting from the application of this
Statemnent relate to the definition of fair value, the methods used to measure fair value, and the expanded disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, except for nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a nonrecurring basis for which delayed
application is permitted until fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. We do not believe SFAS 157 or FSP FAS 157-2 will
materially impact our consolidated financial statements.

3. Marketable Securities

The following is 2 summary of our short term marketable securities available for sale as of December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Unrealized  Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losscs Fait Value
December 31, 2007:
Short-term marketable securites:

Cerdficates of Deposit § 9181337 § 9444 § (981) § 9,189,800
Commercial Paper ' 994,532 — (182) 994,350
Taxable Auction Securities 10,135,000 — — 10,135,000
Tax Free Auction Securities 999,687 313 — 1,000,000
Total short term marketable securities $ 21310556 § 9757 § (1,163) § 21,319,150
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Unrealized  Unrealized Estimated

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2006:
Short-term marketable securities:
Certificates of Deposit $ 1698006 § 713 $ (137§ 1,698582
U.8. Government Securities 2,398,785 —_ {5,693} 2,393,002
Taxable Auction Securities 7,370,000 — —_— 7,370,000
Total short term markctablcfsecuritics $ 11,466,791 $ 713 § (5,830) § 11,461,674

In accordance with FASB Staff Position FAS115-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to
Certain Investments,” the following table summarizes the fair value and gross unrealized losses related to available-for-sale securities,
aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at
December 31, 2007 and 2006:

— Lessthani2months 12 Months or Mote Totzl
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses ‘Value Losses
December 31, 2007:
Ceruficates of Deposit $ 2300435 3§ (981) — . $— § 2300435 § (981)
Commercial Paper 994,350 (182) — — 994,350 (182)
Total $ 3294785 § (1,163) §— $— § 3294785 § (1,163)
—  Lessthanl2months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses FairValue Losses
December 31, 2006:
Certificates of Deposit $ 496800 3 (137) — — 3 496,800 $ (13N
U.5. Government Securities 2,393 (092 (5,693) — — 2,393,092 (5,693
Total $ 2889892 §(5830) $— 33— § 2,889,892 $ (5,830

We have the intent and ability to hold these securities with unrealized losses to marurity or to recovery. Based on both the length of
time and the extent to which the market value has been less than cost and the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, we
concluded that none of the unrealized losses at December 31, 2007 constitated other-than-temporary impairment.

4. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following:

e r 31

2007 2006
Leaseholds $ 4,824 % 15,435
Fumniture and fixtures 132,337 113,474
Laboratory equipment 114,593 114,593
Computer equipment 247,505 136,204
Computer software 43479 33,764
Construction in progress 272,836 —

815,574 413,470
Less, accumulated depreciation {270,379) (176,307)

§ 545,195 § 237,163

Depreciation expense was $97,650, 361,008 and $44,321 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectvely.
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5. Intangible Assets

In December 2007 we paid $1.8 million to Shimoda Biotech (“Shimoda™) for the achievement of a milestone related to the successful
commercialization of Dyloject in the UK. Additionally, we have accrued an additional $2.0 million for a separate milestone that has been
achieved, but is not due to be paid until the end of 2008 under the terms of our license agreement with Shimoda. The milestones have been
recorded as intangible assets on our consolidated balance sheet as they relate to a commercialized product with future economic benefit,
and are being amortized over the remaining life of the patents (approximately 17 years). Through December 31, 2007, we have recorded
$4,423 of amortization expense to sales and marketing expense in our consolidated statement of operations. We expect amortization of
intangible assets to be approximately $224,000 for each of the next five years. ,

6. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following:

Decembes: 31,

W07 . . 2006
Accounts payable $ 1,431,787 % 685,400
Accrued professional fees 195,077 220,333
Accrued research and development 2,153,864 964,944
Accrued compensation and benefits 1,458,598 878,808
Accrued sales and marketing consulting costs 658,804 325,165
Accred milestone payment 2,000,000 —
Accrued other expenses ‘ 258,658 __ 76729

§ 8156788 § 3,151,379

7. Stockholders’ Equity
Shares Authorized

Our Certificate of Incorporaton, as amended by shateholder approval on July 20, 2006, authorizes us to issue 200 million shares of our
common stock, $0.001 par value, and 5 million shares of our preferred stock, $0.001 par value. At December 31, 2005, our Certificate of
Incorporation authorized us to issue 100 million shares of our common stock, and 5 million shares of our preferred stock. At December
31, 2004, our Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, authorized us to issue 500 million shares of our common stock and 5 million shares
of our preferred stock. Our Board of Directors has the authority to issue our preferred stock, in series, with rights and privileges
determined by the Board.

Prior to the Reverse Merger, IDDS was authorized to issue 80 million shares of common stock, $0.001 par value, and 20 million shares
of preferred stock, $0.001 par value. At that time, IDDS had outstanding three classes of redeemable preferred stock. The rights and
provisions of the preferred stockholders included liquidation, voting, dividend, redemption and conversion. As a result of the Reverse
Metger, all shares of IDDS preferred stock converted into 8,187,259 shares of common stock,

Shares and Warrants Issued

In 1999, we issued 192,985 shares of common stock to a consultant in consideration for services rendered and a subscription recetvable
of $106. The fair value of the shares was $93,456, as estimated by us.

In September 2000, we sold 160.565 units (“Units” ot “Seties A Financing”) to investors at a per Unit price of $100,000. Each Unit
consisted of 25,000 shares of Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock (“Series A Stock™) (convertible into 25,872 shares of common stock)
and 2,587 warrants (the “A Preferred Warrants™). Each A Preferred Warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock at
an exercise price of $3.87 per share. The A Preferred Warrants contain certain antdilution provisions, as defined. The fair value of the A
Preferred Warrants at issuance was $960,361. On October 13, 2005, 388,885 A Preferred Warrants expired unexercised. At December 31,
2005, 26,518 of the A Preferred Warrants had been exercised (see Note 12).
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As partial consideration for the sale of the Units, we issued an option to purchase 15.83 units {the “Finders Units™) to metmnbers of the
firm responsible fot obtaining the Seres A Financing, Each Finders Unit entitles the holder to purchase 25,000 shares of Series A Stock
(convertible into 25,872 shares of common stock) and 2,587 Serles A Preferred Warrants (the “Finders Warrants™) for $110,000 per
Finders Unit. The fair value of the Series A Stock included in the Finders Units, which was accounted for as a cost of the Sertes A
Financing, totaled $1,071,331. Each Finders Warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock at a per share price of
$3.87. The Finders Warrants expired in September 2007. The fair value of the Finders Warrants at the date of issue was $107,825, At
December 31, 2007, all of the Finders Warrants had either been exercised or had exptred.

In 2000, we issued to another consultant, who acted as an advisor to the Seties A Financing, warrants to purchase up to 15,522 shares
of common stock at an exercise price of approximately $0.001 per share. The fair value of the warrants at the issuance date was 855,790,
which has been accounted for as a cost of the Series A Financing. All of the warrants were exercised in 2001,

Duting December 2001, we issued shares of Seties B Redeemable Preferred Stock (“Series B Stock™), The Series B conversion price
represented a discount from the estimated fair value of the common stock at the time of issuance. Accordingly, the discount amount was
considered incremental yield to the preferred stockholders and has been accounted for as a deemed dividend to preferred stockholders.
Based on the conversion terms of the Series B Stock, a deemed dividend of approximately $3.6 million has been added to the net loss in
the calculation of net loss applicable to common stockholders in the year ended December 31, 2001,

In December 2004 we closed the private placement of 6,139,913 shares of common stock for proceeds of approximately $16.2 million,
net of offering expenses of $1.9 million. As partial consideration for services rendered, we issued to the placement agent fully vested
warrants to purchase up to 920,987 shates of common stock (the “Placement Warrants”), Each Placement Warrant entitles the holder to
purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $2.95 per share. The Placement Warrants expire in December 2009. The fair
value of the Placement Warrants at issuance was approximately $1.8 million, as estimated by us, using the method described in Note 11,

In March 2005, in consideration of a termination fee, we granted warrants to an entty to purchase up to 10,184 shares of common
stock at an exercise price of $2.49 per share. The warrants expire in March 2010. The fair value of the warrants at the date of issuance was
$18,840, as estimated by us using the method described in Note 11.

Also in March 2005, as part of an engagement fee for investor and public relations services, we granted warrants to an entity to
purchase up to 25,000 shates of common stock at an exercise price of $3.00 per share. The warrants expire in March 2010. The fair value
of the warrants at the date of issuance was $44,000, as estimated by us using the method described in Note 11.

In April 2005, in consideration for investor and public relations services, we granted warrants to an entity to purchase up to 20,000
shares of common stack at an exercise price of $3.00 per share. The warrants expire in April 2010. The fair value of the warrants at the
date of issuance was $35,200, as estimated by us using the method described in Note 11.

In September 2005, as partal consideration for investor and public reladon setvices, we granted warrants to an endty to purchase up to
25,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $3.00 per share. The warrants expire in September 2010, The fair value of the
warrants at the date of issuance was $54,250, as estimated by us using the method described in Note 11.

In November 2005 we closed the private placement of 14,222,215 shares of common stock and 711,111 warrants (the “Investor
Warrants”} for proceeds of approximately $29.8 million, net of offering expenses of $2.2 million. Each Investor Warrant entitles the holder
to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $2.25 per share, The Investor Warrants expire in December 2010 and
contain certain antdilution provisions and registration rights, as defined. The fair value of the Investor Warrants at issuance was
$1,376,000, as estimated by us using the method described in Note 11. As partial consideradon for services rendeted, we issued to the
placement agents fully vested warrants to purchase up to 853,333 shares of common stock (the “Placement Warrants”). Each Placement
Warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $2.48 per share. The Placement Warrants expire
in November 2010. The fair value of the Placement Warrants at issuance was approximately $1.6 million, as estimated by us, using the
method described in Note 11.
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Public effering of common stock

In May 2007, we sold 7,549,300 shares of common stock, which consisted of 7,100,000 shares in an underwritten public offering at a
price to the public of $6.00 per share, and 449,300 shares purchased by our underwriters. Net proceeds from the sale of the common stock
under the offering were approximately $41.8 million, net of approximately $2.9 million for underwriting fees and $0.6 million of additional
offering costs. As of the date of this filing, the amount remaining available under a shelf registration statement that was filed on February 6,
2007 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC) was approximarely $4.7 million.

On February 6, 2008, we filed with the SEC a Registration Statement on Form S-3 under the Securities Act, which became effective on
February 12, 2008. This registration statement allows us, from time to time, to offer and sell any combination of shares of common stock
and/or preferred stock, various series of debt securities, and/or warrants to purchase any of such securides, either individually or in unirs
comprised of any of such secutities, but not o exceed $60 million. To date, we have not issued any additional securities or warrants under
this registration statement.

8. Notes Payable

1998 Notes. During 1998, we issued two notes payable to two banks with principal amounts of $145,000 and $80,000, respectively (the
“Notes”). The Notes were due in September 2000 bearing interest of 1% over the Eurodollar rate and the bank’s prime rate, respectively.
The Notes were guaranteed by one of our investors. At December 31, 1999, the outstanding balances on the Notes were $145,000 and
$80,000, respectively, accrued interest totaled 31,400 and the weighted average interest rate was 7.5%. During 2000, the $145,000 Note was
increased to $245,000.

Both Notes were repaid in October 2000, following the issuance of Series A Stock (see Note 7).

Bridge Notes. During 1999, we raised $1.04 million by issuing notes payable (the “Bridge Notes”) and warrants (the “Bridge
Warrants”). The Bridge Notes accrued interest at 12% per annum for the first twelve months and 15% per annum for up to an additional
yvear. At December 31, 1999, accrued interest on the Bridge Notes was approximately 386,000. In November, 2000, after the issuance of
Series A Stock, the principal plus accrued interest totaling approximately $1,238,000 was repaid.

In connection with the Bridge Notes, Bridge Warrants to purchase up w0 236,127 shares of Common Stock, with an exercise price of
approximately 80.01 per share, were issued to the Bridge Noteholders. The Bridge Warrants conrain anti-dilution provisions and were to
expire in September 2005. The fair value of the Bridge Warrants at the date of issue was $101,564. Accordingly, the Bridge Notes were
tecorded at an original issue discount of $101,564, which was amortized to interest expense over the term of the Bridge Notes. At
December 31, 1999, the Bridge Notes were recorded at $980,256. During the years ended December 31, 2001, 2003 and 2005, Bridge
Warrants to purchase 15,893 shares, 2,270 shares and 217,964 shares of common stock, respectively, were exercised. At December 31,
2005, all Bridge Warrants had been exercised (see Note 11).

Professional fees incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bridge Notes, amounting to $128,719, were accounted for as deferred
financing costs. '

In 1999, we issued to three consultants who had arranged the sale of Bridge Notes warrants to putchase up to 204,336 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of approximately 30.001 per share. The fair value of the warrants, which were accounted for as deferred
financing costs, at the issuance date was 398,598, All of the warrants were exercised in 2000.

2000 Note. In July 2000, vve issued 2 one-year note to a commercial bank in the principal amount of $150,000 and bearing interest,
payable monthly, based on the Eurodollar rate plus 1%. The note was guaranteed by one of our investors. In October 2000, following the
closing of the sale of Series A Stock, the note was repaid.

Merger Nore. In November 2002, we issued a $500,000 convertible note, due on November 24, 2004, to eXegenics, Inc., pursuant to
an agreement for the termination of a proposed merger with eXegenics, Inc. (the “Merger Note”). The Merger Note was bearing interest at
prime plus 1%, as defined, which interest was due and payable annually. The unpaid principal and accrued interest on the Merger Note was
to automatically convert into shates of our equity secutities in the event that we completed a privare placement, as defined, before
November 24, 2004, or in the event of a consolidation, merger, combination, or reorganization, as defined. In the event of a private
placement, the Merger Note and accrued interest was to be converted into the same series of securities offered in the private placement, at
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the same per shate price paid by investors. At December 31, 2002, accrued interest on the Merger Note totaled $2,625. In August 2003,
following a private placement, the principal and accrued interest, totaling $519,795, was converted into 339,736 shares of Seres C
Redeemable Preferred Stock (see Note 7).

Bridge Debenture. In November 2004, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement and raised $1.0 million by issuing a Senior
Secured Debenture (the “Bridge Debentures”} and warrants (the “Warrants”). The Bridge Debentures accrued interest at 10% per annum
for a maximum term of 12 months. Subject to certin terms and conditions we granted to investors in the Bridge Dehenture a security
interest in certain of our assets. At December 6, 2004, upon the sale of common stock (see Note 6), the principal plus accrued interest
totaling $1,008,611 was repaid, and the security interest in our assets was released.

In connection with the issuance of the Bridge Debentures, we issued warrants to purchase up to 226,314 shares of common stock, with
an exercise price of $2.65 per share, to the purchasers of the Bridge Debentures. The warrants contain anti-diludon provisions and expire
in November 2009, We allocated the total proceeds to the fair value of the Bridge Debentures and the Warrants in accordance with APB
No. 14, which resulted in 3314,795 being allocated to the warrants, This amount was accounted for as debt discount and amortized to
interest expense over the term of the Bridge Debentures. Professional fees incurred in connecton with the Bridge Debentures, amountng
to $25,000, were accounted for as deferred financing costs and amortized as additional interest expense during the year ended December
31, 2004.

9. Commitments and Contingencies
a.  Operating Leases
We recognize rental expense for leases on the straight-line basis over the life of the lease.
New York, NY

On September 5, 2002, we entered into a sublease (the “Sublease”) for office space in New York, New York with a term from
December 7, 2002 through December 30, 2003. Minimum rent for the Sublease was $371,000 per annum, payable in equal
monthly installments of $30,917, except that no rent payment was due for the first 30 days of the Sublease term (the “Free Rent
Period”). In addition, upon executon of the Sublease, we prepaid rent for the first two months following the Free Rent Period
and the last two months of the Sublease term, totaling $123,667. We also were required to pay additonal rent, as defined. On
September 22, 2003, we entered into a lease for office space in New York, New York with a term from December 1, 2003
through November 30, 2006. Minimum rent for the lease was inidally $125,000 per annum with a 3% rent escaladon every 12
months thereafter, payable in equal monthly installments, except that ne rent payment was due for the first 60 days of the lease
term (the “Free Rent Petied™). In additon, upon execuuon of the lease, we paid a security deposit of $31,250. We vacated the
New York office space upon termination of the lease, and received the remainder of our security deposit in January 2007.

Cambridge, MA

On May 1, 2005, we entered into a lease for office space in Cambridge, Massachuserts, which lease was amended effective June 1,
2006, Prior to the amendment, minimum rent for the lease was payable in equal monthly installments of $6,810 over the lease
term. As a result of the amendment, we assumed additonal office space in our Cambridge facility, the lease term was extended o
May 31, 2012, and the minimum monthly rent for the lease was increased to $15,450 for the first twelve months, with rent
escalations every 12 months thereafter. In August 2007, we further amended the lease for our Cambridge facility. As a result of
the amendment, we assumed additional office space effective on each of September 1, 2007 and January 1, 2008. Minimum
monthly rent for the additional space occupied in September is $31,493 through August 31, 2008, with rent escalations every 12
months thereafter. Minimum rent for the space to be occupied in January 2008 is $4,462 through August 31, 2008, with rent
escalations every twelve months thereafter. The lease term for all our office space in Cambridge is through May 31, 2012, At
December 31, 2007, our security deposit related to the lease was $133,570.
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Lake Suceess, NY

In August 2006, we entered into a new lease for office space in Lake Success, New York with a three-year extendable term, which
commenced on October 1, 2006, Minimum rent for the lease is initially $57,477 per annum, with an annual 3.5% rent escalation.
1n addition, upon execution of the lease, we paid a security deposit of $9,580.

UK and Germany

We also lease small office spaces in the U.K. and Germany, each of which has terms of one year or less. At December 31, 2007,
our security deposits related to the leases totaled approximately $11,300.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we recognized rent expense of $497,055, $326,301 and $176,771,
respectively, for all of our leases. A deferred lease liability of $225,498, $57,869 and $9,871 at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, was recorded for rent expense in excess of amounts paid; the amount of additional rent paid was immaterial.

Future minimum lease pa ents under operating leases havin, initial or remaining noncancellable lease terms in excess of one
year are as follows;

id
2008 § 798,748

2009 796,071
2010 779,882
2011 798,209
2012 334,419

§_3.207.529

b. Legal Proceedings
From time to time, we are involved in disputes or legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. However, we do not
believe that any such disputes or pending Litigation would have a matetial adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations
or cash flows.

¢. Research Collaboration, Licensing and Consulting Agreements

(i) Sewart Weg, M.D. In September 2000, we assumed a license agreement, dated February 25, 1998, between the Predecessor

Company and Swuart Weg, M.D. The license granted us exclusive worldwide rights, including the right to grant sublicenses, for the
intellectual property surrounding transnasal ketamine. In connection therewith, we made an upfront payment to Dr. Weg, Herbert
Brotspies, and Calgar & Associates (collectively the “Founders”™) and issued the Founders shares of common stock, of which a
portion is held in escrow and will be released to the Founders, if at all, upon the successful completion of the Phase 3 trial. The
release of the shares from escrow is not contingent on the Founders’ petformance. We also reimbursed the Founders for patent and
other costs. We will pay semi-annual royalty payments to the Founders based on a percentage of net sales of transnasal ketamine by
us or our sublicensees. In addition, we shall pay the Founders a defined percentage of all sublicensing fees or other lamp sum
payments. Under the terms of the license agreement, we are also obligated to make aggregate future payments upon the earlier of
certain defined dates or satisfaction of certain clinical and regulatory milestones, which include the filing of a New Drug Application
(“NDA”) with the Food & Drug Administration (“FDA”), the approval of an NDA by the FDA and the first commercial sale of a
licensed product. A defined percentage of such milestone payments shall be creditable against royaltes earned; provided, however,
that in no event shall royalties earned be reduced by more than a certain percentage in any applicable semi-annual period. We may
satisfy a portion of the milestone payments through the issuance of shares of our common stock provided that we are publicly
traded at the time such milestone payment accrues. In April 2003 the license agreement was amended to allow for the August 2003
milestone to be paid in cash and Series C Stock. The Founders agreed to accept 65,360 shares of Series C Stock, valued at $0.1
million plus $0.15 million in cash as payment in full for the milestone. In November 2004, the license agreement was amended to
defer payment of the §500,000 milestone from August 25, 2004, to a date on or before December 31, 2004, We were required to pay
interest, at a rate of 4.75% per annum, on the amount of the milestone payment for the period from August 25, 2004 to the
amended payment date. On December 21, 2004 we paid the milestone payment plus accrued interest toraling $507,964. On
December 31, 2004 we accrued the final milestone payment of $500,000 and on April 7, 2005, we entered into an agreement and

7i




L ()

(ui)

issued 169,735 shares of common stock as settlement of this final milestone payment, under the license agreement. The fair value of
the shares issued was $500,000, as determined by the equity price of $2.95 on the date of grant.

In connection with the license agreement described above, in February 1998 the Predecessor Company entered into a three year
Consulting Agreement, renewable upon mutual consent, with each of Dr. Weg and Dr. Gary, pursuant to which both Dr. Weg and
Dr. Gary were to provide us with such consuling services as we may reasonably request. In consideration for such services, we
agreed to pay to each of Dr. Weg and Dr. Gary a consulting fee equal to $75,000 per year, payable in equal monthly installments.
These agreements expired March 2001 and were not renewed.

West Pharmaceutical Services, Inc. On Auvgust 25, 2000, we entered into a license agreement with West Pharmaceutical Services,
Inc. (“West”) for rights to develop and commercialize intranasal morphine, fentanyl and other products, Under the terms of the
agreement, we were granted an exclusive, worldwide, royalty bearing license, including the right to grant sublicenses, for the rights to
the intellectual property covering these products. The license agreement will expire with the last to expire of the license patents in
2016. In consideration of the license, we paid and expensed on September 22, 2000 an up front fee. In addidon, we are obligated to
make royalty payments to West based upon net sales of products by us or our sublicensees, if any, as defined. We are also obligated
to pay West a minimum annual royalty for each licensed product that receives approval by a regulatory agency to be marketed in any
major market country, as defined, and to pay West a defined amount of any up-front license fees in the event that we sublicense any
tights to any third patty. In addition, under a Development Milestone and Option Agreement entered into in connection with the
license agreement, we are obligated to make aggregate future payments totaling $5.0 million upon reaching certain defined
development milestones, including the filing of an NDA with the FDA and the approval of an NDA by the FDA of a licensed
product. Milestone payments can be paid in cash or equity upon the satisfaction of certain clinical and regulatory milestones and
provided that we are publicly traded at the time such milestone payment accrues. Our ability to pay the upfront payment for the
license agreement and the M-6-G fee (see below) was guaranteed by an affiliate of ours. The guarantee expired upon the payments
by us of amounts owed to West. In addition, we granted West the right of first refusal to enter into a clinical manufacturing
apreement for nasal morphine (see (iv) (a2} below).

The license agreement and related agreements (see (iv)(a) to (iv)(d) below) may be terminated by mutual consent of the parties at any
time or by either party upon written notice of default, including non-performance, by the other party that is not cured within 30 days.

(tv) In connection with the West license agreement, we entered into the following additional agreements:

(a) A clinical manufacturing agreement, whereby we would buy from West 100% of the nasal morphine product required for
conducting the clinical trials subject to West’s ability to supply 100% of the required product. West would manufacture and
package the clinical product for us. This agreement was terminated effective September 2002.

(b) An option agreement, whereby we were granted an option to include morphine -6- glucuronide (“M-6-G”) as an identified
compound under the license agreement. We paid and expensed a non-refundable fee in consideration of the option, which
expired unexercised on December 22, 2000.

' {(€) On October 24, 2000, we expanded our license agreement to include an additional development agreement with West for rights

to develop and commercialize intranasal fentanyl. Pursuant to the development agreement, we would undertake a development
program for intranasal fentanyl with West, and the parties would endeavor to complete the development program within the
defined time table. However, we could use other suppliers should West be unable to either provide competitive cost bids or
complete the program within a reasonable timeframe. In addition, under the development agreement, we were obligated to make
aggregate future payments totaling $6.3 million upon reaching certain defined development milestones, which included
completion of proof-of-principle studies, successful completion of a Phase 1/2 clinical trial, commencement of a Phase 3 clinical
trial, filing of an NDA with the FDA and the approval of an NDA by the FDA of a licensed product. These milestone payments
could be paid in cash or equity upon the satisfaction of certain clinical and regulatory milestones and provided that we were
publicly traded at the time such milestone payment accrues. In October 2003, we and West amended the license agreement to
exclude further development of fentanyl by us. All rights, duties and obligations between us and West related to fentanyl were
terminated, including aggregate remaining future milestone payments of $6.3 million.

{d) On November 17, 2000, we entered into a clinical manufacturing agreement with West to manufacture, package, purchase and

sell to us nasal ketamine clinical product according to agreed upon clinical product specifications and price schedule. The
agreement expired in November 2001,
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On February 8, 2005, we consented to the assignment of the license agreements with West to Archimedes Pharma Limited
(“Archimedes™ in connection with the sale of West’s Drug Delivery business to Archimedes. Under the terms of the assignment,
Archimedes assumed all of West’s obligations and liabilides under the assigned agreements that by their respective terms are
required to be paid, performed or discharged.

Shimoda Biotech (Proprietary) Ltd. On December 14, 2001 (the “Effective Date”), we entered into an agreement (the “Shimoda
Agreement”) with Shimoda Biotech (Proprietary) Ltd. and certain affiliated entities {collectively, “Shimoda™), for an exclusive
worldwide license to commercialize formulations of pharmaceutical products containing diclofenac. We would pay: (i) a license fee
to Shimoda and reimbursement for expenses, if certain defined events occur; (i) two percent of the net proceeds, as defined, of our
initial public offering (“IPO”) to Shimoda, but not less than $1 million or in excess of 32 million; (iii) aggregate future milestone
payments of $6.0 million payable upon the satisfaction of certain clinical and regulatory milestones which includes submission of an
NDA with the FDA, approval of an NDA by the FDA and one year following the date of first sale of a licensed product; and (iv)
royalty payments to Shimoda based upon the sales of products by us or our sublicensees, if any, as defined. Upon achievernent of a
milestone, Shimoda has the option to receive payment in cash or shares of common stock. Tn the event Shimoda elects to receive
common stock, the number of shares to be issued is based on a formula whereby the defined milestone payment is divided by the
per share price of our common stock in an 1PO as defined. Should common stock be issued in satisfaction of milestones, we will
record a non-cash capital asset based on the fair value of the consideration paid at the date the milestone is achieved. Such a
transaction could be material and could result in a material dilution to per share amounts. The Shimoda Agreement may be
terminated (i) by either party due to breach by the other party that is not cured within 60 days of written notice; (if) by Shimoda in
the event of default by us for non-payment of amounts due that is not cured with 60 days of written notice; or (iii) by us at any time
by giving 90 days written notice to Shimoda.

In December 2005, we amended the Shimoda Agreement. Under the terms of the amendment, the total aggregate future milestone
payments of $6.0 million payable upon the satisfaction of certain clinical and regulatory milestones remains unchanged although as
amended include allowance of an MAA by the MHRA, submission of an NDA with the FDA, approval of an NDA by the FDA
and one year following the date of first sale of a licensed product.

In May 2006, we further amended the Shimoda Agreement. Under the previous agreement, we were required to launch a
commercial product by December 14, 2007 or risk termination of the license at Shimoda’s option. Under the terms of the
amendment, we are no longer required to launch a commercial product by December 14, 2007. Rather, we will be considered to be
compliant with the Shimoda Agreement if we diligendy continue to pursue regulatory approval as of that date.

Precision Pharma Services, Inc. In February 2007, we entered intc a2 Commercial Supply Agreement (the “Supply Agreement’)
with Precision Pharma Services, Inc. (“Precision”). The initial term of the Supply Agreement is two years, and it is renewable in cne-
year increments. Under the Supply Agreement, Precision agreed to manufacture our requirements for the supply of Dyloject, in
accordance with U.S. and E.U. good manufacturing practices. We committed to purchase at least $7,650,000 worth of product
during the two year period beginning on April 1, 2007. Either party may terminate the Supply Agreement upon wrdtten notice if the
other party is in materal breach of any provision thereof, subject to applicable 30 or 90 day cure periods. Either party may also
terminate the Supply Agreement upon 60 days’ prior written notice upon the occurrence of certain events involving the bankruptey
or insolvency of the other party, and the Supply Agreement shall antomatically terminate upon the occurrence of certain events
specified therein. Moreover, we may elect to terminate the Supply Agreement if Precision fails to meet its pecformance obligations
regarding the manufacture of Dyloject in accordance with guod manufactuting practices, and under certain other conditions.

Baxter Healthcare Corporation. In May 2007, we entered into a Development and Toll Manufacturing Agreement (the
“Manufacturing Agreement”) with Baxter Healthcare Corporation (“Baxtet”). The agreement is for U.S. drug supply and has a three
year term, renewable thereafter in one-year increments. Under the Manufacturing Agreement, we committed to purchase at least
$13,230,000 worth of Dyloject product manufactured to our specifications, commencing upon regulatory approval from the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration {“FIDDA™). As is customary in such agreements, either party may terminate upon written notice upon
the occurrence of certain events, including breach, bankruptcy, insolvency or, subject to certain cure provistons and restrictions, the
lack of FDA approval for Dyloject by a specified date.
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10. Net Loss per Share

Our basic net loss per share amounts have been computed by dividing net loss by the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. For all periods presemted, we reported a net loss and, therefore, common stock equivalents were not
inclueded since such inclusion would have been and-dilutive. In addition, for all periods presented, 227,044 shares of common stock were
held in escrow, These shares have been excluded from the caleulation of basic and diluted per share amounts.

The calculation of net loss per share, basic and diluted, for the periods ending Drecember 31 is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Numerator:
Net loss, basic and diluted $ (31,031,374 § (17,798236) § (10,611,772}
Denominator:
Weighted average common shares 45,462,653 40,179,543 27,831,188
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ (0.68) § 044 § {0.38)

Potentally dilutive common stock which has been excluded from diluted per share amounts because their effect would have been and-
dilutive includes the following:

For the Years Ended December 31,

G 2007 2006 2005
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
Average Exercise Average Exercise Average Exercise
Number Price Number Price Number Price
Oprions 7,586,030 § 341 6,120,904 3 299 4,889,467 § 2.91
Warrants 2,520,363 2.63 2,830,051 2.62 1,922,888 2.81
Toral 10,112,393 8950955 6.812.355

11. Share-Based Compensation
Adoption of SFAS 123(R)

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004) — Share-Based Payment,
ot SFAS 123(R). This Statement requires compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in the financial
statements using a fair-value measurement method. Under the fair value method, the esdmated fair value of an award is charged against
income on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period. We selected the modified prospective
adoption method as prescribed in SFAS 123(R) and therefore, we have not restated our financial statements for prior periods. Under the
modified prospective application, this Statement was applied to new awards granted in 2006, as well as to the unvested portion of
previously granted stock option awards for which the requisite service had not been rendered as of January 1, 2000.

Prior to January 1, 2006, our stock option plan was accounted for under the recognition and measurement provisions of APB Qpinion
No. 25 Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations, as permitted by Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. Generally, no compensation expense was recognized in the financial
statements in connection with the awarding of stock option grants to employees provided that, as of the grant date, all terms associated
with the award are fixed and the fair value of our stock, as of the grant date, is equal to or less than the amount an employee must pay to
acquire the stock. We had recognized compensation expense in situations where the terms of an option grant were not fixed or where the
fair value of our common stock on the grant date was greater than the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock.

As a result of the adoption of SFAS 123(R), we recorded share-based compensation for 2007 and 2006 as follows:

2007 2006
Research and development $ 1,147,138 § 924218
Selling, general and administrative 2,312,912 1,898,721
Total impact on results of operations § 3460050 § 2822939
Per share impact on results of operatons 3 0.08 § 0.07
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We have not capitalized any compensation cost. In 2006 we recorded stock-based compensation charges of §479,442, related to the
modification of stock option grants to two former employees and two former Board members. At January 1, 2006, there was no
cumulative pre-tax adjustment resulting from the compensation cost recorded prior to the adoption of SFAS123(R) under APB 25.

The fair value of the stock option grants were estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation model that uses
the following assumptions:

: 2007 206
Expected volatlity 80% 80%
Expected life 5.0 years 5.0 years
Dividend yield 0% o 0%
Risk free interest rate 3.3%-5.1% 4.5%-5.2%
Weighted average per share grant dare fair value $3.51 $ 250

Expected volatility is based upon implied volatility for our common stock and other factors. The expected term of stock options
granted is derived from using the assumed exercise rates based on historical exercise patterns, and represents the period of time that
options granted are expected to be outstanding. The risk free interest rate used is based upon the published U.S. Treasury yield curve in
effect at the time of grant for instruments with a similar life. The dividend yield is based upon the fact that we have not historically granted
dividends, and do not expect to in the future, Stock options granted prior to January 1, 2006 were valued based on the grant date fair value
of those awards, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model as previously calculated for pro-forma dlisclosures under SFAS 123 —
Accounting for Stock-based Compensaton.

Stock Incentive Plans
Omintbus Plans

In February 2001, the Board of Directors and stockholders of IDDS approved the adoption of the 2000 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan
(the “IDDS Plan™). The 1DDS Plan, as amended, provided for the issuance of 4,200,000 shares of IDDS common stock to be awarded to
employees, consultants, directors and other individuals who render services to IDDS (collectively, *“Awardees”). Awards include options,
restricted shares, bonus shares, stock appreciation rights and performance shares (the “Awards”). The I[XDS Plan contains certain anti-
dilution provisions in the event of a stock split, stock dividend or other capital adjustment, as defined. The IDDS Plan includes an
automatic option grant program for non-employee directors, under which option grants will automatically be made at periodic intervals to
non-employee board members to purchase shares of common stock as defined. The IDDS Plan provides for a Committee of the Board of
Directors (the “Committee”) to grant Awards to Awardees and to determine the exercise price, vesting term, expiration date and all other
terms and conditons of the Awards, including acceleration of the vesting of an Award at any time, All options granted under the IDDS
Plan are intended to be non-qualified (“NQO”) unless specified by the Committee to be incentive stock opdons (“ISO"), as defined by the
Internal Revenue Code. NQO’s may be granted to employees, consultants or other individuals at an excrcise price, equal to, below or
above the fair value of the common stock on the date of grant. 13O’s may only be granted to employees and may not be granted at exercise
prices below fair value of the common stock on the date of grant (110% of fair value for employees who own 10% or more of the
Company}). The period duting which an option may be exercised may not exceed ten years from the date of grant (five years for grants of
ISO’s to employees who own 10% or more of the Company). Under the IDDS Plan, for a pericd of one year following the terminatdon of
an Awardee’s employment or active involvernent with us, we have the right, should certain contingent events occur, to repurchase any or
all shares of common stock acquired upon exercise of an Award held by the Awardee at a purchase price defined by the IDDS Plan. The
IDDS Plan will terminate at the earliest of (i) its termination by the Committee, (i) February 4, 2011 or (iii) the date on which all of the
shares of common stock available for issuance under the Plan have been issued and all restrictions on such shares have lapsed. Awards
granted before termination of the IDDS Plan will continue under the IDDS Plan until exercised, cancelled or expited.

Immediately prior to and as a condition of the Reverse Merger, we adopted the Intrac 2004 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (the “2004
Pian") covering the grant of stock options, restricted stock and other employee awards, subject to stockholder ratification. The terms of the
2004 Plan are substantally the same as the terms of the IDDS Plan. The 2004 Plan authorizes awards of up to 5,000,000 shares of
common stock. Upon the closing of the Reverse Merger, the outstanding options under the IDDS Plan were exchanged for options under
the 2004 Plan with the number of option shares and the exercise prices adjusted to reflect the merger exchange ratio (see Note 1). Our
shareholders adopted the 2004 Plan at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders on September 7, 2005,
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Upon closing of the Migratory Merger, the Javelin 2005 Omnibus Plan (the “2005 Plan™) became effective and the outstanding options
under the 2004 Plan were exchanged for similar opdons under the 2005 Plan, The terms of the 2005 Plan are substantially the same as the
2004 Plan. On July 20, 2006, our shareholdets approved an amendment to the 2005 Plan to increase the number of shares of common
stock undetlying the awards thereunder to 7,500,000 shares. On June 26, 2007, shareholders voted to increase the number of shares
available under the 2005 Plan from 7,500,000 shares of common stock to 9,000,000 shares of common stock.

As of December 31, 2007, under the 2005 Plan, options for the purchase of an aggregate of 5,845,797 shares of common stock are
outstanding, The number of options remaining to be granted totals 2,614,065. In 2007, we granted a total of 1,421,532 stock options with
exercise prices ranging from $3.84 to $7.09 per share, with a weighted average exercise price of $5.23, which primarily vest over three years.
The deemed per share weighted average fair value of our stock options granted in 2007 was $3.51, based upon the quoted market closing
price on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes method. During 2007, 409,893 options were cither forfeited due to terminations of
employment or expired unexercised. There were 540,139 stock options exercised under the 2005 plan during 2007, for which we received
proceeds of $1,100,380. No options were exercised in 2006 and no cash was used to settle equity instruments granted under aur equity
incentive plans.

The following table summarizes stock option information for options granted under the 2005 Plan as of December 31, 2007:

OptionsQutstanding __ ____ Options Exercisable

Weighted-
Average
Remaining Weighted- Weighted-
Range of Exercise Number Contractual Average Number Average
Prices Outstanding Life Excrcise Price Exercigable Exercise Price
$1.50 - $1.90 559,207 5.3 years $ 1.54 542,540 3 1.52
$1.91-31.97 1,250,050 6.5 years $ 19 1,250,050 $ 196
$1.98 - §2.80 527,500 7.3 years $ 2N 431,665 327
$2.81-33.27 664,000 8.3 years $ 305 334,334 $ 299
$3.28 - $3.87 760,921 8.2 years $ 3.61 354,254 $ 3506
$3.88 - 34.26 675,440 7.5 years $ 4.07 329,651 $ 407
$4.27 - §7.09 1,408,679 8.5 years § 532 205,326 § 537
$1.50 - §7.09 5,845,797 7.5 years § 3.38 3,447,820 § 2.65

76



Transactions involving options granted under the 2005 Plan during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 are summarized
as follows:

Weighted- Weighted-

Number of Average Number Average .
Balance outstanding, December 31, 2004 2,712,575 $ 232 1,405,358 $2.66
Granted 1,313,750 § 275 — —
Exercised — — — —
Forfeited or expired {314,770 § 214 — —
Balance outstanding, December 31, 2005 - 3,711,555 $ 249 2,009,974 $2.56
Granted 1,935,182 § 3.72 C— . —_
Exercised — —_ — —_
Forfeited or expired (272,260 $ 377 — —
Balance outstanding, December 31, 2006 5,374,477 $ 2.88 2,915,632 $2.54
Granted 1,421,352 $ 523 — —
Exercised (540,139 $ 223 —_ —
Forfeited or expired {409,893 $ 480 — —
Balance outstanding, December 31, 2007 5,845,797 $ 3.38 3,447,820 $2.65

The deemed per share weighted average fair value of our stock options at the time of the stock option grant for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $3.51, $2.50 and $1.84, respectively, based upon the quoted market closing ptice on the date of the
grant using the Black-Scholes method. The aggregate intrinsic values for options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2007
were approximately $2.1 million and $3.7 million, respectively. Intrinsic value for stock options is calculated based on the difference
between the exercise price of the underlying awards and the quoted price of our common stock as of the reporting date. As of December
31, 2007, the total compensation cost related to unvested option awards not yet recognized amounted to approximately $5.1 million, which
will be recognized over a weighted average number of 1.8 years,

Included in the balance outstanding at December 31, 2004 were the following options granted to members of the Board: (i) 362,194
options on February 25, 2002, with an exercise price of $5.36, approximately two-thirds of which were vested immediately with the
temainder vesting through February 2003 and (i) 50,921 options with an exercise price of §5.40 on April 1, 2002, onc-quarter vesting
immediately and the remainder vesting over three years. On the dates of grant, the fair value of our common stock was deemed to be $8.84
per share. Thus, in accordance with APB No. 25, we recorded unearned compensation of $1,431,498, which was equal to the total intrinsic
value of those options on the respective dates of grant. We amortized unearned compensation as compensation expense, respectively, over
the respective vesting periods of the options. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005, we recognized $43,125 and $10,782 of
compensation expense respectively for those options.

Included in the options above, during the years ended December 31, 2000, 2002 and 2003 we granted 305,676 fully vested non-plan
options, 50,921 fully vested options and 76,381 options vesting over one year under the IDDS Plan to non-employees (“Non-employee
Options™) with average exercise prices of $3.87, $5.36 and $1.50, respectively, which are accounted for in accordance with EITF 96-18.
The estimated fair values of the Non-employee Options on the grant dates in 2000 and 2002, totaling $707,550 and $62,564, respectively,
were recognized as compensation expense in the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2002, respectively, During the year ended December
31, 2003, we recognized an expense of $57,672 in connection with Non-employee Options.

During 2004, two consultants received a total of 6,620 opticns to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise price of $1.97 per
share. The options fully vested upon the first anniversary of the grant and expire in June 2014, As of December 31, 2004, we recognized
$14,498 of compensation expense for these optons based upon their fair value as estimated by our management, at the grant date using the
Black Scholes option pricing model. In additon, $118,003 of compensation expense was recognized in connection with the Non-employee
Opdons that had been granted in 2003. '

During 2004, we granted a total of 1,094,793 stock options with an exercise price of $1.96 per share to four employees and 2 Board
member. The options had an exercise price of $1.96 per share, and vest over three years. The deemed per share fair value of the common
stock at the time of the stock option grant was $2.95, based upon the sale of common stock to investors in December 2004 (see Note 6).
Accordingly, unearned compensation of $1,094,793, representing the intrinsic value of the options granted during 2004, was recorded. Such
amount was amortized to compensation expense ratably over the respective vesting periods of the options. The total amortized
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compensation expense associated with the options granted in 2004 totaled §155,227 for the year ended December 31, 2004 and $334,890
for the year ended December 31, 2005,

Duting 2005, we issued a total of 40,000 options to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise price of $2.85 per share for
services rendered. The options were fully vested upon the grant date and expire in September 2015. As of December 31, 2005, we
recognized $95,200 of compensation expense for these options based upon their fair value as estimated by our management at the grant
date using the Black Scholes option pricing model.

v

Non-Plan options

Tn addition, as of December 31, 2007, we had outstanding 1,106,444 options which were granted to our Founders outside of the Javelin
2005 Plan, priot to the adoption of the IDDS Plan.

The following table summarizes non-plan stock option information as of December 31, 2007:

Qptions Quistanding Options Exercisable
Weighted :
Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of Number Contractual Average Number Average
Exercise Prices Qutstanding Life Exercise Priceg Exercigable i i
$ 387 1,106,444 = 2.8 years $ 387 1,106,444 $ 387

Transactions involving non-plan stock options during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 arc summatized as follows:

Weighted- Weighted-

Number Average Number Average

of Shares Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
Balance cutstanding, December 31, 2004 1,185,299 $ 387 1,185,299 $ 387
2005: Exercised (1,241) 3 0.1 $ 0.01
Balance outstanding, December 31, 2005 and 2006 1,184,058 $ 387 1,184,058 $ 3.87
2007: Exercised {77,614 § 3.87 § 3.87
Balance outstanding, December 31, 2007 1,106,444 3 3.87 1,106,444 $ 3.87

In 2007, there were 77,614 non-plan stock options exercised for which we received proceeds of §300,366.
Pro-forma Disclosure

The following table illustrates the effect on net loss and loss per share if we were to have applied the fair-value based method to
account for all stock-based awards for the year ending December 31, 2005:

. R 1| - E—
Net loss as reported $ (10,611,772)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation included in net loss under APB No. 25 ' 345,672
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value base method for all awards (1,796,017)
Pro forma net loss 3§ (12062117
Pro forma net loss per share (basic and dituted) | I (1X:%)]

For the purposes of the above pro forma calculations, the fair value of each option granted was estimated on the date of grant using the
Black Scholes option pricing model. The weighted-average fair value of all options granted during 2005 was $1.86 per share. The following
table summarizes the assumptions used in computing the fair value of option grants.
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Expected volatility 80%

Expected life 5 years
Dividend yield 0%
Risk free interest rate 3.4 -4.5%

Prior 1o 2006, the fair value of options and warrants granted to non-employees for financing, goods or services are included in the
financial statements and expensed over the life of the debt, as the goods are utilized or the services performed, respectively. Securities
issued in connecdon with services or financings were valued based upon the estimate of fair value of the securities issued as determined
using the Black Scholes option pricing model with the assumptions noted above. Such fair value was determined at each balance sheet date
through the vesting period, in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force No. 96-18 Accounting for Equity Instruments that are issued
to other than employees for acquiring, or in conjunction with selling poods or services (“EITF 96-18,

12. Warrants and Units

The following table summarizes warrant and unit activity for the period from February 23, 1998 (inception) to December 31, 2007:

Placement Debenture Bridge Investor Consultants  Finders'
Warrants Warrants Warrants Warrants Warrants Units (1)
Issuance of Bridge Warrants (see Note 8) 236,127
Issuance of Consultants Warrants (see Note 8) 204,336
Balance outstanding, December 31, 1999 — — 236,127 — 204,336 —
Issuance of Preferred A Warrants (see Note7) 415403
Exercise of Consultants Warrants ‘ ' (204,336)
Issuance of Finders Units (see Note 7) 15.83
Issuance of Consultants Warrants (see Note 7) 15,523
Balance outstanding, December 31, 2000 — — 236,127 415,403 15,523 15.83
Exercise of Bridge Warrant {15,893)
Exercise of Consultants Warrants (15,523}
Balance outstanding, December 31, 2001 and 2002 — — 220,234 415,403 _— 15.83
Exercise of Bridge Warrants (see Note 8) — — (2,270)
Balance cutstanding, December 31, 2003 — — 217,964 415,403 — 15.83
Issuance of Debentute Warrants (see Note 8) 226,314
Issuance of Placement Warrants (see Note 7) 920,987
Balance outstanding, December 31, 2004 920,987 226,314 217,964 415,403 — 15.83
Exercise of Bridge and Investor Warrants {217,964) (26,518)
Expiry of Preferred A Warrant (see Note 7) (388,885)
Issuance of Consultants Warrants (see Note 7) 80,184
Issuance of 2005 Investor Warrants (see Note 7) 711,111
Issuance of 2005 Placement Warrants (see Note 7) 853,333
Balance outstanding, December 31, 2005 1,774,320 226,314 —_ 711,111 80,184 15.83
Exercise of 2005 Investor Warrants (4,444}
Balance outstanding, December 31, 2006 1,774,320 226,314 —_ 706,667 80,184 15.83
Exercise of 2005 Debenture Warrants (see Note 8) (113,157)
Exercise of 2005 Investor Warrants (see Note 7) (235,555)
Exercise of 2005 Consultants Warrants (see Note 7) (58,124) -
Exercise of Finders’ Units (see Note 7) (15.73)
Expiry of Finders’ Units (see Note 7) {0.10)
Balance outstanding, December 31, 2007 1,774,320 113,157 — 471,112 22,060 —

(1) Each Finders’ Unit entitles the holder to purchase 28,459 shares of common stock. Total issuance entitles holders to purchase 450,506
shares common stock.

During 2007, warrants to purchase up to 406,836 shares of our Common Stock were exercised, partially on a cashless basis, as a result
of which we received proceeds of approximately $632,000 and issued 337,406 shares of common stock.
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Additionally, 15.73 options to purchase Finders’ Units comprised of shares of our Common Stock and Common Stock purchase
warrants were exercised (including exercise of the warrants) in 2007 on a cashless basis for which we received no proceeds and issued
99,151 shares of common stock. At December 31, 2007, there are no Finders’ Units outstanding. The Finders’ Units expired on September
26, 2007 and 0.10 Finders’ Unit expired unexercised.

See Note 11 for the description of the method and assumptions used to determine the fair value of the warrants issued.
13. Related Party Transactions

From our inception through the year ended December 31, 2002, we received financial assistance from a principal stockholder in the
form of office space and management and legal assistance provided at no cost. In accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 79, the
value of such assistance has been reflected in the accompanying financial statements as an expense in the period benefited with a
corresponding deemed capital contribution. The value of the financial assistance totaled $1,075,182 for the cumulatve period from
February 23, 1998 (inception) to December 31, 2002.

In April 2007, we entered into an agreement with a director of our company to provide advisory services at the request of senior
management. The arrangement provides that in no event will compensation to the director exceed $60,000 in 2007. Through December 31,
2007, we incurred and paid approximately $4,000 for advisory services under the agreement.

14. Income Taxes

There is no net provision (benefit) for federal or state income taxes fot the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 since we
have incutred operating losses and have established valuarion allowances equal to the total deferred tax asset due to the uncertainty with
respect to achieving taxable income in the future.

The tax effect of temporary differences and net operating losses as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

mber 31 December 31, 2006
Deferred tax assets and valuation
allowance;
Net operating loss carry forwards — Domestic $ 29,789,000 $ 20,230,000
Net operating loss carry forwards — Foreign 708,000 —
Other deferred tax assets 4,900,000 5,127,000
Research and development tax credit carryforwards 3,064,000 2,882,000
Valuation allowance (38,461,000) (28.239,000)

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately $69.8 million of domestic net operating loss carryforwards and $2.5 million of
foreign net operating loss carryforwards which either expire on various dates through 2027 or can be carried forward indefinitely. These
loss carryforwards are available to reduce future federal, state and foreign taxable income, if any. These loss carryforwards are subject to
review and possible adjustment by the appropriate taxing authorities. In connection with preparing our 2006 tax return, we adjusted the
carrying values of our deferred tax assets, with a cosresponding adjustment to the valuation allowance. These adjustments had no effect
on our results of operations or our financial position.

We have additional net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $1.6 million resulting from excess tax deductions from stock

options exercised since 2006. Pursuant to SFAS No. 123R, the deferred tax asset relating to excess tax benefit from these exerdises was
not recognized for financial statement purposes.
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Onur effective tax rates for 2007, 2006 and 2005 are calculated as follows:

2007 2006 2005

—_ Amount ___ Percemt _ Amount ___ Percemt __ Amount | Percent

Pre tax income (loss) § _ (30,981.496) 3
Federal tax provision (benefit) at statutory rate (10,533,709)  34% (6,051,400)  34% (3,608,002}  34%
State income tax benefit net of federal tax benefit (2,168,829 - 7% {1,834,003) 10% (748,462) 7%
Permanent differences 999,299 -3% 382,663 2% 427,039 -4%
R & D credit (1,353,485) 4% (1,108,705) 6% {776,328) %
Change in valuaton allowance 10,222,000 -33% 9,688,000  -54% 3,679,000  -35%
Change in rate 1,468,932 -5% — 0% 911,066 -9%
Other 1,365,792 . 4% {1,076,555) 6% 115,687 -1%
Total income tax provision / (benefit) $ —  00% § —  00% $ —  0.0%

We adopted Financial Interpretation Number 48, “Accounting for Uncertain Tax Posidons” (“FIN 48™) on January 1, 2007. FIN
48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with FASB
Statement No. 109,” Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement of a tax position
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. We did not establish any additional reserves for uncertain tax liabilities upon adoption of
FIN 48. A summary of our adjustments to our uncertain tax positions in the current year are as follows:

Balance at January 1, 2007 (adoption of FIN 48)
Increase/Decrease for tax positions related to the current year
Increase/Decrease for tax positions related to prior years
Decreases for settlements with applicable taxing authorities
Deecreases for lapses of statute of limitations

Balance at December 31, 2007

oo ¥

We have not recognized any interest and penalties in the statement of operations because of our net operating losses and tax credits
that are available to be carried forward,

We will account for interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as part of our provision for federat and state income taxes.
We do not expect that the amounts of unrecognized benefits will change significantly within the next 12 months.

We are currenty open to audit undet the statute of limitations by the Internal Revenue Service, state, and foteign jursdictions for
vatious years from our inception through 2006.

15. Other Income

For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, other income consists primatily of $1.9 million and $1.3 million, respectvely, of
interest income for interest earned on our cash, cash equivalents and short term martketable securities available for sale. For the year ended
December 31, 2007 we had higher average invested balances of cash, cash equivaients and short term investments than in 2006,
Additionally, in February 2006, we settled lidgadon with West Pharmaceutical Services, Inc. (“West”) regarding West's assignment of
certain license agreements to Archimedes Pharma Limited (“Archimedes™) as part of the sale of West’s drug delivery business to
Archimedes. Under the terms of the settlement, on March 1, 2006 West paid us approximately $600,000 to resolve all claims and we
exchanged mutual releases. This amount is included in other income for the year ended December 31, 2006.

16. Javelin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 401(k} Plan and Emplayee Stock Purchase Plan

Effective January 1, 2007, we provided a 401(k) Plan available to all of our U.S. employees. Participants may make voluntary
contributuons, We currently do not make marching contribudons, but may consider doing so at some point in the future, according to the
401(k) Plan’s matching formula.

On June 26, 2007, shareholders approved our 2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP™), which permits employees to
purchase shares at a discount through payroll deductons, subject to certain eligibility requirements. The number of shares of common
stock that may be sold pursuant to the ESPP shall not exceed, in the aggregate, 100,000 shares. The ESPP shall be implemented by a series
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of Offering Periods of six (6) months’ duration, with new Offering Periods commencing on or about May 1 and November 1 of each year
{or at such other time or times as may be determined by the Board of Directors). The first Offering Period shall commence on May 1, 2008
and continue until October 31, 2008. The ESPP is classified under SFAS 123(R) as a “compensatory” plan because participants have the
right to purchase Common Stock at less than 95% of the fair market value on the Grant Date and because the ESPP allows for a “look-
back” to allow participants to purchase stock-based upon the fair market value on the Grant Date as opposed to the Purchase Date. Under
SFAS 123(R), we must record a charge to earings equal to the fair value of the right to purchase common stock under the ESPP,

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

The following tables set forth unaudited quarterly operating results for fiscal years 2007 and 2006 in dollars. The information in these
tables has been prepared on a basis consistent with the audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report and, in
the opinion of management, all adjustments that management considers necessary for the fair presentation thereof, These unaudited results
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes appearing elsewhere in this report. The sum of the
quarterly loss per share may not total annual amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements as a result of any quarterly changes
in the amount of weighted average common shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share.

2007 Quarterly results of operations

Upaudited Quarter ended

March 31, Juoe 30, September 30, December 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2007 2007 2007 2007
Government grants
and contract
revenue 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 —
Operating expenses
Research and development 3,332 4,639 5,384 5,664
Selling, general and administrative 2,774 3,023 3,487 4,527
Depreciation and amortization 20 24 25 29
Operating luss {6,126) (7,686) (8,896) (10,220)
Other income (expense) 223 452 675 547
Net loss attriburable to common stockholders {5,503 (7,234 {8,221) {9,674
Net loss per share atiributable to common stockholders:
Basic and diluted $ (015 § (016 § (017 $  (0.20)
Weighted average shares 40,244 44 400 48,424 48,661
2006 Quarterly results of operations
Unaudited Quarter ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2006 2006 2006 2006
Government grants and contract revenue 3 82 8§ 491 $ 155 $ 114
Operating expenses
Research and development 1,324 3,013 3,694 2,823
Selling, general and administrative 1,688 2,310 2,484 3,127
Depreciation and amortization 11 13 17 20
Operating loss ' (2,941) (4,845) (6,040} (5,856)
Other income (expense) 916 315 343 310
Net loss attributable to common stockholders (2,025) (4,530) (5,697) (5,546)
Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders:
Basic and diluted § (005 $ (01D 3 (014 3§ (014
Weighted average shares 40,178 40,178 40,180 40,182
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE. . '

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures. As of December 31, 2007, we carried out an evaluadon, under the supervision and with the
participadon of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e} of the Exchange Act. Based upon that
evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that as of the ead of the period covered by this report,
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports we file or submit
under the Exchange Act is (1) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms,
and (2) accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based upon the framework in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on that evaluation, our
management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2007. -

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accountng Firm. McGladrey & Pullen, LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, has audited the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007 included in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K and, as part of their audit, has issued their attestation report, included herein, on the effectiveness of cur internal control
over financial reporting,

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting. There were no changes in our internal con&ol over financial reporung that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting during our fourth fiscal
quarter of 2007.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

We filed Forms 8-K for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 disclosing therein all information required to be disclosed in a Form 8-K
during that fiscal quarter.

PART III.
ITEM 18. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement for our annual meeting of
stockholders expected to be held on june 24, 2008,

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement for our annual meeting of
stockholders expected to be held on June 24, 2008.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED

- STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information requited by this Item is incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement for our annual meeting of
stockholders expected to be held on june 24, 2008.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS.

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement for our annual meetng of
stockholders expected to be held on June 24, 2008,

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES,

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement for our annual meeting of
stockholders expected to be held on June 24, 2008.

PART IV.
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
(2)(1)(2) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule.
The financial statements and schedule listed in the Index to Financial Statements are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
(a)(3) Exhibits.

The exhibits required by this item are set forth on the Exhibit Index attached hereto.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on the 14th day of March 2008.

JAVELIN PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

By: /s/ Martin ], Driscoll

Name: Martn |. Driscoll
Tide: Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each director and/or officer of the registrant whose signature appears below heteby appoints Martin ]. Driscoll and/or Stephen J.
Tulipano as his attorney-in-fact to sign in his name and behalf, in any and all capacites stated below, and to file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, any and all amendments, to this Annual Report of Form 10-K.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed by the following persons

in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Martin J. Driscoll Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal
Martin J. Driscoll Executive Officer) March 14, 2008
/s/ Stephen J. Tulipano Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer and
Stephen J. Tulipano Principal Accounting Officer) March 14, 2008

/s/ Daatel B. Carr

Daniel B. Carr

/s/ Fred H. Mermelstein

Fred H. Mermelstein

/s/ Douglas G. Watson

Douglas G. Watson

/s/ Jackie M. Clegg

Jackie M. Clegg

/s/ Neil W. Flanzraich

Neil W. Flanzraich

/s/ Georg Nebgen

Georg Nebgen

/s/ Peter D, Kiernan, 111

Peter D. Kiernan, 111

Chief Medical Officer, Vice Chairman of the Board and

a Director

President and Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Ditector
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Exhibit Index

Exbibjt No, Description

21

22

32
3.3
34
35
4.1

4.2

a3
44
! 45
‘ 45
47.1
472
48
49

10.1.1

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated December 6, 2004 among Intrac, Inc. (“Intrac”), Intrac Merger Sub Inc. (“Intrac Sub”),
and Innovatve Drug Delivery Systems, Inc. (“IDDS”)(filed as Exhibit 2.1 to our Form 8-K filed December 10, 2004 (the
“December 2004 Form 8-K™}, and incorporated herein by reference).

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 27, 2005, between Intrac and the Company (filed as Appendix B to the Intrac
Proxy Statement, dated August 1, 2005, and incorporated herein by reference).

Certificate of Incotporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our Form 8-K filed September 9, 2005 (the “September 2005 Form 8-K”),
and incorporated herein by reference).

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our Form 8-K filed July 25, 2006, and
incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Bylaws (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our Form 8-K filed August 1, 2007, and incorporated herein by
reference).

First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our Form 8-K filed December
18, 2007, and incotporated herein by reference).

Certificate of Merger between the Company and Intrac Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.3 to the September 2005 Form 8-K and
incorporated herein by reference).

2004 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the December 2004 Form 8-K, and incorporated herein by
reference).

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant, dated November 5, 2004, issued by IDDS (filed as Exhibit 4.3 to our Registration
Statement on Form SB-2 (No. 333-122177) filed with the SEC on January 20, 2005 (the “2005 Form $SB-2"), and incorporated
herein by reference).

Placement Agent Warrant Agreement, dated December 6, 2004, issued by TDDS (filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the 2005 Form SB-2,
and incorporated hetein by reference). .

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our Form 8-K filed November 10, 2005 (the “November
2005 Form 8-K’, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Placement Agent Warrants (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the November 2005 Form 8-K, and incorporated herein by
refetence).

Common Stock Purchase Warrant, dated September 7, 2005, issued to Aurora Capital LLC (filed as Exhibit 4.6 to our Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 {the “2005 Form 10-K”), and incorporated herein by reference).

Common Stock Purchase Warrant, dated September 7, 2005, issued to The Investor Relations Group, Inc. (filed as Exhibit
4.7.1 to the 2005 Form 10-K, and incorporated herein by reference).

Common Stock Purchase Warrant, dated September 30, 2005, issued to The Investor Relations Group, Inc. (filed as Exhibit
4.7.2 to the 2005 Form 10-K, and incorporated herein by reference).

Common Stock Purchase Warrant, dated September 7, 2005, issued to Two River Group Holding, LLC (filed as Exhibit 4.8 to
the 2005 Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference).

2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (filed as Appendix A to the Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on May 31, 2007, and
incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Subscription Agreement for the December 2004 IDDS Placement (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the December 10 Form 8-
K, and incorporated herein by reference}.
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10.1.2

10.2

10.3.1

10.3.2

10.4

10.5

10.6.1

10.6.2

10.7.1

10.7.2

10.8

10.9

10.10*

10.11*

16.1

21**
23.1%*
23.2%
24%*

31+

Form of Registration Rights Agteement dated as of December 6, 2004 between IDDS and each purchaser in the December
2004 IDDS Placement (filed as Exhibit 10.3 ro the December 2004 Form 8-K, and incorporated herein by reference).

License Agreement effective as of December 14, 2001 ameng Farmarc N.AN.V,, Farmarc Netherlands B.V., Shimoda Biotech
(Proprietary) Lid. and IDDS (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the Registraton Sratement on Form S-1 (No. 333-76190) filed by IDDS
with the SEC (the “IDDS Form S-17), and incorporated herein by reference).

License Agreement dated as of August 25, 2000 among West Pharmaceutical Services, Inc., West Pharmaceutical Services
Drug Delivery & Clinical Research Centre Ltd. and IDDS (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the IDDS Form 3-1, and incorporated
herein by reference).

Amendment, dated February 8, 2005, to West Pharmaceutical Services Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.3.2 1o our Form 10-KSB
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference).

License Agreement effective as of February 25, 1998 between Dr. Swart Weg and TDDS (as successor in interest to Pain
Management, Inc.) (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the IDDS Form S-1, and incorporated herein by reference).

Employment Agreement, dated as of September 7, 2004, between IDDS and Daniel B. Carr (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the
December 2004 Form 8-K, and incorporated herein by reference}.

Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of November 4, 2004 among the Purchasers named therein and IDDS (filed as
Exhibit 10.6.1 to the 2005 Form S$B-2, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of 10% Senior Secured Debenture, dated November 4, 2004, in the aggregate principal amount of $1,000,000 issued by
IDDS (filed as Exhibit 10.6.2 to the 2005 Form SB-2, and incorporated herein by reference).

Securittes Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 3, 2005 among the investors named therein and the Company (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the November 2005 Form 8-K, and incorporated herein by reference).

Registradon Rights Agreement, dated as of November 7, 2005, among the Holders named therein and the Company (filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to the November 2005 Form 8-K, and incorporated herein by reference).

Employment Agreement, dated as of April 8, 2006, between the Company and Stephen J. Tulipano (filed as Exhibit 10,1 1o
our Form 8-K filed on April 26, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference).

Term Sheet for Employment of David B. Bernstein, dated as of March 2, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 o our Form 8-K filed on
April 26, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference).

Commercial Supply Agreement, dated February 15, 2007, between the Company and Precision Pharma Services, Inc. {filed as
Exhibit 10.10 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, and incorporated herein by
reference).

Development and Toll Manufacturing Agreement, dated as of April 25, 2007, berween the Company and Baxter Healthcare
Corporation (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2007, and

incorporated herein by reference).

Letter from Paritz & Company, P.A., dated December 13, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 16.1 to our Form 8-K filed for an event of
December 13, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference).

List of Subsidiaries.

Consent of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP, independent registered public accounting firm.
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP, independent registered public accounting firm.
Power of Attorney {on signature page).

Certification of pur Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
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as amended.

312+ Certification of our Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended.

32.1%* Certification of our Chicf Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2%% Certification of our Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

¥ Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential trearment under Rule 24b-2 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the omitted material has been separately fited with the Securitics and Exchange Comimission.

#*  IYiled herewith

88




Corporate Counsel

Pryor Cashman LLP
410 PPark Avenue ;
New York, NY 10022

7 '\fu\ England I‘\(_ult:
Hur]n]b(()n, MA OIR03

ﬁﬂn&wmmﬂmmmmmn L ;

”ﬁmﬁm & (teromdiar, floreihn P %gn

««
ENlaiden Lane

a;' _N&,w Y'nrk N\ 1038

l)itg;:nnt]c_mal. 71b—92tl

1

.-C‘o

Neil W. Flanzraich, Esq.

Former Vice Chairman & Preside

1
k)

mp1m‘ Investor G

Peter D. Kiernan, 111
CEOQ, Kiernan Ventures, formag

UIJ(‘L B. Picree, 11
l’:;es:‘dcr:r_. Tnvesto
Georyg, Nebpen, PhD

Managing General Partner
former excentive Schering- Bl

C 0 Officers

Independent chislcircd Public Accountir

MeGladrey & Pullen, l [P

ive Park, Suite 320

Registrar & Transfer Agent

-
Sl v
J&é\j_r‘l;ﬁmi?:m Stock Transfer and Truss

sharcholder questions: &
$200

ontact

r Relations
s, Inc.

ive

Martin . Driscoll
Chief Executive Qffiés

. Daniel B, Carr, M

PR

Chief Medigals ¥

under the symbol: JA

Commaon Stock Inf()i'mati()n

i
Javelin's stock is traded on the American Stoc

- ; . .
The Javelin Pharmaceuticals Annual Meeting

afd:30 a.m.

Fred H. MEDEECIME ;

Presidenp g Annual Mecting |

Stepheny PRALN |\ B A

Chic@4r 1 ' will be held:

e ) : Tuesday, 24,0

. 6o s T, June 24, 2004
v i P Ghief intellectual | v Connsel 1 Sharies POt A

; : One Bennete Street,
NEMVTOININN, MBA &

RGN Chamistry, Mianufacturing & Controls Financial & Other

E N B EDA WE Our annual report on

Jg'r;rdidf'z\,f;fhirs eacled December 31, 2

www.javetinpharmacat

hibridge, MA 02138

oipany Informatio

Information sectien or

Javelin l’hnmnnc‘tmicnl

Caniihridge

Al WWW.SCC.goy, In ad

avaifable on’our corporare website. The heads

%08 located in Cambri

*orm 10-K for the fisc
007, is available on our
ticals.com under the Iy

ng Firm

DO-937-5449

k Exchange

of Stockholders

n

al year
website at
westors

fition, other

SEC filings, news refeases and Company infonmarion are

varters of
tge, MA.

The um]pdlu has additional offices in Lake Success, NY,
4JUJ1|MI Kingdom, and Colugne, dcr[n.\:w




b

. —~JAVELIN

125 CambridgePark Drive
Cambridge, MA 02140
(617) 349-4500

www.javalinpharrnaceuticals.com




